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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of BC/
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company’, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”, “we” or “our”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHRESE

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

For and on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of BCI Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 May 2020 (the “Year” or “2020") to the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year ended 31 May 2020, the Group recorded
a decrease in revenue of approximately 38.5 % from
approximately HK$81.9 million for the year ended 31 May
2019 to approximately HK$50.4 million for the year ended 31
May 2020 and recorded a net loss of approximately HK$ 36.5
million for the year ended 31 May 2020 as compared to that of
approximately for HK$27.5 million for the year ended 31 May
2019. Such loss was mainly attributable to (i) the continuing
social unrest in Hong Kong since late June 2019 and the
outbreak of COVID-19 since January 2020, which were severely
affecting the operating environment for clubbing, entertainment
and catering business in Hong Kong; (ii) record an impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
for the year ended 31 May 2020; and (iii) record a written off of
trade and other receivables for the year ended 31 May 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Being one of the leading market players in the clubbing market
in Hong Kong, the Group aims to provide a premium clubbing
and entertainment experience to our customers and a more
sophisticated high-end and contemporary bar, offering a
variety of entertainment such as live band show, international
DJ’s performance and large-screen televisions broadcasting a
variety of sports events.

At present, the Group is operating (i) two night clubs, namely
Volar and Mudita; (ii) a sports-themed bar, namely Paper Street;
(iii) an entertainment studio, namely Maximus Studio; and (iv)
one restaurant focusing on Japanese-style dishes under the
proprietary “Tiger” brand, namely Tiger San.
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PROSPECTS

In the coming year, the uncertainties in the global economy,
in particular those arising from the ongoing US-China trade
tension as well as local political turmoil (including but not
limited to the continuing social unrest in Hong Kong since
late June 2019), are likely to continue to affect the consumers’
spending sentiment as well as the food and beverage, lifestyle
and entertainment industry in Hong Kong. The situation became
even worse due to the outbreak of the novel coronavirus
pneumonia (COVID-19) epidemic (the “Epidemic”) since
January 2020, severely affecting the operating environment for
retail and food and beverage business in Hong Kong.

Despite in the face of the stern challenges mentioned above,
the management of the Group is confident that opportunities
still exist and the Group believes that it can continue to
succeed and utilize its competitive advantages.

The Group is committed to strengthen our core capabilities to
keep on improving its business performance and operating
results so as to cope with these challenges and to present
satisfactory results and bring favourable returns to our
Shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHRESE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board and the management of the Group, |
would like to express my sincere gratitude to all our staff for
their unremitting efforts during the year ended 31 May 2020
and to all shareholders for their full support. | would also like
to express my heartfelt thanks to all shareholders, investors,
customers, suppliers and business partners for their valuable
support.

Ng Shing Joe Kester
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 August 2020
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Our Outlets
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Financial Highlight
MBRE

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FEHBHER

Year ended 31 May

BZE5A31BLFE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
20205 20194
FET FET
Revenue Uz 50,397 81,889
Finance income RE WA 249 626
Changes in inventories (A= Pk 1) (10,206) (17,739)
Non-cash items: FRLEA
Fair value change on financial assets at fair ERAHEFABRNEREER
value through profit or loss FEZE) (15) 62
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% - BE R R EITE (3,916) (3,942)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (17,537) —
Impairment loss on goodwill R EEE — (2,209)
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME - B MEREREEE (2,090) (2,379)
equipment

Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EREEERREEIE (8,555) —
Written off of trade and other receivables Wfﬁ%ﬂ%&ﬁ@fﬂﬁlm (2,988) (1,243)
Written off of amount due from a related company 44 FE UL BER% A T 5118 (172) —
Loss allowance on trade and other receivables %%&E@EH&ZMEEE%&% (476) (862)
Loss before income tax credit BRATISTIE 2 RIE1E (36,624) (27,706)
Loss and total comprehensive income for the year 4 NET1E [ 2 E U 25 4858 (36,494) (27,537)
For the year ended 31 May 2020, the Group's revenue was  #ZE2020F5H31HIEFE + NEENKE AL

approximately HK$50.4 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 38.5% when compared with that of the year
ended 31 May 2019.

The Group recorded a loss and total comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 May 2020 of approximately HK$36.5 million,
while there was a loss and total comprehensive income of
approximately HK$27.5 million for the year ended 31 May 2019.
Excluding those non-cash items, including but not limited to,
the fair value change on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (net of the repayment of lease liabilities),
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets, written off of trade and other receivables, amount
due from a related company and loss allowance on trade and
other receivables, the adjusted loss and total comprehensive
income increased by approximately 10.6% to approximately
HK$18.8 million for the year ended 31 May 2020 as compared
with that of the year ended 31 May 2019.

The Board did not recommend payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 May 2020.

BCI Group Holdings Limited SEF&EEEARATF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

At present, the Group is operating (i) two night clubs, namely
Volar and Mudita; (ii) a sports-themed bar, namely Paper Street;
(iii) an entertainment studio, namely Maximus Studio; and (iv)
one restaurant focusing on Japanese-style dishes under the
proprietary “Tiger” brand, namely Tiger San.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

For the year ended 31 May 2020 and up to the date of this
report, the Group had been principally engaged in the
operation of clubbing, entertainment and catering business in
Hong Kong.

Operation of clubbing and entertainment business

During the period under review, the Group strategically
positioned two night clubs (namely, Volar and Mudita), an
entertainment studio (namely, Maximus Studio) and a sports-
themed bar (namely Paper Street) to cover different segments
of the clubbing and entertainment market. Volar targets
customers with strong spending power and aims to provide a
premium clubbing experience to our customers; Mudita aims to
be a more sophisticated high-end and contemporary bar with
no dance floor, offering a variety of entertainment such as live
entertainment shows as well as international DJ’s performance;
Maximus Studio is working to achieve a lifestyle designed by
our customers and is a place to build the greatest self; while
Paper Street aims at providing a casual and comfortable
environment for its patronage. The revenue generated from the
operation of clubbing and entertainment business decreased
by approximately HK$ 23.3 million, or approximately 34.5%,
from approximately HK$67.5 million for the year ended 31 May
2019 to approximately HK$44.2 million for the year ended 31
May 2020.

Operation of catering business

For the year ended 31 May 2020, the Company owned two
“Tiger” branded restaurants namely Tiger San and Tiger Room
which are casual dining restaurants and aimed to provide
a contemporary Japanese dining experience in a relaxing
atmosphere for their customers.

Tiger Room was closed down in mid-February 2020 due to its
unsatisfactory performance resulted from the ongoing social
unrest since June 2019 and the outbreak of COVID-19 (the
“Epidemic”) since January 2020.

EEE W
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B - REEEE (i) ME®REE Volar & Muditas
(i) — 1B B = B)AIE Paper Street: (jii) — R4
ARt Maximus Studios K (iv) LA B B fak2[ Tiger | &
#H A B H —BEEE Tiger San »
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEIT R
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The revenue generated from the operation of catering business
decreased by approximately HK$8.2 million, or approximately
56.9 %, from approximately HK$14.4 million for the year ended
31 May 2019 to approximately HK$6.2 million for the year
ended 31 May 2020.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the uncertainties in the global economy, in
particular those arising from the ongoing US-China trade
tension as well as local political turmoil (including but not
limited to the continuing social unrest in Hong Kong since
late June 2019), are likely to continue to affect the consumers’
spending sentiment as well as the food and beverage, lifestyle
and entertainment industry in Hong Kong. The situation
became even worse due to the outbreak of the Epidemic since
January 2020, severely affecting the operating environment for
retail and food and beverage business in Hong Kong. To avoid
the spread of the Epidemic, the Hong Kong government has
implemented various social distancing measures to control the
spread of the Epidemic which has led to the decline of both
local customers and tourists, seriously affecting the pedestrian
traffic and the consumers’ spending sentiment. Hence, the
overall business environment in Hong Kong will become more
challenging in the forthcoming year as the spending power and
spending desirability of the population in the community and
the number of tourists visiting Hong Kong are more likely to be
influenced inevitably.

In order to cope with these challenges, the Group is prepared
to strengthen its market position by (i) upgrading our club
facilities on an as-needed basis depending on the condition
of our equipment and facilities; (ii) refining business strategies
to cope with the continuing challenges; (iii) actively negotiate
with business partners including suppliers and landlords on
mitigative measures during such unabated difficult period;
and (iv) enhancing our operational efficiency and further
strengthening our cost control measures.

The Group is committed to strengthen our core capabilities to
keep on improving its business performance and operating
results so as to cope with these challenges and to present
satisfactory results and bring favourable returns to our
shareholders.

BCI Group Holdings Limited SEF&EEEARATF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 May 2020, the Group’s revenue was
generated from the operation of clubbing and entertainment
and catering business in Hong Kong. For the year ended
31 May 2020, the Group was operating two night clubs,
one sports-themed bar, one entertainment studio and two
restaurants located in Hong Kong. One of the restaurants,
namely, Tiger Room was closed down in mid-February 2020
due to its unsatisfactory performance resulted from the ongoing
social unrest since June 2019 and the Epidemic since Januay
2020.

The Group recognised its revenue from (a) the clubbing
and entertainment operations when (i) the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products; (ii) services when the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group or other products were delivered
(including tips, cloakroom fees and service income from an
entertainment studio) to its customers; (b) the restaurant
operations when the customer takes possession of and accepts
the food and beverage products; and (c) entertainment income
when services have been transferred to the customer.

The table below sets forth the breakdown of the revenue by
clubbing and entertainment operation and restaurant operation
for the years ended 31 May 2020 and 2019:

BEEN WK DT

Bt 7 B 8

g

B ZE2020F5 A31H ILFE - AEEHWRZERER
EBELE ST MRS R B RET - HZE20204F
5A31AILEFE @ AEBKEUNBEBHMERE
2 —HEHETBEHE  —MRERLEREE
FE - Hrh—[&4 88 - Bl Tiger Room 7202042 A
FAI RN 5201996 A BEHEMT 8% M 520204
1 ARBERRIFERNRATEARME

AEE (R () EPIEBREMRER : (i) EFPRE
BEXRERAREROMERZ M SR EM
EmTEEPEERS MRS S E K (B
& KIEMEERREH ORBEA) : (D) REP
HEREMARBAKMEERERESERS &
() RBE BB EEPRMERRERA -

TERET|PEZ2020F K2019F5831H IFFE
RS IR LE A N EELER DRSS

Year ended 31 May

BZE5H31ALFEE
2020 2019
20204F 20194
% of total % of total
HK$°000 revenue HK$'000 revenue
FET HHEUZETE FREIL 154K F 7
Clubbing and entertainment & fiT K 1R 44 48
operation 44,150 87.6 67,478 82.4
Restaurant operation EEELE 6,247 12.4 14,411 17.6
Total 4act 50,397 100.0 81,889 100.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The revenue generated from the operation of clubbing and
entertainment business decreased by approximately HK$23.3
million, or approximately 34.5%, from approximately HK$67.5
million for the year ended 31 May 2019 to approximately
HK$44.2 million for year ended 31 May 2020. Such decrease
was mainly due to a decrease in revenue generated from
Volar and Mudita as a result of the uncertainties in the global
economy, in particular those arising from the ongoing US-China
trade tension as well as local political turmoil (including but
not limited to the continuing social unrest in Hong Kong since
late June 2019), together with the outbreak of the Epidemic
which resulted in the overall severe weakening of consumer's
spending sentiment in the food and beverage, lifestyle and
entertainment industry in Hong Kong as there was a significant
decline in the pedestrian traffic and tourist arrival to Hong Kong
and a reduction in the business hours of our outlets during the
reporting period under review. The situation was worsen as
the government imposed certain laws and regulations which
require mandatory closure of Volar, Mudita, Paper Street and
Maximus Studio for approximately two months during the year
ended 31 May 2020.

The revenue generated from the operation of catering business
decreased by approximately HK$8.2 million, or approximately
56.9 %, from approximately HK$14.4 million for the year ended
31 May 2019 to approximately HK$6.2 million for the year
ended 31 May 2020. Such decrease was mainly due to the
closure of Tiger Curry & Café, Tiger Curry Jr. and Tiger Room
in August 2018, May 2019 and February 2020, respectively
as well as the rising competition and general downturns in the
food and beverage industry.

BCI Group Holdings Limited SEF&EEEARATF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Changes in inventories

The changes in inventories mainly represented the cost of
beverage and food ingredients used in the Group’s clubbing,
entertainment and restaurant operations. The major beverage
and food ingredients purchased by the Group include, but
is not limited to, champagne, frozen food, dried food, etc..
The changes in inventories was one of the components of the
operating expenses which decreased by approximately HK$7.5
million, or approximately 42.4%, from approximately HK$17.7
million for the year ended 31 May 2019 to approximately
HK$10.2 million for the year ended 31 May 2020. Such
decrease was mainly due to the closure of Tiger Curry & Café,
Tiger Curry Jr. and Tiger Room in August 2018, May 2019 and
February 2020, respectively, and was generally in line with the
decrease in revenue for the year ended 31 May 2020.

Expenses related to short term lease/ total minimum lease
payments for leases previously classified as operating
lease under HKAS17

These expenses were one of the components of the operating
expenses which decreased by approximately HK$25.9 million,
or approximately 97.0%, from approximately HK$26.7 million
for the year ended 31 May 2019 to approximately HK$0.8
million for the year ended 31 May 2020. Such decrease in
expenses was mainly due to the adoption of HKFRS 16 during
the financial period beginning on 1 June 2019 where the
lease payments were offset against with the lease liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
instead of charging to the profit or loss as rental expenses for
the year ended 31 May 2020.

Advertising and marketing expenses

Advertising and marketing expenses primarily consisted of
advertising and promotional expenses such as the cost of
engaging resident and guest DJs and the expenses incurred
for engaging a public relations company for the provision of
marketing and promotion services to the Group’s clubbing,
entertainment and restaurant operations. The advertising and
marketing expenses decreased by approximately HK$3.9
million, or approximately 34.8%, from approximately HK$11.2
million for the year ended 31 May 2019 to approximately
HK$7.3 million for the year ended 31 May 2020. Such decrease
was mainly due to the lesser expenses incurred for public
relation services and advertising and marketing services during
the year ended 31 May 2020.
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Employee benefits expenses

Employee benefits expenses primarily consisted of all salaries
and benefits payable to all employees and staff, including
the Directors, headquarters staff and operational staff in
each outlet. The employee benefits expenses decreased by
approximately HK$6.3 million, or approximately 27.2%, from
approximately HK$23.2 million for the year ended 31 May 2019
to approximately HK$16.9 million for the year ended 31 May
2020. Such decrease was mainly due to the (i) closure of Tiger
Curry & Café, Tiger Curry Jr. and Tiger Room in August 2018,
May 2019 and February 2020, respectively; and (ii) the salary
adjustment for senior management and certain staff during the
reporting period under review.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets

Depreciation represented the depreciation charge for property,
plant and equipment (including, among others, leasehold
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment) and right-of-
use assets. Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so
as to write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The total
depreciation increased by approximately HK$17.6 million, or
approximately 451.3%, from approximately HK$3.9 million for
the year ended 31 May 2019 to approximately HK$21.5 million
for the year ended 31 May 2020. Such increase was mainly
due to the recognition of right-of-use assets upon the adoption
of HKFRS 16 during the financial period beginning on 1 June
2019 and approximately HK$17.5 million of right-of-use assets
were depreciated during the reporting period under review.

Other expenses

Other expenses mainly represented security expenses for
the clubs, credit card commissions, repairs and maintenance
costs, cleaning expenses, professional fee and entertainment
expenses. The other expenses decreased by approximately
HK$5.1 million, or approximately 24.5%, from approximately
HK$20.8 million for the year ended 31 May 2019 to
approximately HK$15.7 million for the year ended 31 May 2020.
Such decrease was mainly due to less operating restaurants
during the year as well as mandatory temporary closure of our
two night clubs, an entertainment studio and a sports-themed
bar for approximately two months during the year ended 31
May 2020. Hence, the relevant other expenses decreased.

BCI Group Holdings Limited SEF&EEEARATF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Loss before income tax credit

As a result of the cumulative factors discussed above, the loss
before income tax credit increased from approximately HK$27.7
million for the year ended 31 May 2019 to approximately
HK$36.6 million for the year ended 31 May 2020.

Loss and total comprehensive income for the year

The loss and total comprehensive income increased by
approximately HK$9.0 million, or approximately 32.7%, from
approximately HK$27.5 million for the year ended 31 May
2019 to approximately HK$36.5 million for the year ended 31
May 2020. In the financial year, the outbreak of the Epidemic
since January 2020 and continuing social unrest had brought
negative impact on the economy, resulting in a decline in asset
prices. Losses for the year include provision for impairment
of non-cash items such as right-of-use assets, property,
plant and equipment and other financial assets amounting to
approximately HK$14.3 million. With the combined effect of the
above, the Group’s loss and total comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 May 2020 had increased as compared to
that of the year ended 31 May 2019.

FINANCIAL POSITION, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group recorded net cash generated from operating
activities of approximately HK$1.2 million for the year ended 31
May 2019 and net cash generated from operating activities of
approximately HK$19.5 million for the year ended 31 May 2020.
Such increase in net cash generated from operating activities
was primarily due to (i) the decrease in financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss; (i) the increase in trade and other
payables; and (iii) the repayment of principal portion of the
lease liabilities move to financing activities due to the effect of
adoption of HKFRS 16.

As at 31 May 2020, the Group’s total cash and bank balances
(including cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank
deposits) were approximately HK$23.5 million (2019:
approximately HK$29.8 million). The current ratio (calculated
by current assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group
decreased from approximately 1.0 times as at 31 May 2019 to
approximately 0.6 times as at 31 May 2020. The gearing ratio
(calculated by total debts divided by total equity) of the Group
was Nil (2019: approximately 38.9%).
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As at 31 May 2020, the Group obtained total unutilised banking
facility of approximately HK$71.4 million granted from banks for
the working capital.

The shares of the Company were successfully listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange on 7 April 2017 (the “Listing Date”). Save
as disclosed in the paragraph headed “2020 Placing” below,
there was no change in the capital structure of the Group since
7 April 2017. The capital structure of the Group comprises of
issued share capital and reserves. As at 31 May 2020, the
equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$19.9 million deficiency in assets (2019:
approximately HK$15.8 million equity).

USE OF PROCEEDS
The Company has conducted the following equity fund raising
activities for Listing and subsequently after 31 May 2020.

Use of Proceeds from Listing
Based on the offer price of HK$0.34 per offer share, the net
proceeds from the Listing, after deducting the underwriting
commission and other estimated expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$43.9 million.

On 11 May 2018, the Board resolved to change the use of the
net proceeds as set out in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus of the Company dated
24 March 2017 (the “Prospectus”). Details of the original
allocation of the net proceeds, the revised allocation of the net
proceeds, the utilisation of the net proceeds as at 11 May 2018
and the remaining balance after the revised allocation of the net
proceeds were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 11 May 2018 (the “May 2018 Announcement”).

BCI Group Holdings Limited SEF&EEEARATF

20205 H31H » AEEESZRFITEEANER
BRBTMERENTIABBETIEALEES -

b 2

ANRATIREDR2017E4 7R ([ o BER )RR
FTGEM TN £ © PR T X[ 2020F FR &5 B 18 | —E&
FriRsEE&SN - B2017E4R7HE  NREBEBMNER
RBUEYE  c AEENEARERIEDEITR
RN FEE - N20205E5A31H » AN EIHA AFENL
R AEEBMA19.98 8B (20194F « 4
15.8F8AETT) °

FBFERE
ARE A EMAMPR2020F5A31H 2B EITA T
EREIEE) o

EHETBREAR

R EBERBERM0.34ETTE - LHHFE
FIEFE(ENBREEAS REMERS) BY
439BEBTT ©

MR2018F5A11H  EFEHAS T ARG AH
B2017TFIR24AMBREEZ([BRER KR
B RFTBRIEAR | — S E M TS R IEF R A
® o BB FEFENRENER « FIEREF
EHREET DB - N 2018FE5 A 11 B TS5 IBF
BB AB RSB FEEERT DR NG
BEHFIEEHN AR R B A2018F5 11BN RS
([2018FE58 45 ]) »



Management Discussion and Analysis

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 May 2020, the
Group has applied the net proceeds as follows:

EEE W
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A LT REIZE2020%E5 A31 A AR - NEEER
BFHENERBRINT

Adjusted
allocation of net
proceeds in
accordance
with the
adjusted plan
(as disclosed

in the May 2018
Announcement) Amount Amount
up to utilised as at  unutilised as at
31May2020  31May2020 31 May 2020
B £202055 4
31ARBRAE
8174201855
BOEREE)N
FISREFEL  M202065831 1202055731
AEDE AEEALE AREAEE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
A &5 BEET A58
Continuing to expand and diversify the outlet & A K% % /L F4h
network of the Group REBMPYERLE 18.8 11.0 7.8
Upgrading the club facilities of the Group RARSEN SR 16.1 8.8 7.3
Increasing marketing effort of the Group I AZARNEE B K& $4
Z 37 37 —
Enhancing corporate image of the Group 12 RNEEHDEF
E 1.0 1.0 —
General working capital of the Group KEE-—REEESD 4.3 4.3 —
Total st 43.9 28.8 15.1

As at 31 May 2020, approximately HK$15.1 million (representing
approximately 34.4% of the net proceeds) had not yet been
utilised. It is expected that the remaining net proceeds will be
fully utilised by 31 May 2022 in accordance with the revised
intended use as stated in the May 2018 Announcement.

The unutilised net proceeds from the Listing are placed in the

bank accounts of the Group.
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The future plan and the planned amount of usage of net &
proceeds as stated in the adjusted plan were based on the
best estimation and assumption of future market conditions at
the time of preparing the May 2018 Announcement while the
net proceeds were applied based on the actual development of
the Group’s business and the industry. An analysis comparing

T

the business objective stated in the Prospectus with the
Group’s actual business progress is set out below:

Business objective and strategy

BB BERER

(1) Upgrade our club facilities

(1) FAREPTRE

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Business plan and activity

ERFBRED

Renovate and refurbish Fly
e Execute planned renovation at
Fly (currently known as Mudita)

Renovate and refurbish Volar and
Paper Street
e Set up project team

e Engage contractors for the
renovation and refurbishment

e Engage designers for the
concept of renovation and
refurbishment

e Carry out renovation and
refurbishment

e RBFFly
*  HITRFEIE(E Fly BRI Mudita)

(& K BT Volar I Paper Street
o AKIIEE Bk

s ZEABEETRERBHTE
o ZEREIEGIEEELRBH IR
Z9K 97N

s FRBEMBFIE

BrEEERLR

BT BIFTER R T B R TS FOEF A B A
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁzom%)ﬂ UNCISE
E’Jﬂifaﬁr&ﬂ?‘“ﬂ% i AT{S SRR R TR BR AR
EEEBRITENERERTUBA - BRE
BESBREAEEE

ERRAN

AT
REBERI LB DOMED

Actual business progress up to
31 May 2020
HZ2020F5 831 HNEBRERER

e Renovation and refurbishment of
Fly (currently known as Mudita)
have been carried out and
completed in October 2018.

e \We have set up a project team
and obtained quotation from
various contractors and designers

e A small part of renovation and
refurbishment of Volar were
carried out during the period
between December 2019 and
February 2020.

e Paper Street was carrying out
a small renovation work during
the period between December
2019 and February 2020 in
order to enhance the customers'
satisfaction.

o Fly (ZRFEMudita) W E(E R EIEI T
REEME - W2 HR2018F10A%
W °

o HMEAIER B - W E % 5%
B KRR EUS HRIE

o A2019F12 A 202042 A HAfIFA
B/ NEh 5 Volar B8 L &3 T2 o

e FA2019% 12 A £202042 A HifEF
#09> Paper Street BT T2 -

B/NES
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Business objective and strategy

EBEBERRE

(2) Continue to expand and
diversify our outlet network for
the clubbing operation

(2) BBEBARZTUCHTEMEE

B P Ik 48 A

(3) Continue to expand and
diversify our outlet network for
the restaurant operations

(3) BERBARZTTICHMERSE

B P Ik 484

Management Discussion and Analysis

Business plan and activity

EERSBRED

Establish sports-themed bars
e Execute planned establishment
of the first sports-themed bar

e Explore opportunities with
cooperation partners and
conduct feasibility studies for our
second sports-themed bar

S‘ﬁ SiEB)E AT
WITET Bl R S EES T BAE

o« BRRAEBHOAIFRERY
e LIRS S
AR

Set up a standalone restaurant in

Tsing Yi

e Execute planned establishment
of a standalone restaurant in
Tsing Yi

Set up a standalone restaurant in

Sheung Wan

e Execute planned establishment
of a standalone restaurant in
Sheung Wan

Set up food court restaurants

e Setup a project team and
conduct a feasibility study

EEXRMAR B AR

o HWITAEAEBTKAR—BELE
ELRAR-FBLER

o HWITAEIELRFAREUE
FRERESER

o XIIRBER - WETTAITIE

7=

BEEN WK DT

Actual business progress up to
31 May 2020
BZ2020F5A31 ENEREKER

A sports-themed bar, namely Paper
Street, has been opened on 20 July
2018.

We had signed a new lease
agreement with landlord for our
second sports-themed bar which
will be located in Central. We
expect the second sports-themed
bar will commence business in
November or December 2020.

BB 2018F7 A20B AR —H%4
/& Paper Street & B) = )R IE -

ﬁfFﬁEﬁ%E?fﬁﬂjﬁAﬂPiﬁﬂ’J%:%ﬁE
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11 As12 AFMBE % -

A standalone restaurant in Tsing i
was opened on 16 December 2017,

A standalone restaurant in Sheung
Wan was opened on 15 June 2018
and its lease contract was early
terminated in mid-February 2020.

We have set up a project team

and conducted a study of potential
location regarding pedestrian
traffic, convenience, demographics,
size, structure and completion.

KM HR2017FE 12816 S KA
BB EEE -

BB R20184%6 A15H1E FIRFR
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ER2020F2 AR AR B -
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Use of Proceeds from the Placing of New Shares under
General Mandate (the “2020 Placing”)

2020 Placing

On 30 June 2020, the Company entered into the Placing
Agreement with the placing agent, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place through the Placing
Agent, on a best effort basis, up to 160,000,000 placing shares
(the “Placing Shares”), to not less than six Placees who and
whose ultimate beneficial owners shall be Independent Third
Parties at a price of HK$0.13 per Placing Share. The Placing
Shares were allotted and issued pursuant to the general
mandate granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 9 October 2019. All the conditions
precedent under the Placing Agreements have been fulfilled
and completion of the Placing Agreements took place on 18
August 2020. For details of the 2020 Placing, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 30 June 2020, 21
July 2020 and 18 August 2020.

The net proceeds from the 2020 Placing are approximately
HK$20,334,000 which is intended to be used as general

working capital of the Group.

The following table sets forth the status of use of proceeds from

BRE-REEREHRANVMERERAR
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2020F B EEHE
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ARAREAFAE R TEEN—RIEELCEE 5
17 -BEBENELRAGHERENEBERER
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MR T B E1 /52020566 308 -

202047 A21 8 202058 H18A AL ©

20204 ft & EIE K FT 15 2 I8 F 58 4920,334,000/5
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TREYI K E2020F L EEIHEAT
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the 2020 Placing: D
Utilised Unutilised Expected
Intended net proceeds net proceeds timeline for
use of net from the 2020 from the 2020 net proceeds
proceeds Placing as at Placing as at from the 2020
from the 2020 the date of the date of Placing to be
Placing this report this report fully utilised
20205 B E 20205 BLES 2020F B E
20205 B E BENARRE HRARRE BHEFSRR
BIEFERUE HEMEEA RHNREBA FREIEFA
FHENEERAR  AERREFE SRR HY TR AR A R
HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million
EE8T B&8T =BT
General working capital N&EE—f% & E By May 2021
of the Group =50 20.3 — 20.3 20215 A/
Total 5T 20.3 — 20.3
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks involved in the operations of the Group’s
business. Set forth below are some of the major risks that could
materially and adversely affect the Group.

1) In order to expand and diversify our outlet network,
we expect to establish more sports-themed bars and
set up more restaurants in Hong Kong. The food and
beverage and entertainment industry in Hong Kong is
highly competitive. Our ability to successfully open new
outlets is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties,
including identifying suitable locations and/or securing
leases on reasonable terms, timely securing necessary
governmental approvals and licences, ability to hire
quality personnel, timely delivery in decoration and
renovation works, securing sufficient customer demand,
securing adequate suppliers and inventory that meet
our quality standards on timely basis, reducing potential
cannibalisation effects between the locations of our
outlets and the general economic conditions. The costs
incurred in opening of new outlets and the expansion
plans may place substantial strain on our managerial,
operational and financial resources. As such, we cannot
assure that we can always operate the expanded outlets
network on a profitable basis or that any new outlet will
reach the planned operating levels. If any new outlet
experiences prolonged delays in breaking even or
achieving our desired level of profitability or operate at
a loss, our operational and financial resources could be
strained and our overall profitability could be affected.

2) For each of the year ended 31 May 2019 and 2020,
our revenue generated from Volar accounted for
approximately 60.1% and 53.1% of our total revenue,
respectively. Our success therefore depends
significantly on our ability to attract beverage sales,
entrance fees income and market our other offerings
under our “Volar” brand, which in turn depends
on, among other things, the market perception and
acceptance of the brand. Negative publicity about our
“Volar” brand, the premises on which Volar operates or
its offerings, could materially and adversely affect public
perception of this brand. Any significant operational or
other difficulties in the business of Volar may reduce,
disrupt or halt our operation and business at the
premises, which would materially and adversely affect
our business, prospects, reputation, financial condition
and results of operation. Experiencing problems in
operation which result in the need to close the night club
temporarily or permanently will materially and adversely
affect our results of operations and financial condition.
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As we lease or license all of the properties on which our
outlets operate, we are exposed to the fluctuations in
the commercial real estate market. There is no objective
way for us to accurately predict the rental rates in the
commercial real estate market in Hong Kong, and our
substantial lease liabilities expose us to potentially
significant risks, including increasing our vulnerability
to adverse economic conditions such as COVID-19
impact, limiting our ability to obtain additional financing
and reducing our cash available for other purposes.
Any non-renewal (whether as a result of the landlord’s
or licensor’s or our decision) or termination of any of
our leases or licence or substantial increased rentals or
licence fees could cause us to close down the relevant
outlet or the need to relocate to another site, depending
on our business needs or performance from time to
time. In such events, we could face a drop in sales,
write off leasehold improvements, and could incur
relocation costs for renovation, removal and resources
allocation, which could in turn result in financial strain in
our operations and diversion of management resources.

For each of the year ended 31 May 2019 and 2020,
our purchases from our largest supplier accounted for
approximately 51.4% and 49.7% of our total purchases,
respectively. We make purchases from our largest
supplier under individual purchase order, and have
not entered into any long term contract with it. If our
largest supplier for any reason reduces the volume
supplied to us or cease to supply to us, we will need
to find alternative suppliers on similar sale terms and
conditions acceptable to us. If we fail to do so in a timely
manner, the operations of our clubs will be interrupted,
our costs may increase and our business, financial
condition, results of operations and growth prospects
may therefore be materially and adversely affected.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

To address the above risks and uncertainties, the Directors
will closely monitor the progress of the expansion plan and
to operate the expanded network on a profitable basis. The
Directors will also continue to explore opportunities to diversify
our operation so that we could reduce our reliance on Volar and
the largest supplier. The Directors will continue to review and
evaluate the business objective and strategy and make timely
execution by taking into account the business risks and market
uncertainties.

The risk from COVID-19

1) The outbreak of COVID-19 suspending or limiting
services in Hong Kong, the business activities of
the Company generally been suspended or slowed
down. The Directors expect the Company to record
a significant decrease in sales and may have an
adverse Impact on the Group’s financial performance
for the year of 2021. The Group is closely observing
the development of the outbreak of the COVID-19
while carrying out cost control measures to alleviate
the overall impact of the outbreak on the business
operations and financial position of the Group.

The continuing spread and prolonged occurrence of
COVID-19 could have an adverse effect on the tourism
Industry in Hong Kong. All these factors may have
adverse impact on our business, operation, financial
condition and prospects. The Group is closely observing
the development of the outbreak of the COVID-19 and
the effect on the tourism industry. The management
will closely monitor the development and change its
policy and/or menu to match both the tourists and local
customers.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company’s shares were successfully listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange on 7 April 2017. Save as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “2020 Placing” above, there has been no
change in the Company’s capital structure since 7 April 2017.
The capital structure of the Group comprises of issued share
capital and reserves. The Directors will review and manage the
Group’s capital structure regularly.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

During the period from 2 August 2017 to 11 September 2017,
Bannock Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, subscribed for the US$-denominated short
dated corporate bonds with an aggregate principal amount
of US$2,550,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$19.9
million). Details of the above investment were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 2 October 2017.

During the year ended 31 May 2020, the maturity dates of the
remaining principal amount of US$1,650,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$12.9 million) of the US$-denominated short
dated corporate bonds were expired, hence, the Group did not
hold any US$-denominated short dated corporate bonds as at
31 May 2020.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not hold any
significant investment for the year ended 31 May 2020.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The Group did not carry out any material acquisition nor
disposal of any subsidiaries for the year ended 31 May 2020.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company, or by
any of the companies now comprising the Group for the years
ended 31 May 2019 and 2020.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since most of transactions are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, the Group is not exposed to significant foreign
exchange exposure.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group did not have any capital commitments as at 31 May
2019 and 2020.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 May 2020, save as disclosed in the Prospectus, the
May 2018 Announcement and in this report, the Group does
not have any future plans for material investments or capital
assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 May 2019 and 2020.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 May 2020, all of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss with aggregate value of HK$Nil (31 May 2019:
approximately HK$13.0 million) and restricted bank deposit of
approximately HK$17.0 million (31 May 2019: approximately
HK$9.5 million) were pledged to secured bank borrowings.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 May 2020, the Group employed 62 employees (31 May
2019: 102 employees). Employee benefit expenses (including
Directors’ remuneration, wages, salaries, performance related
bonuses, other benefits and contribution to defined contribution
pension plans) amounted to approximately HK$ 16.9 million
for the year ended 31 May 2020 (31 May 2019: approximately
HK$23.2 million). The Group endeavors to ensure that the
employees’ salary levels are in line with industry practice and
the prevailing market conditions and that employees’ overall
remuneration is determined based on the Group’s and their
performance. Share options may be granted to respective
employees with outstanding performance and contributions to
the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Discloseable Transaction in Relation to the New Lease
Agreement

On 1 June 2020, Crown Grand Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the new lease
agreement (“New Lease Agreement”) as tenant with Top
Smarties Limited, an Independent Third Party, as landlord
in respect of the leasing of the premises for a term of three
years commencing from 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2023 (both
days inclusive) for the operation of the Group’s entertainment
business.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios calculated
pursuant to Rule 19.07 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect of
the New Lease Agreement exceeds 5% but less than 25%, the
New Lease Agreement constitutes a discloseable transaction of
the Company under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules and
is subject to the notification and announcement requirements
but exempt from Shareholders' approval requirement under the
GEM Listing Rules.

For details of the above transaction, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 1 June 2020 and 5
June 2020, respectively.
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The outbreak of COVID-19

Subsequent to 31 May 2020 and up to the date of this report,
the Group noted a continuous downturn on its operating
performance. The management noted that the Epidemic caused
material disruption to the Group’s clubbing, entertainment and
restaurants operation, which adversely affected the Group'’s
business, financial condition and operating performance.
The Group has been actively adopting cost control measures
including re-prioritising work plans to improve liquidity position,
closely monitoring the market situation and timely adjusting the
business strategies in view of the development of the Epidemic.

Save as disclosed above and the content under the paragraph

headed “2020 Placing”, there is no other important event
affecting the Company after the year ended 31 May 2020.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester (R#%H), aged 53, is one of the
founders of the Group, a controlling shareholder, the chairman
and executive Director. Mr. Ng is also the brother of Mr. Ng
Shing Chun Ray, the executive director of the Company. He
joined the Group in July 2013. Mr. Ng is mainly responsible
for the overall strategic development and planning of the
Group. Mr. Ng started investing in food and beverage and
entertainment business since 2005 and is familiar with industry
trends, market behaviour, customer and supplier impact and
dealing with competitions and other operational challenges. He
has assumed a leading role in formulating strategic directions.
He has actively involved in the handling of finance and
investment related issues of the Group since establishment.
He has over 25 years of experience in the investment and
financing industry. Mr. Ng worked at Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific)
Limited (principally engaged in the provision of capital market,
advisory and wealth management services before it was
acquired by Bank of America Corporation in January 2009) and
left in the position of managing director and head of China and
Hong Kong equity capital markets and financing (being mainly
responsible for business management and development) from
February 1995 to August 2006. He then worked at J.P. Morgan
Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited (principally engaged in the
provision of investment banking and financial services) with
his last position being managing director and head of equities
capital markets of global investment banking department
and chairman of Asia Pacific equity capital and derivatives
markets (being mainly responsible for business management
and development) from August 2006 to April 2013. Mr. Ng has
been chief executive officer (being mainly responsible for the
overall strategic directions of the company) of GRE Investment
Advisors Limited (a company licensed under the SFC (Type
4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management)
licences) which principally engaged in the provision of
investment advisory and asset management service since
August 2014. Mr. Ng obtained a bachelor’'s degree in medical
sciences from the University of Nottingham in the United
Kingdom in July 1990.
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Ms. Lau Sze Yuen (£|2#i) , aged 44, is an executive Director.
She joined the Group in June 2016. She is mainly responsible
for the overall day-to-day administration and management of
the Group. Ms. Lau has over 20 years of experience in the food
and beverage and entertainment industry. She worked as an
assistant manager (being mainly responsible for daily operation
of the restaurant) at Tony Roma’s Famous For Ribs Hong Kong
(principally engaged in restaurant business) from July 2000
to June 2001. Ms. Lau was an assistant manager in marketing
(being mainly responsible for business development) at San
Francisco Steak House (principally engaged in restaurant
business) from August 2001 to October 2003. She then served
as the general manager (being mainly responsible for business
development) of Hong Kong Ganpachi Limited (currently known
as Hong Kong Hachiban Limited) (principally engaged in the
business of food manufacturing and restaurant) from October
2003 to February 2010. Ms. Lau was the administrative and
office manager (being mainly responsible for overseeing the
daily operations) of Buzz Concepts Group Limited (principally
engaged in the provision of management services in food and
beverage and entertainment industry) from July 2010 to June
2016. Ms. Lau obtained a higher diploma in hotel and catering
management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
Hong Kong in August 1999.

Ng Shing Chun Ray (&#&3%) formerly known as Ng Shing
Fan Ray (R4BZ), aged 49, is an executive Director and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ng is also
the brother of Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester, the chairman, executive
director and controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Ng
obtained a bachelor of laws degree and a diploma in legal
practice from the University of Bristol, United Kingdom in June
1993 and October 1995, respectively. He was admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong in December 1997. Mr. Ng started to
operate and manage food and beverage and entertainment
companies since June 2008 and has over 12 years of
experience in the food and beverage and entertainment
industries.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kan Sze Man (f§+ &), aged 48, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 14 March 2017. Mr. Kan is mainly
responsible for the development and planning of the Group.
Mr. Kan has over 17 years of experience in the property
investment field. Mr. Kan is a qualified solicitor by profession.
He graduated from Wadham College, Oxford University in the
United Kingdom in 1993 and qualified as solicitor in Hong
Kong in 1997. He has worked in the commercial department of
a Hong Kong law firm and a U.K. City firm, until joining Hikari
Tsushin International Limited (now known as China Qil and Gas
Group Limited) as its senior vice president and legal counsel in
early 2000. Mr. Kan is currently an executive director, the chief
operating officer and group general counsel (being primarily
responsible for lending the legal department and strategic
business planning) of CSI Properties Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 497).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Sui Chi (Z&#), aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 14 March 2017. He is
also the chairman of the audit committee and a member of each
of the nomination committee and remuneration committee. Mr.
Wong has over 23 years of finance and accounting experience
including but not limited to, financial management, corporate
management and auditing, serving in international accounting
firms, manufacturing and retailing companies, listed property
development company, securities and futures brokerage
company and shipping company. He was an independent non-
executive director of Legend Strategy International Holdings
Group Company Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1355) and principally engaged in the
budget hotel operations and provision of hotel consultancy and
management services in the PRC) from December 2012 to July
2015. Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive director
of U Banquet Group Holding Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1483) and principally engaged in
the operation of full-service Chinese restaurant chain in Hong
Kong) from November 2013 to October 2016. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Wan Cheng Metal
Packaging Company Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8291) since February 2017. He has
been the financial controller (being mainly responsible for
planning and directing the finance and accounting functions
and providing financial analysis to the management) of Shine
Vision Investments Limited (principally engaged in the retailing
of eyewear products) since March 2012. Mr. Wong obtained
a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy from the City
Polytechnic of Hong Kong (currently known as City University
of Hong Kong) in Hong Kong in November 1991, a master of
science degree in financial management from the University of
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London in the United Kingdom in December 2003. He obtained
a certificate in taxation and accounting in PRC organized
by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Hong Kong in
August 2004. Mr. Wong has been a member of the Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and an associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since April 2008
and July 2008, respectively.

Mr. Li Lap Sun (Z 3 %7), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 14 March 2017. He is
also the chairman of the nomination committee and a member
of each of the audit committee and remuneration committee.
Mr. Li worked at Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited (principally
engaged in the provision of capital market, advisory and
wealth management services before it was acquired by Bank
of America Corporation in January 2009) from March 1994 to
October 2004 and left in the position of director (being mainly
responsible for heading the equity sales team in Hong Kong).
He then worked at Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. (principally
engaged in investment banking, securities and investment
management businesses) with his last position being executive
director in the equity division (being mainly responsible for
providing investment advice to fund managers and leading
marketing projects for equity sales) from October 2004 to
March 2007. Subsequently, he has been the director and fund
manager (being mainly responsible for investment portfolio
management and compliance matters) of Spitzer Asset
Management Limited (a company licensed under the SFC (Type
9 (asset management) licence) and principally engaged in the
provision of asset management services) since August 2007.
Currently, Mr. Li is employed as a fund manager at Innovax
Asset Management Limited (a company licensed under the
SFC (Type 9 (asset management) licence). Mr. Li obtained a
bachelor of arts degree in economics from the University of
California, Los Angeles in the United States of America in June
1989 and a master of business administration degree from The
University of Southern California in the United States of America
in May 1992.
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Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy ({EEI&), aged 55, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 14 March 2017.
He is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and
a member of each of the audit committee and nomination
committee. Mr. Ng has over 30 years of experience in the fields
of accounting and auditing as well as business and financial
advisory. He worked as an auditor in Ernst & Young (principally
engaged in the provision of assurance, tax, advisory and
transaction advisory services) between July 1989 and August
1992. He was an assistant director (being mainly responsible
for overseeing the finance, accounting and investment
businesses) in the accounting department of Capital Asia
Limited (currently known as Goldin Properties Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 283) and
principally engaged in property development) from June 1993
to August 1996. He worked as group financial controller (being
mainly responsible for overseeing the finance, accounting and
investment businesses) in Fortune Qil Holdings Plc. (principally
engaged in investments and operations in oil and gas supply
and infrastructure projects in China) from June 2001 to March
2008. He was the chief financial officer of the mining division of
Mongolia Investment Group Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0402) and principally engaged
in the mining and construction businesses) from May 2010 to
March 2013, and following its name changed to Peace Map
Holding Limited and its business changed to the provision of
aerial sensing data services in China, he was re-designated
as senior consultant (being mainly responsible for overseeing
the finance, accounting and investment businesses) until he
left in December 2013. Mr. Ng has been an executive director
(being mainly responsible for the business development
and transactions execution) of Kolux Development Limited
(principally engaged in corporate consulting business) since
its incorporation on 25 August 1992. He was an independent
non-executive director of Huiyin Holdings Group Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:1178) from
June 2017 to December 2017. He was non-executive director of
China Billion Resources Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 274) from March 2018 to September
2018. Mr. Ng obtained an honours diploma in accountancy
from Lingnan College (currently known as Lingnan University)
in Hong Kong in November 1988, a bachelor of commerce
accounting degree from Curtin University of Technology
in Australia in February 1996 and a master of business
administration degree from The University of Hong Kong in
Hong Kong in November 2007. He has been a fellow of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since May 2000,
a fellow of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since
October 1996 and an associate of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales since January 2005.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEEBEFEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gurung Bhojendra, aged 43, is the general manager
of Volar, and is responsible for the day-to-day operation and
management of Volar. Mr. Gurung joined Volar in December
2004 as a general manager, and has over 15 years of
experience in the management of night entertainment clubs.

Mr. Ng Kun Seng Chris (R &), aged 36, is our company
secretary. He joined the Group in August 2018. He graduated
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor’s
degree in Accounting and has over 13 years of extensive
experience in the accounting, financial reporting and corporate
secretarial field. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Board is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance by emphasizing transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibilities and fairness.
The Board strives to ensure that effective self-regulatory
practices exist to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and to enhance long-term shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the year. The Company has applied
the principles of, and complied with, the applicable code
provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31 May 2020,
except the deviation under the paragraph headed “Chairman
and chief executive” below. The Board will keep on reviewing
and updating such practices from time to time to ensure
compliance with legal and commercial standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies,
monitoring performance and managing risks of the Group. At
the same time, it also has the duty to enhance the effectiveness
of the corporate governance practices of the Group. Under
the Board, there are three board committees, namely the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee.
All these committees perform their distinct roles in accordance
with their respective terms of reference (available on the
Company’s website) and assist the Board in supervising certain
functions of the senior management.

Pursuant to Rule 5.66 of the GEM Listing Rule, the Directors
have also requested any employee of the Company or director
or employee of a subsidiary of the Company who, because of
his/her office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is
likely to possess inside information in relation to the securities
of the Company not to deal in securities of the Company
when he/she would be prohibited from dealing by the code of
conduct as if he/she was a Director.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings.

Having made specific enquiries with all the Directors and all the
Directors have confirmed they have complied with the required
standard of dealings under the code of conduct for Directors’
securities transactions during the year ended 31 May 2020.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
At present, the Board of the Company comprises seven
Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester (Chairman)
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen

Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray

Non-Executive Director:
Mr. Kan Sze Man

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Sui Chi

Mr. Li Lap Sun

Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 29 to 34.

The Board has the responsibility of leading the Company. They
are collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. The
Board is accountable to the shareholders of the Company
for the strategic development of the Group with the goal of
maximizing long-term shareholder value, while balancing
broader stakeholder interests.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings,

Corporate Governance Report

audit committee meetings, remuneration committee meetings, &

nomination committee meetings and general meeting for the
year ended 31 May 2020 is set out in the following table:

S
Rk

Audit  Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
Meetings Meetings Meetings
(attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/
total no. of total no. of total no. of
Name of Directors meeting held)  meeting held)  meeting held)
Exeed %& geed ﬁ%x%ggé
HREEHEAE/ ( @%m@// HRESHERY,/
EEps ﬁhA%ﬂ%) 878 28080 %ﬂgé%%)
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester REAKE 5/5 4/4 22
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen 2Bt 5/5 4/4 22
Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray REEKAE 5/5 4/4 22
Non-executive Director HHITEE
Mr. Kan Sze Man BHrREE 5/5 4/4 2/2
Independent Non-executive B UHHiTEE
Directors
Mr. Wong Sui Chi ERBLE 5/5 4/4 22
Mr. Li Lap Sun EXVE b 5/5 4/4 22
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy mEELE 5/5 4/4 22

All Directors are provided with details of agenda items for 282
decisions making with reasonable notice. Directors have &)
access to the advice and services of the company secretary 7 -
who is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are
complied with and advising the Board on compliance matters.
Directors are also provided with access to independent A F]&HE o
professional advice, where necessary, in carrying out their  H#z%
obligations as Directors, at the expenses of the Company. &
Directors who are considered to have conflict of interests or
material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting and

would abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions.

All Directors assume the responsibilities owed to the
shareholders of the Company for the well-being and success of
the Company. They are aware of their duties to act in good faith Hfﬁ,m,\ﬁ$ °
and in the best interests of the Company.
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Nomination
Committee
Meetings
(attendance/
total no. of
meeting held)
TE%; 5\ =R=] u#:
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;E%TT = u#%v%]%()

il
il
11

11

11
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11
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General
Meeting
(attendance/
total no. of
meeting held)
Hﬁkﬁ
E u?!z /'X %(/

%‘Ehgﬁi@%{)

1/1
1/1
1/1

1/1

1/1
1/1
1/1
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The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting
records so as to enable the Directors to monitor the Company’s
overall financial position. The Board updates shareholders on
the operations and financial positions of the Group through
quarterly, half yearly and annual results announcements as well
as the publication of timely announcements on other matters as
prescribed by the relevant rules and regulations.

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors,
at least one of whom has appropriate financial management
expertise, in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. Each of
the independent non-executive Director has made an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules
and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

According to the Company’s articles of association, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office only until the first general meeting of the Company
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. During the
year ended 31 May 2020, the Company has not separated the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer of the Company.
Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester was the chairman of the Company
and responsible for overseeing the operations of the Group.
There is no chief executive officer of the Company. The Board
considers that such arrangement has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning of the Group.

Nevertheless, the Company will continue to look for suitable
candidates and will make necessary arrangement pursuant to
the requirement under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as
and when necessary.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

Under Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all the non-
executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. Each of the non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for three years but subject to
termination in certain circumstance as stipulated in the relevant
service contracts. At each annual general meeting, one third
of the Directors for the time being or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. Any Director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of members after his appointment and be eligible for
re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed as an
addition to the existing board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance
duties and has adopted written terms of reference on its
corporate governance functions.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the
corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of
reference.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of
Board members can be achieved through consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the
merits and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board.

Based on recommendations from the nomination committee
of the Company, the Board will set measurable objectives
to implement the Board Diversity Policy and review such
objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
and ascertain the progress made towards achieving those
objectives. The nomination committee of the Company will
review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its
continued effectiveness from time to time.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
was set up on 14 March 2017 to oversee the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management.

Within terms of reference in compliance with Code Provision
B1.2 of the CG Code, the primary objectives of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure of
the Directors and the senior management and determining
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

During the year ended 31 May 2020, the Remuneration
Committee held two meetings.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises three members
namely:

Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Sui Chi
Mr. Li Lap Sun

All the members are independent non-executive Directors.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 May 2020 is set out below:

HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) on 14 March 2017 for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors
and succession planning for the Directors.

Within terms of reference in compliance with Code Provision
A5.2 of the CG Code, the principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the Board composition, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and viewing the
Board Diversity Policy.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, Mr.
Ng Shing Joe Kester, Ms. Lau Sze Yuen and Mr. Kan Sze Man,
shall retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. No Directors
proposed for re-election at the forth coming AGM has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than normal statutory obligations.

During the year ended 31 May 2020, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting.
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NOMINATION POLICY
The Board has adopted the following policies for the nomination
of Directors:

Selection Criteria

In assessing and selecting candidates for Directors, the
Nomination Committee shall consider the following non-
exhaustive list of factors:

° the candidate’s character and integrity, professional
skills and experience;

° the potential contributions that a candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of diversity of gender, age, culture
and educational background etc.;

° whether the candidate meets the required independence
criteria as set out in the GEM Listing Rules;

° whether the candidate is willing and able to devote
sufficient time to fulfill the duties of being a Director; and

° such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.

Nomination Procedures

The evaluation, recommendation, nomination, selection and
appointment or re-appointment of each proposed Director shall
be assessed and considered by the Nomination Committee
and the Board against the Selection Criteria and the Board
Diversity Policy.

In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board, after the Nomination Committee receives the
proposal to appoint a new Director or the nomination from
a shareholder, the Nomination Committee shall evaluate the
candidate’s eligibility to serve as a Director based on the
above criteria in combination with his or her personal profile.
If multiple candidates are involved, the Nomination Committee
shall prioritize them according to the Company’s needs and
candidates’ respective qualification.

In the case of the re-appointment of a Director at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution
of the Directors and their services, their participation and
performance within the Board and whether such Director still
meets the above selection criteria.
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The Nomination Committee comprises three members namely:

Mr. Li Lap Sun (Chairman)
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy
Mr. Wong Sui Chi

All the members are independent non-executive Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) on 14 March 2017 with written terms of reference
in compliance with Code Provision C3.3 of the CG Code that
set out the authorities and duties of the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee performs, amongst others, the following
functions:

o Review financial information of the Group

° Review relationship with and terms of appointment of
the external auditors

° Review the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system.

During the year ended 31 May 2020, the Audit Committee
held four meetings. The Audit Committee oversees the internal
control system of the Group, reports to the Board on any
material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee comprises three members namely:

Mr. Wong Sui Chi (Chairman)
Mr. Li Lap Sun
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy

All the members are independent non-executive Directors
(including one independent non-executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise). None
of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of
the Company’s existing external auditors.

During the year ended 31 May 2020, the Audit Committee
has held meetings with the Company’s auditor to discuss
the auditing, risk management, internal control systems,
the effectiveness of the internal audit function and financial
reporting matters of the Group. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the Year, the first quarterly report for the three months ended
31 August 2019, the interim financial report for the six months
ended 30 November 2019 and the third quarterly report for the
nine months ended 29 February 2020, including the accounting
principles and practice adopted by the Group.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) that aims to provide the guidelines for the Board to
determine whether dividends are to be declared and paid to
the Shareholders and the level of dividend to be paid. Under
the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take
into account, among others,

the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

° the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion
plans;

° retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company and each member of the Group;
° the Group’s liquidity position;

° the general economic conditions and other internal
or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the
Group; and

° any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company
shall remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board
and is also subject to any restrictions under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the GEM Listing Rules, the laws
of Hong Kong and the Company'’s articles of associations and
any other applicable laws and regulations. The Company does
not have any pre-determined dividend distribution ratio. The
Company’s dividend distribution record in the past may not be
used as a reference or basis to determine the level of dividends
that may be declared or paid by the Company in the future.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the
Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control systems in order to safeguard the Group’s
assets and shareholders’ interests, and review and monitor
the effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control and risk
management systems annually so as to ensure that internal
control and risk management systems in place are adequate.
The Company also has a process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the significant risks to the achievement of its
operational objective. The risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objective, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. This process is subject to continuous
improvement up to the date of this annual report. The day-to-
day operation is entrusted to each individual department, which
is accountable for its own conduct and performance, and is
required to strictly adhere to the policies set by the Board.
The Company carries out reviews on the effectiveness of the
internal control systems from time to time in order to ensure
that they are able to meet and deal with the dynamic and ever-
changing business environment.

The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view t'hat in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more cost
effective not to appoint external independent professionals to
perform internal audit function for the Group.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed and considered the
internal control and risk management systems to be effective
and adequate, and in compliance with the code provisions as
set out in the CG Code.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on their
reporting responsibilities and opinion on the Group’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 May 2020 is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual
report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditor, including
whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential
material adverse effect on the Company.

The fees paid/payable to BDO Limited in respect of the audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 May
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2020 are set out as follows: Nk

Fee paid/payable
B EBLER
HK$'000
FETT
Audit services EZRE 380
Total st 380

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE EERYBBRROET

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair
view. In preparing for the financial statements, appropriate
accounting policies and standards are selected and applied
consistently.

The Directors were aware that the Group incurred a net loss of
HK36,494,000 for the Year and as at 31 May 2020, the Group’s
net current liabilities and net liabilities were approximately
HK$20,562,000 and approximately HK$22,457,000,
respectively. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Notwithstanding the above conditions, the financial statements
were prepared based on the assumption that the Group can be
operated as a going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that Board
procedures are followed and facilitating communications
among Directors as well as with shareholders and
management.
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Mr. Ng Kun Seng Chris was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 31 August 2018 and is
responsible for overseeing all the company secretarial matters
of the Group.

Mr. Ng confirmed that, during the year ended 31 May 2020,
he has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training to update his skill and knowledge.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in a programme of continuous
professional development (“CPD”) to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. Reading materials on
relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
During the year ended 31 May 2020, all the Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant training courses.

During the year ended 31 May 2020, all the Directors have
participated in the CPD and the relevant details are set out
below:

Name of Directors

B

Executive Directors HiTEE

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester RIEBETE

Ms. Lau Sze Yuen 2Bzt

Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray RAEGEFHE
Non-executive Director HPTEE

Mr. Kan Sze Man BHETRELE
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBTEE
Mr. Wong Sui Chi e it

Mr. Li Lap Sun £V bt

Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy TS

Participation in CPD includes attending seminars, reading
relevant materials in relation to the business of the Group,
directors’ duties, latest development of the GEM Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements.
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Yes
Yes
Yes
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhance investor relations. It is
committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of
corporate information to its shareholders and investment
public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual,
interim and quarterly reports. The corporate website of the
Company (www.bcigroup.com.hk) has provided an effective
communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company
so that they can exercise their rights as shareholders in an
informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure
its shareholders are kept well informed of key business
imperatives. These include annual general meeting, annual
report, various notices, announcements and circulars. The
annual general meeting and other general meetings of the
Company are primary forums for communication between
the Company and its shareholders. The Company provides
shareholders with relevant information on the resolution(s)
proposed at general meetings in a timely manner in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. The information
provided is reasonably necessary to enable shareholders to
make an informed decision on the proposed resolution(s).

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

The Company has not made any change to its constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 May 2020. A consolidated
version of the Company’s constitutional documents is available
on the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE
AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2018 Revision). However, shareholders are
requested to follow article 64 of the Articles of Association
of the Company which provides that extraordinary general
meetings should be convened on the requisition of one or
more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If the
Board fails to proceed to convene an extraordinary general
meeting within 21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionist(s) may convene an extraordinary general meeting
himself/themselves, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE
A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for
election as a Director of the Company are laid down in Article
113 of the Company’s Articles of Association. No person,

other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by
the Board for election, be eligible for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the
intention to propose that person for election as a Director and
notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the Head Office or at the Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under the Articles of Association of the Company
will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at least 7
days.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for
the attention of compliance officer, by email: renee@bci-group.
com, or mail to Basement, Ho Lee Commercial Building, No.
38-44 D’ Aguilar Street, Central, Hong Kong.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports and
announcements to the public in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations. The primary focus of the Company is to
ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful
and complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well
as the public to make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance
could ensure an effective distribution of the resources and
shareholders’ interests. The senior management will continue
their endeavors in maintaining, enhancing and increasing the
Group’s corporate governance level and quality.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEBRERHRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group regards corporate social responsibilities as
one of the core values of its business operations for
sustainable development. The Group persistently strives to
operate its business in an economic, environmentally, and
socially sustainable manner. The Group is keenly aware of
the importance of balancing its business needs with the
stewardship of the natural environment, the need to meet
market demand for resources, and the need to achieve a
harmonious development of society.

The Company presents this Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “Report”) for the year ended
31 May 2020 (the “Reporting Period”), in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” as
set out in Appendix 20 to GEM Listing Rules and based on the
material aspects of the Group and stakeholders.

The Report has complied with the “comply or explain”
provisions set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” under Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules.
We value your feedback regarding the review and our overall
sustainability practices. Please provide your comments by
email to info@bci-group.com.

This Report serves to provide details of the Company’s ESG
policies and initiatives of its major operating segment in
Hong Kong, which is principally engaged in the operation of
clubbing, entertainment and restaurant business.

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Company’s
ESG strategy and reporting, monitoring and managing the ESG
related risks. The management is responsible for evaluating
effectiveness of the ESG risk management and internal control
systems and the management confirms that these systems are
effective to mitigate our ESG related risks. Assessment of ESG
status and progress are conducted on an ongoing basis. To
understand the concerns of various stakeholders, the Company
has engaged and discussed with various business functions
and management personnel, and identified the following
material aspects and has managed them strictly in accordance
with the Group’s policies and guidelines and in compliance with
the relevant legal and regulatory standards.
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During the Reporting Period, to the best knowledge, information
and belief of the Directors after having made all reasonable
enquiries, no member of the Group had been involved in
any material breach, or non-compliance, with any applicable
environmental laws or regulations, or laws or regulations
relating to employment, employee’s health and safety, labour
standards, product and service responsibility or corruption that
had a significant impact on the Company or the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group measured and
managed its environmental performance in several aspects
throughout its operations.

A)

ENVIRONMENTAL

Emissions

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of
clubbing, entertainment and restaurants in Hong Kong.
Throughout the operating process, the relevant emission
includes noise emission, light emission and air emission.

i)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Noise emission

The operation of our clubs, namely Volar
and Mudita, naturally generates music in the
evenings. To minimize noise emission, the Group
installs noise pollution materials and structure.
The locations of our clubs are not in residential
crowded areas. Volar is situated at the basement
location in Lan Kwai Fong, a night entertainment
district in Hong Kong and Mudita is located at
Ice House Street in Central.

The Group is not aware of any incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to noise
emission.

Light Emission

The light emissions should not and do not
cause any disturbance to the public since all
the featured events are conducted inside our
club. To minimize light emission, the Group has
complied with all the relevant laws, ordinances,
rules and regulations in Hong Kong in our
structural construction and operation to ensure
all the lighting systems are properly installed.

The Group is not aware of any incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group relating to light
emission.

BrEEERLR

WIEERT - BB — A BE MR -
BERBE - AEEDREAREBLREMERE
AT ETERREARTLA - R -
BERERZD  BTEH  ERRBHEELR
SAMMERIERT AR AR BN EA

=2 K

REEHRE - AEEESEBRRETHZETHAE
REBRFERR -

A) RIE
BER
AEBRTIEREBRQLEN  RERE
B - NELBRHT - HEEReER
SHEW - B SRAEEER o

i) EEHH
AP & AT Volar &2 Mudita #£
MEEBAELESLREER - BR
DRE  REEBLTEBRZISRME
K& o BB FTIE IER RNETE
[& o Volar (i A BB TR B IR 44 (2 Rl i
DreghEs - M Mudita Ri AR IBE R

e

AREE B AN A R S BE T mAE
M AETERIERY B AEEE
RERZEHER °

i) EHH

MR RBRRMANEMA
T RSB TR T e H A
FAERER T - R D IHER -
AEBEEZRENEETDET
BENAAMRRERE - G0 ER
KRG - AFRERFTBREARSHE
HEREK-

ARER B AR S BERT B AL AR
TETERIEREAREBKE
REENBER -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEBRERHRE

iii)  Gas Emission i) WEEHH
As cooking process involves the usage of fuels, RN ZEEBESRERME - £
restaurant operation inevitably generates exhaust EETREB RELRER - BIREN
gases. To protect the vicinity environment, all of IR - AREMBERHREE
the Group’s restaurants have strictly complied TFTERAREEHEO(EBENE
with the oil fume and cooking odor requirements 3T1E)FTIREHHE K Z 4R R
as stipulated by Air Pollution Control Ordinance E o RARBAINEBLERFH
(Chapter 311 of the laws of Hong Kong). The HE BN BEREARITERN
Company is committed to executing effective gas RESBERUES] - W EHERE RS
emissions control through the installation and use EITIRE REREE -
of appropriate and efficient filtering equipment
as well as organizing the regular inspection,
maintenance and repair of the ventilation system.
The sources of the greenhouse gases and the H ZE20194F £ 202055 A31H 4
relative emissions for the Company during the B ARRRRERERIRERIEHE
years ended 31 May 2019 and 2020 are cited as PERUIERAT ¢
below:
2020 2019
20204 20194
Group’s annual
consumption of fuel Total Total
Fuel and Energy and energy Unit consumption consumption
AEEREREER
BB R BETR FHEEREN BEFEE BEFEE
Electricity kWh 436,282 659,344
EW FEBS
Group’s intensity of greenhouse
gases emission per year
FEERERBFHREE
Total amount for greenhouse gases  Carbon dioxide in tonnes 222.6 336.3
emission
BERBANNE Z& bR (AR &)
Greenhouse gases emissions tCO2e/HK$'m 4.4 41

intensity

RERBYNEE

S E{LHER HEST
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Note:

The above calculation is based on the reference and tools provided
by Environmental Protection Department. The website is https://www.
carbon-footprint.nk/node/52.

The Group’ s greenhouse gases emissions intensity
is calculated by dividing the total greenhouse gases
emissions by the Group’s total revenue of clubbing,
entertainment and restaurant business. The Group’s
total revenue of clubbing, entertainment and restaurant
business for the year ended 31 May 2020 was
approximately HK$50.4 million.

The Group’s greenhouse gases emissions are mainly
produced from indirect emissions due to electricity
purchased from The Hong Kong Electric Company
Limited.

iv) Sewage Discharges

During the Reporting Period, all of the Group’s
clubs and restaurants have been granted with
the water pollution control licenses by the
Environmental Protection Department of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong
Kong”). To minimize the environmental impact
from the sewage discharge, the Group has also
installed adequate, efficient and appropriate
equipment to ensure the sewage has been
properly processed before discharge. Water
consumption statistics of the years ended 31
May 2019 and 2020 are set out as follows:

Bt

I FEUE T ERBRRREZIRUENSZEH R I A
H o #83f A https://www.carbonfootprint.hk/node/52

AEENAERBEENEESRAZERE
BHEMERUANEESAT REREREE
HE RIS E - H22020F5831H 1IEF
g AEBSFT - REREREEBHBI
HAHS04FEBETT o

AEEHREERBHENIEZREMNELE
BRBARBENENEENREIN -

iv) 5k HEH
RSB - NEERAEHMNLE
EEERSENTHE (&R
BREBEENSLREFER - B
WA TEKBEMERIENTE - K&
ENRELZERN  BRLEE K
% ARERSKESNATIEZ SR
1B - HE2019F &202065H31H
IFEENEKESRAEHINNT

2020 2019

2020 20194

Group’s annual consumption Total Total

of fuel and energy Unit consumption consumption

AEERBRERFEEREN BHFEE BHFEER

Water consumption cubic meter 4,930 6,742
ke AV

Water Consumption Intensity cubic meter/HK$'m revenue 97.8 82.3

FkERE
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Note:

The Group’s water consumption intensity is calculated by
dividing the total water consumption by the Group’s total
revenue of clubbing, entertainment and restaurant business.
The Group’s total revenue of clubbing, entertainment and
restaurant business for the year ended 31 May 2020 was
approximately HK$50.4 million.

Use of Resources

The resources used by the Group are principally
attributed to the consumption of electricity, water and
paper at the back office and outlets.

Electricity is consumed during the daily business
operations from using electrical equipment. To promote
an environmentally friendly office, the Group promotes
and advises several measures such as: i) employees are
encouraged to switch the electric equipment to energy
saving mode such as the automatically power down of
printers and computers after a period of inactivity and
turn off lightings before leaving the office and outlets;
and ii) temperature switches are adopted to maintain the
workplaces at a reasonable temperature.

Although non-significant amounts of water is consumed
through the business activities, the Group also
encourages water saving by driving water-saving habits
and posting green messages in the workplace to remind
the employees to use water effectively.

The Group implements measures for reducing the paper
consumption such as: i) double-sided printing and reuse
of single-sided printed papers are encouraged; and
ii) encourage to use more e-channels to disseminate
corporate information.

FaE

NEBEMFKEE R IRARKERUANEED
G RERBBEEBOBRETE - HE
2020F5 ABTHIEFE « NEEEHT - RER
BREEFNBING AHS048 BB

BREM
AEBEMEANERIZREAMAER
FIE FrRE M RO /KE AR -

EAREBEED  ENRENERETE
HIEET] - RIRERRRAE - AREIR
BRERETHER : DZBEERENRE
P EREEN - MREBITEE N ERAE
—BRELIRBREBEMER - WAEREN
MAERPIERRIFIRARE - Lii) A
ERFARRT TESRERIEREKYF o

HARMNERTHAKTSZ - BAEE
TEEEKEKEBAEREHAK I
ETESFRARRAE - IREETHM
K e

AEEERERRDAME - B DEEE
T ED R B AR A B m T ENAR SR + Jii) &
BEZBEE T REERLEEM -
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B)

SOCIAL

Employment

Employee is the foundation of success of the Group.
The Group is an equal opportunity employer and no
discrimination is tolerated on the basis of age, gender,
race, colour, sexual orientation, disability or marital
status.

The Company also prohibits any kinds of discrimination
at the workplace, which generally refer to the gender,
pregnancy, marital status, disability, family status,
and race in the practices for human resources. Other
than the policies for anti-discrimination, the Company
provides fair opportunities for all staff members.

The total number of employees and the distribution on
demographics as of 31 May 2019 and 2020 have been
depicted as below:

Total number of employees and distribution

2020
20204

No. of
Gender el employee
EBEA™

Male
Female

32
30

PN

2020
20204

No. of

Job type TEREAY employee

BEAH

Full Time 20 35
Part Time i1 27

BCI Group Holdings Limited SEF&EEEARATF

HeE

&=

BERAKERINNER - ARESRF
e BRULERFH  EH B
o EE - R BESEEARER
AR -

ARRB IR TAESFTERA AR I
B BESRANBERGMER - B2 &
AR - B ~ REMRRLER © BRI

BHERIN KRB RABREEREFEH

&= o
=

HZE2019F M2020F5H31H ' RE4E

HAMERT

EEHEB KRS

2020 2019 2019
20205 20194 20194F
Occupied Occupied
percentage No. of percentage
(%) employee (%)

ik E ot FrihB oL
(%) BEAH (%)

51.6 59 57.8

48.4 43 42.2

2020 2019 2019
20204 20194 20194F
Occupied Occupied
percentage No. of percentage
(%) employee (%)

it E Dt FriG B 7t
(%) BEAZ (%)

56.5 60 58.8

43.5 42 41.2
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)
)

2020 2020 2019 2019

2020 20204 20194 20194

Occupied Occupied

No. of percentage No. of percentage

Age range FHRE[E employee (%) employee (%

FritE AL EENERs s

EEA™ (%) EEAH (%

17-30 172305% 32 51.6 46 451

31-40 31E405% 13 21.0 35 34.3

41-50 A1 E505% 9 14.5 15 14.7

51-64 51E645% 8 12.9 6 5.9
Total number of

employees BEBE 62 100 102 100.0

The Group aims to provide a harmonious and respectful
working environment for the employees through
competitive remuneration packages including basic
salary, commissions, holidays, group insurance and
mandatory provident fund that are comparable to the
market standard and structured to commensurate with
individual responsibilities, qualifications, experiences
and performance. Periodical review is conducted and
the appraisal results provide basis for annual salary
review and promotion appraisal.

The employment contract specified the terms including
scope of work, wages/allowances, working hours, rest
days, dismissal and other benefits and welfare to the
staff. To stay competitive, the Group’s base salaries are
in line with the industry norms.

Health and Safety

The Group realises that ensuring the health and safety
of employees are very important to the business
operations of the Group and therefore we make every
effort to build and maintain a working environment which
is free from workplace health and safety incidents.

BWEFETSIEERS - AARFNAE
HEARE  BF  SRERAHBNHEF
s (ERELHE A BE %
BRRIRESR)  AEEBIAREAE
MHEBENTERE - RMSTHETR
A AHEERE RFEF RS BT
B HARIE -

BIEAXFAERGR - BRETHERE -
TE REL - TERE - RE - RERE
B TREM - [EGHRFH  AKENE
AFHEKFFEITHRIED -

RERZE
AEERR  REERENRERZZ2HAN

SEEGLBEHEES - B TES N
Bl RS TR B R R 2 TR
Tems -
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The Group follows safety manuals issued by the
Occupational Safety of Health Council which set out
work safety measures to prevent common accidents
which could happen in the outlets. Managers are
responsible to ensure compliance of safety, hygiene and
fire requirements by conducting checks and inspections
of the premises regularly such as fire exit passageway
shall be kept clear from obstruction. Fire extinguishers
and other equipment shall be kept at the correct
location and that they are accessible and remain free
from obstruction.

The Group has engaged a third-party security
company for the clubs which will provide a team of
21 security staff, working under the supervision of
the club managers. The roles of the security team
cover performing patrolling, attending the scene and
liaising with customers to stop any potential fights in
case of arguments or any fights or other suspicious
circumstances, and reporting fights, drug use, theft
and harassments to the police when necessary. The
Group has established safety and anticrime manual,
which is implemented strictly by the security team. The
club managers are responsible for coordinating with the
security team.

The Group implements headcounts and identity
checking procedures at the entrance of the premises
of the clubs to monitor the number of guests inside the
premises and whether the customers are above 18
years old when entering into the clubs. In order to spot
potential illegal activities such as fights, drug abuse
or theft at an early stage, over 30 CCTVs are installed
inside the club premises. The security team will attend
the scene investigate immediately if any suspicious
circumstance arises or stop any potential fight inside the
premises once identified.

Development and Training

As part of the Group's initiatives for improving business
performance and encouraging personal development
of the staff, the Group strives to provide comprehensive
development to the employees.

BCI Group Holdings Limited SEF&EEEARATF
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The Group has provided training across different
operational functions, including induction training for
new employees, technical training, and training to
enhance the employees’ knowledge, skill level and
quality when performing their duties. For the bartenders
and cooks, the Group encourages them to take courses
to further enhance their technical skills. The senior
management also gives regular training to the staff in
relation to customer service skills.

Supply Chain Management

Suppliers have a direct impact on the Group’ s
sustainability performance. The Group’s suppliers mainly
include beverage and food suppliers.

The Group selects the major suppliers based on a set
of criteria which includes product and service quality,
cost, reputation, service, agility, delivery efficiency, past
performance and relationship with the Group. Such
supplier selection criteria ensure that the Group can
secure continual supply of ingredients of consistent
quality, identify the source of supply promptly, and
maintain flexibility in stock levels. Generally, the Group
would not procure from the suppliers unless they pass
the selection criteria.

The operating managers are primarily responsible for
monitoring the level of food and beverage and making
orders. Each of the outlets place purchase orders with
the procurement staff which then place orders with the
relevant suppliers. Upon delivery of the items to the
outlets, the staff checks the time of delivery, the brand
and type, quantity and quality of deliveries against
the delivery notes or invoices and the orders before
acceptance. The Group also inspects the best-by date
and condition of the food ingredients, and if they fall
below our quality control standards, the Group would
return them to the suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not
experienced any significant problems with the quality of
beverage and food products provided by the suppliers,
any material limitations in the supply nor any shortage
of beverage and food products. The Group believes
that the supply chain management and procedures can
ensure the safety of the supply chain.
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Product Responsibility

Considering the importance of continuous customers’
satisfaction and support, the Group is committed to
providing customers with high quality services and
products. The Group provides training and guidelines
to its staff on service-related areas such as beverage
and food handling and personal hygiene to enhance
the quality of services provided to the customers.
All frontline service staff are trained to be courteous,
competent and responsive and to provide cordial
hospitality to customers. The outlets staff are required
to be professionally uniformed during all working hours.
The operating managers hold daily briefing sessions
with all front-line service staffs on the daily operations of
outlets. In these briefing sessions, the managers would
review staff performance and reflect the customers’
feedbacks. Such daily performance reviews assist the
front-line service staff in maintaining and improving
service levels. The Group strives to promote customer
satisfaction through responding to their comments and
feedbacks. The front-line service staff are required
to treat customer requests, enquiries or complaints
promptly and seriously. In case of any customer
complaint in relation to beverage or food or quality of
services, the relevant operating managers would take
initiatives to investigate and resolve the matter and
attend to the customers promptly.

If any staff receives a complaint from a customer, he
shall report to his supervisor, usually the operating
manager, who would review and understand the matter
with the relevant customer and offer remedial proposals
to the customer. If the complaint cannot be resolved on
site or if a complaint has been received through emails,
the operating managers will investigate the incident and
file a report to the management with solutions to improve
or avoid similar incidents in the future. An explanation
will be sent to the relevant customer to ensure the matter
would be resolved and to maintain a good customer
relationship. The Group’s management will review the
complaints and arrange necessary training to the staff to
consistently improve the operation of outlets.
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Data Privacy

The Group has implemented certain internal control
measures in ensuring the confidentiality of the operation
data so as to protect the suppliers, business partners,
customers and itself. The Group’s employment contract,
staff handbook and internal control manual clearly
define the requirements in relation to protecting the
Group’s data. For example, i) staffs are only allowed
to access, retrieve, store and/or copy computer
data that are necessary and directly related to their
work; ii) any unauthorized access, retrieval, storage
or copy of computer data, as well as unauthorized
transfer and disclosure of data to third parties, are
strictly prohibited and may lead to summary dismissal,
and iii) administrative department is tasked with the
implementation of a practical and reliable mechanism to
ensure security of all data contained in computers and
to protect data against unauthorized access or retrieval.

Anti-corruption

Corruption, deception, bribery, forgery, extortion,
moneylaundering and any other kinds of business fraud
are strictly prohibited and fully investigated by the Audit
Committee. In every business operation, employees
and the management must demonstrate integrity.
No tolerance is given to fraud. According to the staff
handbook and internal control manual established by
the Group, policy is established to govern investigation
and follow-up procedures of reported fraud incidents.
To enhance the governance of the Group, periodic and
systematic fraud risk assessments are conducted. Any
abnormality should be reported to the Audit Committee
for investigation. Whistle-blowing channel is also
established for the reporting of violations of professional
conducts.

Community Investment

The Group cares about its community and is willing to
give helping hands to the needy in order to promote
harmony and stability of the society. The management
continues to focus on the needs of the society and
endeavour to enhance the sustainability of the
community.
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Report of the Directors

EXEWE

The Board presents its annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
May 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Details of the business review are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 11 to 28.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
Group is a food and beverage and entertainment group
which is principally engaged in the operation of clubbing and
entertainment and restaurants business in Hong Kong.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by the principal
activities and geographical locations of operations for the year
ended 31 May 2020 is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 May 2020 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to
198 of this annual report.

The Directors did not recommend payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 May 2020.

INTEREST CAPITALISED
No interest was capitalised by the Group during the year ended
31 May 2020.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
No distributable reserves was available for distribution as at 31
May 2020 (2019: approximately HK$34,710,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association or the laws of Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a prorate basis to existing shareholders.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 May 2020 and up to
the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Sze Yuen

Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Kan Sze Man

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Sui Chi

Mr. Li Lap Sun

Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with articles of association of the
Company.

DIRECTORS ’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 29 to 34 in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management”.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester and Ms. Lau Sze Yuen, being
the executive Directors, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
7 April 2017 (the “Listing Date”) and shall continue thereafter
unless terminated by either party giving to the other not less
than three months’ notice in writing.

Each of Mr. Kan Sze Man, being the non-executive Director
and Mr. Wong Sui Chi, Mr. Li Lap Sun and Mr. Ng Kwok Kei
Sammy, being the independent non-executive Directors, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date and shall
continue thereafter unless terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray, being the executive Director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 2 November 2018 and shall
continue thereafter unless terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than three months’ notice in writing.
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Report of the Directors

EXEWE

None of our Directors, including those proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, has entered or
has proposed to enter into any service agreement or letter of
appointment with us or any other members of the Group, which
is not expired or not determinable by us or any member of the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The following is updated information of the Directors required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing
Rules:

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester has ceased to act as an
authorised representative of the Company (the “Authorised
Representative”) and Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray has been
appointed as the Authorised Representative with effect from 24
April 2020.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for
a specific terms subject to the relevant provisions of the articles
of association of the Company or any other applicable laws
whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their office.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 May 2020, Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester and Mr. Ng Shing
Chun Ray, executive Directors had the following interests in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Report of the Directors
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R2020F5 8318 * ITEERMASLERRHE
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Number of shares

and underlying Percentage of

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of Interest shares shareholding Vote 7)
EEpE B Rt IR R AEEE R B B IR (T
Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester (Note 2) Interest in controlled corporation 371,520,000 46.44%
RIBAR S H22) R EE R

Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray Beneficial owner 15,500,000 1.94%
RAECKRLE BHEAA

Notes: Notes:

1. As at 31 May 2020, the Company had 800,000,000 Shares in issue. 1. 720205318 + A2 FE 47800,000,000/% i 15 °
2. The entire issued share capital of Aplus Concepts Limited is wholly- 2. Aplus Concepts Limited #)2 &2 TR AN R 4B1H &

owned by Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester. Therefore, Ng Shing Joe Kester is
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by Aplus
Concepts Limited under the SFO.

During the year ended 31 May 2020, there were no debt
securities issued by the Group at any time. Save as disclosed
herein, as at 31 May 2020, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company or their associates had any interests
and short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which each of them has taken or
deemed to have taken under the provisions of the SFO); or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered into the register referred to therein; or which were
required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

S2EHAE - Flt - REZFHSRBAEEM - REBHELE
A8 A% B Aplus Concepts Limited Fri#E R £ B A%
PERER o

HZE2020F5 A31H ILF[E - ANEEBENT[E
MEITERES - BRAFRAMTEEIN - 72020
F5A318 EERARAEBITHRAERFEEH
8 AERAR QTSI AEEEE (T RES
K ERE&GIEE XV &8 RER I - MREIR () k&g
B BERBEFESRBAEGGIEXVIBETRED
EAME RN R R AR EE AR (B
RIEBHFRBEGNINBEEXEESEHE EX
REEBNERIAR)  JIRIBEEF AT KD
F 35215 /BRC BRI RZ I P B R I N AT A 2 K.
KB HIRIE GEM EMRRIZ5.46E5.67 1578
SARRNE LRI ERERZ AR ©
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Report of the Directors

EXEWE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERRREMATARATRG - HER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN I REREEFNEERAR

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY

To the best of Directors’ knowledge, as at 31 May 2020, the FtESZFTEA » 7H2020F5831H » U NIEER (I
following shareholders (other than our Directors and chief FEEEFH AR AIZRSITHAB )RAR R EITE
executives of the Company) had interests of 5% or more in {3 s iHBIAL(D5% s A LR B RIE A L HIEF
the issued shares or underlying shares of the Company which {5l 55 XV #F 552 K 35 S 5 X /BRI AN A &) K Bt 22 B i
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock BEHEFSARSEALIENBIREES NS K
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV 5336167 B &2 MmekEs -

of the SFO or which are recorded in the register required to be

kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company RAEATRGBHNFER
Percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Number of shares  shareholding (e /)
wE/E8 S/ EREitE RHEE BET oY
Aplus Concepts Limited (Vote 2) (fiiz2) Beneficial owner 371,520,000 46.44%
ERAA
Louey Andrea Alice (Vote 3) Interest of spouse 371,520,000 46.44%
T WE B
Chung Cho Yee, Mico (Note 4) Interest in controlled corporation 159,180,000 19.90%
ErEhay LR
Digisino Assets Limited (Note 4) (#7:4) Interest in controlled corporation 159,180,000 19.90%
LR
Earnest Equity Limited (Vote 4) (#/:#4) Interest in controlled corporation 159,180,000 19.90%
LR
CSl Properties Limited (Vote 5) Interest in controlled corporation 159,180,000 19.90%
BARKBEIAEF R A R LR
Phoenix Year Limited (Vote &) (#:6) Beneficial owner 159,180,000 19.90%
ERAA
Notes: Bzt -
1. As at 31 May 2020, the Company had 800,000,000 Shares in issue. 1. FA20205%5A31H » AA A2 277800,000,000% B °
2. The entire issued share capital of Aplus Concepts Limited is wholly- 2. Aplus Concepts Limited #)2 &0 & 2 17R% AN B R 4518 5
owned by Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester. EREHE -
3. Ms. Louey Andrea Alice is the spouse of Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester. By 3. ERBRLTHAREHEENRE - RIEZFLHFLIPAEE
virtue of the SFO, Ms. Louey Andrea Alice is deemed to be interested in - BB LT WR ARG ERIEEAREY
the same number of shares in which Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester is deemed 164 AR A A BRI 8 B ID B9RERS -

to be interested under the SFO.
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4. Mr. Chung Cho Yee, Mico (“Mr. Chung”) owns the entire interest of
Digisino Assets Limited (“Digisino”) which in turn owns the entire interest
in Earnest Equity Limited (“Earnest Equity”). Earnest Equity and Mr.
Chung own approximately 47.87% and 0.03% of the entire issued shares
capital of CSI Properties Limited, respectively. Therefore, Mr. Chung,
Digisino and Earnest Equity are deemed to be interested in the same
number of shares held by CSI Properties Limited under the SFO.

5. CSI Properties Limited is deemed to be interested in the same number
of shares held by Phoenix Year Limited under the SFO.

6. The entire issued share capital of Phoenix Year Limited is wholly- owned
by CSI Properties Limited.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 May 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, save as the directorship of Mr. Kan Sze Man,
a non executive director, in Surplus King Hotel Enterprises
Limited (a company incorporated in Hong Kong) which is
principally engaged in the operation of a hotel including an all-
day dining restaurant and a bar, the Directors, including the
independent non-executive Directors, are not aware of any
business or interest of the Directors, the management of the
Company and their respective close associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) that compete or may compete
with the business of the Group and any other conflict of interest
which any such person had or might have with the Group. On
14 March 2017, Aplus Concept Limited and Mr. Ng Shing Joe
Kester (collectively the “Controlling Shareholders”) have
entered into with and in favour of the Company (for itself and
as trustee for its subsidiaries) the deed of non-competition
(the “Deed of Non-competition”). The Company has received
an annual declaration from the Controlling Shareholders in
respect of their full compliance with the terms of the Deed of
Non-competition. The independent non-executive Directors
have also reviewed on behalf of the Company the compliance
with the Deed of Non- competition and are satisfied that the
Controlling Shareholders have fully complied with the terms of
the Deed of Non- competition.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There is no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 May 2020.
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Report of the Directors

EXEWE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 May 2020, the related party
transactions disclosed in notes 29 and 37 to the consolidated
financial statements constitutes the connected transaction
and continuing connected transaction, respectively and the
continuing connected transaction which fall within the de
minimis threshold under Rule 20.74 of the GEM Listing Rules
and therefore is exempted from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements contemplated under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors conducted review of the related party
transactions of the Group during the year ended 31 May 2020
and were not aware of any transaction requiring disclosure of
connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of
the GEM Listing Rules.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 199
and 200 of the annual report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 May 2020 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
which enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisitions of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and
the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 May 2020, the Group had 62 employees. The
Directors and senior management receive compensation in
the form of salaries, benefits in kind and discretionary bonuses
with reference to salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and the performance of the Group. The Company
also reimburses them for expenses which are necessarily and
reasonably incurred for the provision of services to the Group
or executing their functions in relation to the operations of the
Group. The Company regularly reviews and determines the
remuneration and compensation package of the Directors
and senior management, by reference to, among other things,
market level of salaries paid by comparable companies, the
respective responsibilities of the Directors and the performance
of the Group. Share options may be granted to respective
employees with outstanding performance and contributions to
the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended
31 May 2020.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

Employees are regarded as the Group’s most valuable asset.
The Group’s remuneration policy is determined based on the
employee’s experience, responsibility, workload and the time
spending for the Group.

The Group believes that direct and effective communication is
essential for the establishment of good relations between the
management and employees. The Group receives comments
and suggestions from employees through internal networks
and the suggestion box, and adopts and analyzes related
comments and suggestions, and rewards those providing
recommendations.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, the majority of
customers consist of retail customers from the general public.
As such, the Directors consider that it is not practicable to
identify the five largest customers of the Group for the year
ended 31 May 2020.
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Our Group purchased approximately 49.7% of its total
purchases from the largest supplier during the reporting period,
who have maintained business relationship with us since
2013. The largest supplier is one of the leading champagne
distributors in the industry and the credit term granted to us
was 30 days from the date of monthly statement. Detail of the
trade and other payables of the Group as at 31 May 2020 are
set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements. Up
to the date of this report, approximately 40.4% of the trade and
bills payables to the largest supplier has been settled. For the
procurement of bulk commodities or services, the Group has
set bidding programme with strict implementation.

The information in respect of the Group’s purchases attributable
to the major suppliers during the year ended 31 May 2020 are
as follows:

The largest supplier BAHIER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR ER B ET

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5%
of the Company’s issued Shares, had a beneficial interest in
any of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 May 2020 (2019: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 May 2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
sufficient public float under the GEM Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolutions passed by the Company'’s
shareholders on 14 March 2017 (“Adoption Date”) for the
primary purpose of granting options to eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include any employees, any
executives, non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executives Directors), suppliers, customers, advisers and
consultants of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under
the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (excluding
options lapsed pursuant to the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company) must not exceed 80,000,000 shares,
representing approximately 8.3% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of the annual report.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued to each
eligible participant under the Scheme in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the issued shares of the Company
unless approved in advance by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.
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Any option to be granted under the Scheme to a Director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company
or to any of their respective associates must be approved
by all independent non-executive Directors of the Company
(excluding independent non-executive Director who is the
grantee). In addition, any option to be granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive Director of
the Company or to any of their respective associates which
will result in the shares issued and to be issued in excess of
0.1% of the issued shares or with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5,000,000 within any 12-month period is subject
to approval by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of options under the Scheme may be
accepted within 21 days from the date of the offer and by
payment of HK$1.00 as consideration for the grant of an option.
An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period as to be determined
and notified by the Directors to each grantee, but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of
option.

The Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on the listing date of the Company. The remaining
life of the scheme is seven years.

The exercise price is determined by the Directors and shall be
at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of the offer of grant of an option, which must be a
trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer of grant of an option; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

No options have been granted, exercised, cancelled and
lapsed under the Scheme since its adoption.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the year ended 31 May 2020 and up to the
date of this Directors’ Report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
directors of the Company (whether made by the Company
or otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the
Company).
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AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2020
have been audited by BDO Limited and a resolution for the re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09(c) of the GEM Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of
Stock Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the
Company at www.bcigroup.com.hk.

By order of the Board

Ng Shing Joe Kester
Chairman

26 August 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR E

IBDO

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BCI GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(SMEEHERLE)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BCI
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to
198, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 May 2020, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 May 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B/ A% BN R

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3(c) to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that the Group sustained a loss
of HK$36,494,000 during the year ended 31 May 2020,
and as at the end of the reporting period, the Group's net
current liabilities and net liabilities were HK$20,562,000 and
HK$22,457,000 respectively. These conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in note 3(c) to the consolidated financial
statements, indicate that the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets

As of 31 May 2020, property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets of approximately HK$6,690,000 and HK$5,293,000,
respectively, were relating to a cash-generating unit engaged in
the operation of clubbing, entertainment and catering business
in Hong Kong.

The Group recorded the loss for the year ended 31 May 2020.
The current economic environment and the impact of COVID-19
pandemic since early 2020 and hence weak consumer
sentiment in the clubbing, entertainment and catering sectors
have created uncertainties. In the view of above, management
considered that indicators of a potential property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets existed at the reporting
date and performed impairment assessment by assessing the
recoverable amounts of each identifiable group of assets that
generate independent cash flows(“cash-generating unit” or
“CGU").
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The management performed impairment assessments of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets for each
separate identifiable cash-generating unit with the indication
of impairment using the value in use model and compared the
aggregate carrying values of the respective cash-generating
unit being assessed. Based on the impairment assessment,
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets of approximately HK$2,090,000 and HK$8,555,000
were recognised for the year, respectively.

Preparing discounted cash flow forecasts requires management
to exercise significant judgement, particularly in relation to
forecasting future revenue and estimating future costs, the
growth rates and the discount rates applied in assessing
the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit. An
independent external valuation performed by a management’s
expert was obtained in respect of the impairment assessment
on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets in
order to support management’s estimates.

We identified assessing impairment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets as a key audit
matter because the impairment assessments prepared by
management contain certain judgmental and subjective
assumptions which may be subject to error or potential
management bias.

Refer to Note 17 and 18 in the consolidated financial
statements and accounting policy in Note 4(l).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter:
Our audit procedures to assess impairment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets including the following:

° assessing management’s identification of CGUs and the
allocation of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and other assets to each CGU and assessing the
methodology adopted by management in its preparation
of the discounted cash flow forecasts with reference
to our understanding of the Group’s business and the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

° for each CGU by comparing the assumptions adopted
by management with the historical performance of the
Group, recent trends and externally available economic
data;

o Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competency, capability and objectivity.

° comparing the actual revenue and operating costs
for the current year to the assumptions adopted by
management in the discounted cash flow forecasts
for the previous year in order to assess the historical
accuracy of the management’s forecasting process;

° performing sensitivity analyses of the discount rates
applied and the assumptions for revenue adopted by
management in the discounted cash flow forecasts
to assess what changes thereto, either individually
or collectively, would result in a different conclusion
being reached and assessing whether there were any
indicators of management bias in the selection of key
assumptions; and

° assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the assessment of impairment
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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Provision for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) of trade and
other receivables

The Group had trade and other receivables of approximately
HK$10,326,000 as at 31 May 2020. The balances were
significant to the Group as they represented approximately
21.9% of the Group’s total assets on the consolidated statement
of financial position.

The collectability of the trade and other receivables are key
elements of the Group’s working capital management, which is
managed on an on-going basis by the management. The Group
determines the impairment of trade and other receivables
require the application of significant judgement and increase
complexity. It includes the identification of exposures with a
substantial deterioration in credit quality, and assumptions used
in the expected credit loss models (for exposures assessed
individually or collectively), such as expected future cash flows
and forward-looking factors.

We have identified ECLs assessment of trade and other
receivables as a key audit matter because the assessing ECLs
of trade and other receivables is a subjective area as it requires
management’s judgment and uses of estimates.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter:

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s judgment
and uses of estimates on ECLs assessment of trade and other
receivables included:

° reviewing and assessing the application of the Group’s
policy for calculating the ECLs;

o Evaluating the independent external valuer's
competency, capability and objectivity;

o evaluating techniques and methodology in the ECLs
model with reference to the requirements of HKFRS 9;

° assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information
used by management to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy of the historical default
data, evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information and
examining the actual losses recorded during the current
financial year and assessing whether there was an
indication of management bias when recognising loss
allowances;
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° evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls which govern credit
control, debt collection and estimation of ECLs; and

° discussing with management the estimates of the
recoverable amounts for those significant trade and
other receivables, including customers’ payment
history and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FORTHE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”) assists the directors in
discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the
terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

BCI Group Holdings Limited SEF&EEEARATF

REGAVTREE EFARNE EXRERE
i‘“ FEMEE S - AHEERE /RTT)EZE%EﬁiFZ“%« “EH
SR URERFEELE RS EN  RIFES

BEE REEERRGIHEE SRR HER
HERFR -

FENABEE HEEMHHREBE . BAT
BUZAR(BUERR)DIEFEOLELE

BB ET RN BERENEE

FHEBRRAERETERGEMBHRREE T
EEEEQHKE’W%%&W%&E’]E&ﬂéﬁ%%&ﬁ% i
HHHEEESEANZEEIRE - EFER BT
(fERBRE)IRR Tﬂ%fﬁ&i Bt 2 M AN E R
BEHMEHN - BEETERAREATAEMEMA
T8 J:EJZ%GEEH%E& °

éi%ﬁ%éi%%}mz* BETRREERREBEEEER
AT ER TR R A TN ERER
FR ﬁ ARERE PR AR SRR - i Y Sk EE B8
NERFERER TR EERERESAMERER
TEHE R ER - RIS E A RERAL -

BEEBETEETERS  EFERZEEH

B REESZERTHIFEXRRRE - BF

DINE

— BRIRGFHERE M BEmR AN AR
BB H E AR R - FE R E R
R RMITERZIEY  BERELEES
BERBRERTENE RIBMHEAR - BN
Edzg %%L wiE - WEER - RE
MERR A SOE B A ER ISl - Fb KRB IR &

Ik 38 B ) BB K 8 R Rt L R BE 2 3R
REERMEHHBRBRRAER B



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B/ A% BN R

— obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

— evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

— conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

— evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

— obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Wing Fai
Practising Certificate Number P05443

Hong Kong, 26 August 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e ZEBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2020 #Z202055A31H1LFE

2020 2019
2020 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Wiat FET FET
Revenue Wz 7 50,397 81,889
Finance income AW A 8 249 626
Changes in inventories FEzEE) (10,206) (17,739)
Other income and gains H AW A Sz 9 1,861 858
Expense related to short term lease/ %8 EATE EMHRIFI L /5L ATAR
total minimum lease payments BEBHERSEITRS
for leases previously classified as  [AAKEHECHEZ &
operating lease under HKAS17 RMEN KL 10 (777) (26,705)
Advertising and marketing
expenses EEkmigHEERS (7,310) (11,246)
Employee benefits expenses EERMAX 10 (16,939) (23,180)
Fair value change on financial
assets at fair value through profit 1R A FEFF AEBHEN S RVE
or loss ENTEES (15) 62
Depreciation of property plant and
equipment Y% - BEMERETE 10 (3,916) (3,942)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FREEETE 10 (17,537) —
Other expenses HEMAxZ 12 (15,665) (20,763)
Impairment loss on goodwill B EEBE 20 — (2,209)
Impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment ME - WE LR ERESE (2,090) (2,379)
Impairment loss on right-of-use
assets FREEERESSE (8,555) —
Written off of trade and other
receivables Hifh s 8 5 I B fth e R IR 10 (2,988) (1,243)
Written off of amount due from a il 315 e LAt B Bt 1 =) R IE
related company 10 (172) —
Loss allowance on trade and other & 5 Kz E{th fiE Ui 2R 18 /5 18
receivables & 19 (476) (862)
Finance costs BB KA 13 (2,485) (873)
Loss before income tax credit BRETISFIE R ATE 12 (36,624) (27,706)
Income tax credit FRISHE % 14 130 169
Loss and total comprehensive
income for the year FREBREEN B (36,494) (27,537)
Loss and total comprehensive
income for the year attributable ITATEEFABERE
to: E 4858
— Owners of the Company . YNGIEZ=PN (35,704) (26,780)
— Non-controlling interests —IEERR R (790) (757)
(36,494) (27,537)
Loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company RAEHEE ANEILEREE
— Basic and diluted —EAXRREE HK(4.46) cents HK(3.35) cents
16 (4.46) B4 (3.35) 71l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

AS AT 31 MAY 2020 42020558315

2020 2019
2020 20194
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FEIT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment I E Y 17 6,690 12,933
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18 5,293 —
Prepayment for acquisition of BT - BB MRimTE
property, plant and equipment ~5RIE 19 — 330
Other receivables HAtb EUGRIA 19 — 6,061
11,983 19,324
Current assets MENEE
Inventories ¢¥‘b 21 522 694
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A EWGRIA 19 11,149 8,766
Financial assets at fair value TZ%Q?TE:#)\T‘E S H) 5 Bl
through profit or loss BE 22 — 12,991
Amount due from a related
company FEU BN A I 5RIE 23 — 26
Cash and cash equivalents Iﬁﬁ&fﬁfﬁﬁf,\% 24 6,424 20,311
Restricted bank deposits ZR BRI TIER 25 17,038 9,473
Tax recoverable AT EI R IR 10 —
35,143 52,261
Current liabilities nEEE
Trade and other payables f’f%&ﬁf@ﬁiﬁ%\ﬁ 26 21,843 16,463
Amount due to a related company & RERE A FIFIE 23 136 —
Contract liabilities EHaE 27 582 2,088
Bank borrowings RITIERK 28 17,035 31,091
Amounts due to directors FENEERIA 30 539 668
Lease liabilities HEAE 18 15,570 —
Current tax liabilities BEATR IR B 1R — 173
55,705 50,483
Net current (liabilities)/assets nEN(BE)/EEFH (20,562) 1,778
Total assets less current liabilities #AEZEERREEE (8,579) 21,102
Non-current liabilities FREBEME
Other payables H e 5RIE 26 — 2,065
Loan from a shareholder KE—BREZER 29 13,878 5,000
13,878 7,065
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e PR R

AS AT 31 MAY 2020 #2020%5H31H

2020 2019
2020 20194
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Kzt FAETT FHET
Net (liabilities)/assets F(EE) EE (22,457) 14,037
Equity s
Share capital &N 31 8,000 8,000
Reserves = 32 (27,888) 7,816
Equity attributable to owners of the
Company NAREEB AEGREE (19,888) 15,816
Non-controlling interests FEFE A 33 (2,569) (1,779)
Total (deficiency in assets)/equity #B(EEESH) /R (22,457) 14,037
On behalf of the board of directors REEED

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester
REBERE
Director

EZE

Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray

RAEKELE
Director
Ea
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HRERBETR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2020 #Z20205H31HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KDREB AN
Non-
Share Share Accumulated controlling
capital premium# losses# Total interests Total
BE  REORE# BB Bt FERER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
(Note 31)  (Note 32(a))  (Note 32(c)) (Note 33)
(hi#31) (Mi232(8)  (Wi320c)) (H1:233)
At 1 June 2018 #2018E6 418 8,000 56,525 (21,929) 42,596 (1,022) 41574
Loss and total comprehensive R 1E R 2 Hlas
income for the year ek — — (26,780) (26,780) (757) (27,537)
At31May 2019and 1June  R2019F5A31A %
2019 2019456818 8,000 56,525 (48,709) 15,816 (1,779) 14,037
Loss and total comprehensive XA R 2 Hlas
income for the year kA — — (35,704) (35,704) (790) (36,494)
At 31 May 2020 R20205 8318 8,000 56,525 (84413)  (19,888) (2,569) (22,457)
# The total of these balances represents “reserves” in the consolidated ~ # ZEREBOEBIERAMERRRP O EE]

statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2020 #Z202055A31H1LFE

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities E& EBHMEBHREERE
Loss before income tax credit FREFIS I R BB R (36,624) (27,706)
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of property, plant and WE  BEMEETE
equipment 3,916 3,942
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 17,537 —
Bank interest income RITH BULA (423) (419)
Finance costs RIE R AN 2,485 873
Exchange loss B 3 518 55 18
Written off of property, plant and MBI - B RaEE
equipment 789 1,268
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEYE - BEMEEEE
and equipment 128 —
Gain relating to the lease termination BRAHEEXR FlE (130) —
Loss allowance on trade and other B 5 R EMERFIE R E
receivables 476 862
Fair value change on financial assets ~ H AP EFABZEHNESREER
at fair value through profit and loss FEZE) 15 (62)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE — 2,209
Impairment loss on right-of-use FRAEEERBESE
assets 8,555 —
Impairment loss on property, plant Y - WEKEEREEE
and equipment 2,090 2,379
Written off of trade and other MHE 5 Kk EAb FEIGRIE
receivables 2,988 1,243
Written off of amount due from a il 35 P s A B R B 5RIE
related company 172 —
Provision of long service payment REARRTS 1 SR — 62
Provision of annual leave F R (110) —
Operating profit/(loss) before EEESBEAISERN(HE)
working capital changes 1,919 (15,331)
Decrease in inventories FERD 172 81
Decrease in trade and other B 5 N HE M BRI
receivables 295 2,258
Decrease in financial assets at fair BEATEFABENSREERD
value through profit or loss 12,921 7,043
(Decrease)fincrease in amount due to  FEBABS R AIFRIAECRA) /480
a related company (10) 56
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 & H fih e < FRIEIE hN 5,931 3,354
(Decrease)/increase in contract EHaBECRD), HEn
liabilities (1,506) 2,088
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to  FENESEFIECH L),/ 18N
directors (129) 668
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Fa= EEaEEZLHLEEE%EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2020 #Z20205H31HLFE

2020 2019
2020F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash generated from operations R FTEE S 19,593 217
Income tax (paid)/refunded B,/ REME (53) 1,020
Net cash generated from operating &% EEFTEH LT
activities 19,540 1,237
Cash flows from investing activities REFEFERERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE  WERREE
equipment (622) (11,747)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEREFBEATERIE
plant and equipment 20 —
Prepayment for acquisition of property, W% - BiE MR ETENZE
plant and equipment — (330)
Bank interest received EHERTTHLE 423 419
Net cash used in investing activities R & EB T AR S FE (179) (11,658)
Cash flows from financing activities BEFEFERERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings, RITE RIS RIB(BER)
secured 247,575 140,489
Repayments of bank borrowings, EERITER(BER)
secured (261,631) (140,065)
Proceeds from shareholder loan IR ESRFT1S 5KIA 13,776 5,000
Repayments of shareholder loan BEREER (4,898) —
Repayments of principal portion of EREERERSED
the lease liabilities (18,020) —
Increase in restricted bank deposits PR H SR 1 TIE RGN (7,565) (7,327)
_Interestpaid eEfe (2488) (873)
Net cash used in financing activities A& EBFTRIR &R (33,248) (2,776)
Net decrease in cash and cash RERBRESEBYRLD FE
equivalents (13,887) (13,197)
Cash and cash equivalents at FONRERASEEY
beginning of the year 20,311 33,508
Cash and cash equivalents atend of EXRBEERBLZEY
the year 6,424 20,311
BCI Group Holdings Limited SMEEERELT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

GENERAL

BCI Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands, as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies
Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands. Its shares are
listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its
registered office is PO Box 1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort
Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and
its principal place of business in Hong Kong is located
at Basement, Ho Lee Commercial Building, No. 38-44
D’Aguilar Street, Central, Hong Kong. The Company
is an investment holding company and the Group
is principally engaged in the operation of clubbing,
entertainment, catering business and securities
investment in Hong Kong. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 June 2019
HKFRS 16, Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment Features
and Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19, Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12
and HKAS 23 included in Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the
new revised HKFRSs and amendment to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group’s accounting policies.

—RER
SFIEEFRAR(IRARDIRERASE
SRaDEKET)EREHS MK LR
BEHREERAA - AROHREABERS
FrBR AR (TBRF]) GEM LT » AAF]
E RE B3 = R s ik 4 PO Box 1350, Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands * iE&HE
ZEEMB AN N BB IRECD 7 H138-44
RN EREWE - ARG A —HIRE
TRAFIRAEETEREBLLETF -
REE - BERRFFREER - XARI KA
MEARSEAl REE] -

RMBERBMBREER(EBMBERS

28 1)

(@) B EEBTEBMEREE
Al—RA2019F6 B1HAEN
FEVHHREENFE 165 - HE

FE(BRYERERERZEE)—
BEE23 - IS HEIENTEE
ESES

FEMBHREEANEIR(BRIA) -
HBamENEMEMNFE

BB GHEAZ10RUEHTA) - 3
BIiET - ERSEE

MABT BT BHRELEL2016FF
2017 F A B F EHUE 2 BB KR
HAERZEISE - BB SRS ERE
1158« BB LENFEI12RREE
S ERIE235R 2 ERT

BT XFTatE SN - NEERAFR]
FEVBREEA LB B RE
ERI(ERTA) B AR B W S5 R
WEEBRTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR MR

31 MAY 2020 2020F5H831H

90

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTD)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 June 2019 (CONTD)
HKFRS 16 — Lease

(i)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 — Lease

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in
accounting treatment for lease accounting,

2. RHUBBHER
28 ) (%)

SRR (EBMB®RE

(@) AN G E B
Bl—R201946 A1 H 43 (4)
F R R ARE 168 R

(i)

RNE BT ERF 16

R—HENZE

%}%Eﬁ“&i/ﬂﬂﬁm%ﬁﬁ
HESANSFTRES

primarily for accounting for lessees. It BEARME - EEWRAEA
replaces HKAS 17 Leases (‘HKAS 177), A c REARRELEE

HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease”, HK(SIC)-
Int 15 “Operating Leases-Incentives” and

FAEREN7TRIBEE I([F
BEERNE17H]) &
B(ERYHERERELZE

HK(SIC)-Int 27 “Evaluating the Substance ’;)—Eﬁmmﬁ)ﬁﬁféifﬁz%
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form BEEHE] BB(EB3
of a Lease”. From a lessee’s perspective, BZEg )—@E%w%ﬁ,@
almost all leases are recognised in the EHE—ERIREAE(EE

statement of financial position as right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, with
the narrow exception to this principle for
leases which the underlying assets are of
low-value or are determined as short-term
leases.

BEZEE)-—REBFE27H
[FHEP REE i{iﬁﬁtx%
E’JWAJ o EAEAAE
REBOHEE B’\Eﬁ’lﬂﬁ/ﬂ%m
ERREREEENEER
& - mit—RANEREH
EREREEEBEENKRE
ERREHIEE -

From a lessor’s perspective, the MEBAAE  SFHEEX
accounting treatment is substantially BOoRARBGERET
unchanged from HKAS 17. For details of 5 BB BN GEmEER
HKFRS 16 regarding its new definition F16HHEE E’J%ﬁm%f% )
of a lease, its impact on the Group’s AEBEHBERNTZEUR
accounting policies and the transition ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%i&%ﬁﬁﬂ%mﬂlﬁ
method adopted by the Group as allowed TRIFAREEMN CBET
under HKFRS 16, please refer to section EZFHE  B2EAKES
(i) to (iv) of this note. (i) 2 (iv) & -

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using REEFREARFTRE)

the cumulative effect approach and
recognised all the cumulative effect
of initially applying HKFRS 16 as an
adjustment to the opening balance of
accumulated losses at the date of initial
application. The comparative information
presented in 2019 has not been restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS
17 and related interpretations as allowed
by the transition provision in HKFRS 16.

BrEEERLR

EREBMBHMELRFE16
5% SR YA FER B B 4
ﬁAVFHi?/%Eﬁi‘“#Eifﬁﬁ'J*k
165 2 MR ZERER
‘%”TE’\E%‘EJrEﬂEE%Bﬁ?%EE’]ﬂ
B o ERBUBmEEDNE
165E BB IRX A FT T - A
SEEWEETI2019F LI
B MREBREBEELS
n+§gﬁlj 175)‘&*@?‘%@%%#&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

2.  ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRpBEBUBBREEN(EBUBERE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTD) R ) ()
(a)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective (@) BRWRHFETRETEBMEREE
1 June 2019 (CONTD) Al—m2019F6 A1 B4R (&)
HKFRS 16 — Lease (CONTD) BB HEEREI6H—HE
(%)
(i) Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 — Lease (i) FRANE B HIREERE16
(CONTD) H—HHE M2 (47)
The following table summarises the impact TREEEE BB B W
of transition to HKFRS 16 on consolidated HAER|E 165 £ M 201945
statement of financial position as of 31 A318 K&20194%F6 A1 B4R
May 2019 to that of 1 June 2019 as follows BMBRARNTZE (G N/
(increase/(decrease)): CR)) -
Consolidated statement of financial 201996 A 1HM4ERE B T%
position as at 1 June 2019 AR
HK$ 000
FET
Right-of-use assets HREEE 33,589
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MR (389)
Other receivables H At FEUGRIR (249)
Other payables (current) Hib R FIECRED) (2,538)
Other payables (non-current) Hib e RIE(GERE) (435)
Lease liabilities (current) HEAEBEORE) 19,504
Lease liabilities (non-current) HEBEGERE) 16,420
HK$'000
FET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Closing balance under HKAS 17 at 7201945 A31 A& B & ERIZE17
31 May 2019 SRIE N AIERR AR —
— Recognition of additional right-of-  — AR5 &8 8 73R &5 X BI| 25 165R M2
use assets under HKFRS 16 BINNEREAE 33,589

Opening balance under HKFRS 16 at 7201946 A1 AR &M 5 & 2R

1 June 2019 £165%18 N EIPIAA R 33,589
Lease liabilities HEAE
Closing balance under HKAS 17 at 7201945 431 A& B &1 ERIZE17

31 May 2019 SRIB N HIHAR AR —
— Recognition of additional lease ~ — RIEE BRI 5 5R & 2ERI 55 1655 1R

liabilities under HKFRS 16 BN EERE 35,924

Opening balance under HKFRS 16 at 7201946 31 B R & B I 753k & %8
1 June 2019 E1655H T EAIA R 35,924
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR MR

31 MAY 2020 2020F5H831H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BB BB REERN ([ FBMBERE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTD) 28l ) (&)
(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective (@) BT SIS BB EREE

1 June 2019 (CONTD)
HKFRS 16 — Lease (CONTD)

Rl—R2019F6 A1 R £ (#)
BB BHEERF16—HE
(#)

() Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 — Lease () FRANE BB R ERE 16

92

BCI Group Holdings Limited

(CONTD)

The following reconciliation explains
how the operating lease commitments
disclosed applying HKAS 17 as at 31 May
2019 could be reconciled to the lease
liabilities at the date of initial application
recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 1 June 2019:

Reconciliation of operating lease
commitment to lease liabilities

Fi—HERFE ()

AT SR R 201945 A
STEEAEAEEENET
SRR R A S T E AR R
201946 A1 BELR A Ak
MR MERH AR A
2 HEaENEEEER

REMEAEREERED
iR

HK$'000
FEIT
Operating lease commitments as of R2019F5 A31HMKLTHE
31 May 2019 HEHE 38,103
Less: short term leases for which lease & : FAEiR 20205 A31H 2
terms end on or before 31 May 2020 A2 M ETHE (777)
Less: future interest expenses R AR B (1,402)
Total lease liabilities as of 1 June 2019 1201946 H1HMF E & &4 %8 35,924
Analysis as: PR iv=1E
Current D 19,504
Non-Current JERED 16,420
35,924

The weighted average lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate applied
to lease liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial
position as at 1 June 2019 is 4.62%.

BrEEERLR

R2019F6 A1 B A BT
MRKERNHEGEA
B hnE 1 AR A S 2 E 3K
KK A54.62% o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTD)

2. BHMEBUBREE
28 ) (%)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective (a)
1 June 2019 (CONTD)
HKFRS 16 — Lease (CONTD)

(i)

Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 — Lease

(CONTD)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets
for own use as at 1 June 2019 comprises

A EBMBE®RE

RNFET ISR BB R E%E
Bl—A2019FE6 A1 B4 (&)
BB HREEREI6—HE
(#)

(i) RN B B IR ERE 16
Fi—HERFE ()
MR2019F6 A1HME AEE
AREAERBERRENTE

the following: A -
Right-of-use
assets
EREEE
Notes HK$'000
Hfat FET
Lease liabilities relating to JER BB B mEERFE 165
operating leases recognised RERMELEHER BN
upon application of HKFRS 16 HEAE 35,924
Add: b
Adjustments on property, plant P2019F6 A 1B YWE BB
and equipment as 1 June 2019 FBE TR (i) 389
Adjustments on rental deposits as  %201996 1B EZEH
1 June 2019 TR (if) 249
Less: Ve
Accrued lease liabilities relating  72019F6 A1 HERHEA
to rent-free period and B EETHE B B LA
lease payments increase EIEHAEN K
progressively over lease terms
as at 1 June 2019 (iii) (2,973)
33,589
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR MR

31 MAY 2020 2020F5H831H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BB BV BRELERN( FBMERE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTD) 2Rl ) (&)
(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective (a) FHRHFETCIETTBBHKEREE

1 June 2019 (CONTD) Al—R20195F6 B1 B A M (49

94

HKFRS 16 — Lease (CONTD)
(i) Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 — Lease
(CONTD)

(i)

Before the application of HKFRS
16, the Group considered
reinstatement cost as leasehold
improvement included in property,
plant and equipment. Based on
the initial recognition under HKFRS
16, such reinstatement costs are
estimate of costs to be incurred

EBRIBHEERFE165—HE (&)
()  FRAZENFHHEERF16

H—HENZE &)

i) RERABEMBRS
HRE165% 2 A -
AREEREERAR
SREEMERE(R
EME - BEER
')  REFBHH
BREERNFE16RNF
R RFEERA

by the lessee in dismantling and ThAEFA AR R K v
removing the underlying asset, BRBEE - BIRE
restoring the site on which it is MEAEMMESIME
located or restoring the underlying FAEREEZHED
asset to the condition required by 1R MG FT IR E HY
the terms and conditions of the A S0 s il 5 A B K
lease. Accordingly, HK$389,000 N o H it - 389,000
was adjusted to right-of-use assets. BITRABREERESR
=

Before the application of HKFRS
16, the Group considered

(if) REREBM KRS
MEB|E165EH © A

refundable rental deposits paid as SEHE AR EE
rights and obligations under leases EXRSRANEME
to which HKAS 17 applied under WHRRIBTEAEE

other receivables. Based on the
definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are
not payments relating to the right
to use of the underlying assets
and were adjusted to reflect the
discounting effect at transition.
Accordingly, HK$249,000 was
adjusted from refundable rental
deposits paid to right-of-use
assets.

BCI Group Holdings Limited SEF&EEEARATF

SR ERE TR
HEBR TR EE
- REBFBHBR
HRAE16E THE
RENEE  ZFR
T IFERFEHERE
ERNARR R -
78 1F th 58 B IA S R
BERHRRTE
itk + 249,000 7T
EHENAREHEE
e RHBRERESR
7= o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTD)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 June 2019 (CONTD)
HKFRS 16 — Lease (CONTD)

(i)

(ii)

Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 — Lease

(CONTD)

(i)  These relate to accrued lease
liabilities for leases of properties
in which the lessors provided rent-
free period. The carrying amount
of the lease incentive liabilities of
HK$2,973,000 under trade and
other payables as at 1 June 2019
was adjusted to right-of-use assets
at transition.

The new definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as
a contract, or part of a contract, that
conveys the right to use an asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. A contract
conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time
when the customer, throughout the period
of use, has both: (a) the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the identified asset and (b)
the right to direct the use of the identified
asset.

For a contract that contains a lease
component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, a lessee
shall allocate the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, unless the lessee apply
the practical expedient which allows the
lessee to elect, by class of underlying
asset, not to separate non-lease
components from lease components,
and instead account for each lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

RS BMBEREE

28 1) ()

(@) BRI RETEBUBREE
Al—R2019%6 B1 R £ M)
BAUBHEERF165—HE #)
(i) RN B B IR ERE 16

H—THE R 2 (%)

(i) G EFHFEHELEA
HMERERER
HMEvEFHES
EBER - R2019%F6
A1H - BZREAM
FEMZETZAE
HEBENKREER
2,973,000/87C * EE
RiBERFAEEEH
EERE -

A EBMBE®RE

(i)  FHEETE
RIBEFBYHHRELELE16
% HERERBE-HE
—BEEAER—REEE
FAEE) RN ARERRAE A
BHREBOEH - WEPR
ERHIA—H : (a) BRERE
FRE B EERSEXID
AR e (D) BHEHE R E A
ERANEE - MEHNERE
E—BEEARERCHEMNE
EEHFEIE -

e BHEEAKE D AN —
= Z EEIIMESERE
MREDHEHME - AHE
AFEATRE A RCER 72 B9 A B
BEEERMEREEK D
MAEBERRER K&
HWANRESEZSHEM
REb D - BRIEEEARAE
BRI E A AME ARIRE
MEEFEREZENCHEES
X BB R 0 P SR E AR KRR
o MESSHEEKED
KA/ HE R IR E AR AR
TEREBE—HEEKED AR °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR MR

31 MAY 2020 2020F5H831H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BB BB REERN ([ FBMBERE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTD) 28l ) (&)
(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective (@) BT SIS E BB REE

Al—m20195F6 A1 B M (4)
EBRIBHEERFE 16— E (&)

1 June 2019 (CONTD)
HKFRS 16 — Lease (CONTD)

96

(i) The new definition of a lease (CONTD) (i)  FHEFEZE®E)
The Group allocates the consideration REBERBHEL S VES
in the contract to each lease component B ERRIFHEE DB
on the basis of the relative stand-alone B ERBEOFRHRED
price of the lease component and the BT & ERERD -
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-
lease components.

(i) Accounting as a lessee (i) (EREAFANBI S5 EFE

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify
a lease as an operating lease or a finance
lease based on the extent to which risks
and rewards incidental to ownership
of a lease asset lie with the lessor or
the lessee. If a lease is determined as
an operating lease, the lessee would
recognise the lease payments under the
operating lease as an expense over the
lease term. The asset under the lease
would not be recognised in the statement
of financial position of the lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective
of they are operating leases or finance
leases) are required to be capitalised
in the statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
but HKFRS 16 provides accounting
policy choices for an entity to choose not
to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (ii) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-
value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term
less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset

and a lease liability at the commencement
date of a lease.

BrEEERLR

RIBEFBGERFETH -
EHAERBEHEEENRA
RE BT 75 ) R B % (2] ¥ 53 8 0
HEASAEANER - #
HESERKEHELRE
HE - WHEHEEEREEH
g - BIEEAREERRE
LHENHENRER S
X o ATHAWPHEARERA
TERAHEEE -

REFZBVHHREELE16
5 EHEE (TR EH
B EME) ARMBARN
RENMEREREEENMMA
ERE HEFEMBREE
AlF165R S ERIEH SRR
RIEE AEERTE () EBRE
HEENHEE R, k(i) 187
BERBEENHEELETE
At - REEBEETIE
BEEENRNRLKABHHA
EHOR12EANHERER
EHEEEMHERARE - &
ZEHERBNEENRE
REERRILEREH

AEENEERLS A HER
EREEENRHEERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTD)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective

1 June 2019 (CONTD)

HKFRS 16 — Lease (CONTD)

(a)

(7ii)

Accounting as a lessee (CONTD)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting
policy to account for lease liability); (ii)
any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct
costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the
lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories. The Group measures the
right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liability.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the
present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the date of commencement
of the lease. The lease payments shall be
discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group shall use the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

2. Eiﬂﬂélﬁﬁ?f B4

A ) (%

(a)

Tx%ﬁ%ﬁ‘T/

SRR (EBMB®RE
KBTI BB BREE

Al—m2019F6 A1 B M (#)
BB B HEERFE165—HE (&)

(7ii)

TERATIN B S5 REEE (18)
FRAEEE
FREEERKAER I
BeE: ()RR Es
122%%E(EJTY%E§TH§\,\
BARZEFHE): ()R
I%EJﬁ‘*EHHiZﬁLSEHZEH
ENFORETAERAE
1E% (i) A EE 2 EA
e EE KA ¢ K (iv) & A
Fhr R BBREEEENFTES
HE BRI EFTRERBR
RS E A 2 HETROAR - BRIE
RERATAREERFREMmME
A RERIFR o ANEEIZNK A
AR REHTE R AR
BEEEF2CAEEE I
REEaEZTNEFF=
ELL A% -

HERE
HERBEENEERKEBH
el AR S22 T B R IR 3R (B R
R IREEHERS
ZHE - ARENF fﬁﬁﬁ
M EBRIR o a0 A] BAF
ERHNE - QIR E RSB
HIZEEEN KRR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR MR

31 MAY 2020 2020F5H831H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BB BB REERN ([ FBMBERE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTD) 28l ) (&)
(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective (@) BT SIS E BB REE

Al—m20195F6 A1 B M (4)
EBRIBHEERFE 16— E (&)

1 June 2019 (CONTD)
HKFRS 16 — Lease (CONTD)

98

(7ii)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Accounting as a lessee (CONTD)

The following payments for the right-
to-use the underlying asset during
the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives
receivable; (ii) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date; (iii) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees; (iv) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that options; and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date,
a lessee shall measure the lease liability
by: (i) increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability;
(ii) reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made; and
(iii) remeasuring the carrying amount
to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future
lease payments arising from change in an
index or rate, a change in the lease term,
a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.

BrEEERLR

(iii)

TERATAN IS5 EFE (47)
THIBA A ANEEEEZ
FAEMNEERS A
REFMZHRERABER
3R (i) B RO AT ) E Uk
FAEERE: (\RTFE—EH
st R E 2 A B R E
(AR FE B E 2 I8k
bR &) ¢ (iii) A AR
BEEREHENZ S
(V) EEZERE ZITEE (M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTD)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective

1 June 2019 (CONTD)
HKFRS 16 — Lease (CONTD)

(iv)

Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has
applied HKFRS 16 using the cumulative
effect approach and recognised all the
cumulative effect of initially applying
HKFRS 16 as an adjustment to the
opening balance of accumulated losses
at the date of initial application (1 June
2019). The comparative information
presented in 2019 has not been restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS
17 and related interpretations as allowed
by the transition provision in HKFRS 16.

The Group has recognised the lease
liabilities at the date of 1 June 2019 for
leases previously classified as operating
leases applying HKAS 17 and measured
those lease liabilities at the present
value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at 1 June 2019.

The Group has elected to recognise all
the right-of-use assets at 1 June 2019
for leases previously classified operating
leases under HKAS 17 as if HKFRS 16 had
been applied since the commencement
date, but discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at the date of
initial application. For all these right-of-use
assets, the Group has applied HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets” at 1 June 2019 to
assess if there was any impairment as on
that date.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BB BV BRELERN ([ FBMERE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTD) 2Rl ) (&)
(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective (a) FHRFETLIETTEBHKEHREE

Bl—R20195F6 A1 £ (&)
EBYBHEERE165—HE (%)

1 June 2019 (CONTD)
HKFRS 16 — Lease (CONTD)

100

(iv)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Transition (CONTD)

The Group has also applied the following
practical expedients: (i) applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with reasonably similar characteristics;
(ii) applied the exemption of not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with term that will
end within 12 months of the date of initial
application (1 June 2019) and accounted
for those leases as short-term leases;
(iii) exclude the initial direct costs from
the measurement of the right-of-use asset
at 1 June 2019; and (iv) used hindsight
in determining the lease terms if the
contracts contain options to extend or
terminate the leases.

In addition, the Group has also applied the
practical expedients such that: (i) HKFRS
16 is applied to all of the Group’s lease
contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease”; and
(ii) not to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts
that were not previously identified as
containing a lease under HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTD)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group’s current intention is to
apply these changes on the date they become

RSBV BREEN(EBUERE
28 ) (%)

(b)

BB 1 RAERMBHRT,RIERT
BRUBREER

THIrT g AR B R 4R A M SR K
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effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

BERMBREEUEIRETEX)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

BRI ERE IR REB G RAEST (BFTA)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

EAMBREENENE - BRGEIERREEH
BHRERRETREIIA)

Amendments to HKFRS16

BERMBREENE16R(ETEX)

HKFRS 17

BRI BREENETH

Amendments to HKAS 16

BRI ERNE65 (BT A)

Amendments to HKAS 37

BRI EREITHREFTA)

Amendments to HKFRS 3

BB BREEUNEIRETEX)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

AN BREERNE T

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Definition of a business'
EBMEE

Definition of material’
BANES

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

MEEEHE

Covid-19- Related Rent Concession?

COVID-1913@E & B &2

Insurance Contracts®

Rigs4°

Proceeds before Intended*

BT RSB RIm AT uE

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract*

BITEHRp A

Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

HaEgEsE

2018-2020 Cycle*

2018F E2020F A

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®

BRNHREEUR10RREE G LB 28R (B A)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
June 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

5 The amendments were originally intended to be

effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018. The effective date has now been deferred/
removed. Early application of the amendments
continues to be permitted.
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3.

102

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the "HKFRS") and the provisions of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance which concern the
preparation of financial statements. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“GEM Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis. Except
for certain financial assets, which are measured
at fair values as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTD)

(c)

Going concern assumption

The Group continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing its consolidated
financial statements. During the year, the
Group sustained a net loss of approximately
HK$36,494,000 (2019: HK$27,537,000) and
at the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
net current liabilities and the net liabilities were
HK$20,562,000 (2019: net current assets of
HK$1,778,000) and HK$22,457,000 (2019:
net assets of HK$14,037,000) respectively. In
addition, the operation of the Group’s clubbing,
entertainment and catering business has been
hit by the third waves of new, untraceable
local Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19") cases,
a series of precautionary and social distancing
measures have been implemented by the Hong
Kong Government starting from 15 July 2020.
The limitations are currently in place for the
group gatherings, dining in at the restaurant
and further mandatory closure orders including
gyms, sports grounds and bars. This situation
created uncertainties in relation to the financial
performance of the Group.

These events or conditions indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, and therefore that it
may be unable to realise its assets and discharge
its liabilities in the normal course of business.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTD) 3. R EZE ()
(¢) Going concern assumption (CONTD) (c) HELERREW®

104

BCI Group Holdings Limited

In view of these circumstances, the Directors of
the Company have given careful consideration of
the liquidity and future cash flows of the Group in
assessing whether the Group will have the ability
to continue as a going concern. For this purpose,
management has prepared a cash flow forecast,
which covers a period of 18 months from the year
end date of 31 May 2020, that takes account of
the following:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The raise of additional working capital of
approximately HK$20,334,000 upon the
completion of the Placing on 18 August
2020 (Note 45);

As at 31 May 2020, the Group had undrawn
loan facility granted by a shareholder for an
amount of HK$11,122,000 from a total of
HK$25,000,000 out of which HK$13,878,000
was already drawndown (Note 29). The
Group will further utilise this facility to
support its liquidity needs. In respect of
the drawndown amount, the shareholder
further undertook that he will not request
the Group to repay the outstanding
amount of HK$13,878,000 until the Group
is in position to repay;

Communicated with the lending bank
and considered that the bank would
not exercise its discretionary rights
to demand immediate repayment of
the bank borrowings of approximately
HK$17,035,000 (Note 28) as long as the
restricted bank deposits are maintained;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTD)

(c)

(d)

Going concern assumption (CONTD)

(iv)  Implementing various cost tightening and
control measures, including reviewing
the working procedures and refining
the business strategies to cope with
the continuing challenges, which in
management’s view, offers a more cost-
competitive advantage; and

(v) The different possible outcomes of the
COVID-19 pandemic and its impact to the
cash flow forecast.

Based on the above, the Directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations
over the forecast period. Accordingly, the
Directors considered that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be
made to reduce the values of the assets to their
net realisable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to classify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities respectively. The effects of these
potential adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the same as the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousands, except when
otherwise indicated.

3. mBEE ()

(c)

(d)

FEEERR®

(iv) EmSERARLERZEHE
i BRERE TERRF Rk
ZETSRRE A EE Bk
B EEEBRA/UBREHT
FARKHEFINNES &

(v)  COVID-19& [ A gE#s sk Y A~
RFHREEHRERETEN

S/ 480
R ©

ZRE| LafEi - AAREERAS
AEBFEERREEES - £BR
HRRHEEEES RBETMBR
£ Flt EERRRIFBELEE
EREUZ AV RERIBEE

RRAEEEEFELE  A5E
HELREANRVEEBEEAE
WEE RURELNE-—TARB
FHERE  BERDEERAED
MoBRRBEEMRAE - ZFA
EERBNFZEL RRRNGE M
o

HHER2IEHE
mAaMBRRAET(TET])E
5l BANAE R ENE QR EE
EHER - BRIEREBHA  EE
EEEITT -

2020 Annual Report F 3§

105



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR MR

31 MAY 2020 2020F5H831H

4.

106

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries ("the Group"). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred,
in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition
or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer.
The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree, if any, is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and
the resulting gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the
non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (CONTD)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the
extent that they arise from new information
obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition
date) about the fair value at the acquisition date.
All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability
are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the gain or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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4.

108

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

(b)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: (1) power
over the investee, (2) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and (3) the
ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be a
change in any of these elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the
Company has the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee without holding
the majority of the voting rights. In determining
whether de-facto control exists the Company
considers all relevant facts and circumstances,
including:

The size of the Company’s voting rights relative
to both the size and dispersion of other parties
who hold voting rights;

Substantive potential voting rights held by the
Company and other parties who hold voting
rights;

Other contractual arrangements; and

Historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries

are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend received and receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities exceed the aggregate of the fair value
of consideration paid, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwiill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount
with its recoverable amount (see note 4(l)), and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired.
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4.

110

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

(c)

(d)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Goodwill (CONTD)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial
year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit.
However, the loss allocated to each asset will not
reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount
to below its fair value less cost of disposal (if
measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of property, plant
and equipment includes its purchase price and
the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

(d)

(e)A

Property, plant and equipment (CONTD)
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
so as to write off their cost net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives
on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. The principal annual rates are
as follows:

20% and the lease term,
whichever is the shorter
20%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is
higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and its
carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or
loss on disposal.

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
June 2019)

All leases (irrespective of they are operating
leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity
to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are
short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases
for which at the commencement date have
a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have
been expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

(e)A

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
June 2019) (CONTD)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below
for the accounting policy to account for lease
liability); (ii) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessees in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories. The Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-
to-use assets at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable; (ii)
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date; (iii) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price
of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

(e)A

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
June 2019) (CONTD)

Lease liability (CONTD)

Subsequent to the commencement date,
the Group measures the lease liability by:
(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease
payments arising from change in an index or
rate, a change in the lease term, a change in the
in substance fixed lease payments or a change
in assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the leaser transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as the lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets at their fair value or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding lease commitment
is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The
interest element is charged to profit or loss over
the period of the lease and is calculated so that
it represents a constant proportion of the lease
liability. The capital element reduces the balance
owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating
leases are recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over
the term of the lease.

The land and buildings elements of property
leases are considered separately for the
purposes of lease classification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)
(e)B Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31

May 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the leaser transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as the lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets at their fair value or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding lease commitment
is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The
interest element is charged to profit or loss over
the period of the lease and is calculated so that
it represents a constant proportion of the lease
liability. The capital element reduces the balance
owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating
leases are recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over
the term of the lease.

The land and buildings elements of property
leases are considered separately for the
purposes of lease classification.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)
(f) Financial Instruments

(@)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue.
A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured
at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or
convention in the market-place.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirely
when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies
its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest
rate method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit
or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)
Financial Instruments (CONTD)

®)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

(@)

Financial assets (CONTD)

Debt instruments (CONTD)

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”): Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are
measured at fair value through OCI. Debt
investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest
rate method, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss, or financial
assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, as
described above, debt instruments may
be designated at fair value through profit
or loss on initial recognition if doing so
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)
(f) Financial Instruments (CONTD)

(@)

(i)

Financial assets (CONTD)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity
investment that is not held for trading, the
Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s
fair value in other comprehensive income.
This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. Equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part
of the cost of the investments. Other
net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income and
are not reclassified to profit or loss. All
other equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair
value, dividends and interest income are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances
for expected credit loss (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables, contract assets, financial
assets measured at amortised cost and
debt investments measured at FVOCI.
The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date: and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result
from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD) 4. FEGSTHEE®)
()  Financial Instruments (CONTD) f ERIAE®
(i)  Impairment loss on financial assets (i) ZFREEZHEEE#)
(CONTD)
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate EHEEEEREEEEY
of credit losses. Credit losses are BERINKELET - EEEIET
measured as the difference between all BESHOPTENAEEZE
contractual cash flows that are due to the YW RELBENAEFTE
Group in accordance with the contract B zIRERERBE L E
and all the cash flows that the Group it E o ZEBAKKEE
expects to receive. The shortfall is then EREBERARIPIF X
discounted at an approximation to the BhIR ©
assets’ original effective interest rate.
The Group has elected to measure loss AEBDERBBYHRSE
allowances for trade receivables and EREORELETERB HIE
contract assets using HKFRS 9 simplified WERTE N A # & 2 B 18 B
approach and has calculated ECLs #H TTERELHEHREZE
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has BiEFTEEHEEEE - K
established a provision matrix that is EEEEVIERERNER BT
based on the Group’s historical credit loss EEBAEHRITENRER
experience, adjusted for forward-looking P - WIRETE AR E 2 A
factors specific to the debtors and the MHEZREEIRIZHE
economic environment.
For other debt financial assets, the REMEBEREEMS
ECLs are based on the 12-month TEEMEE BB T IR12{8 A 78
ECLs. However, when there has been a HZERIETE - R - B
significant increase in credit risk since F 06 LA PR & &L b @ = 15 N
origination, the allowance will be based B BB AR HITEEGEE
on the lifetime ECLs. EERELE -
When determining whether the credit EETemEECEERR
risk of a financial asset has increased B YA ERER S AKIBIE M
significantly since initial recognition EMEst B E EEER
and when estimating ECL, the Group AEBEeEEBELBAN
considers reasonable and supportable iR 2 R AR S % ) BN AT 1S
information that is relevant and available ZABNAIGEER o B
without undue cost or effort. This BENEFBZBEKESRD
includes both quantitative and qualitative HEEFHESHZEERTE
information analysis, based on the Group’s HER LS - WERIERE
historical experience and informed credit HER o
assessment and including forward-looking
information.
The Group assumes that the credit REBERRK @ WEHEE30
risk on a financial asset has increased X eRmEEMNEERRS
significantly if it is more than 30 days past AN o
due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)
(f) Financial Instruments (CONTD)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(CONTD)

The Group considers a financial asset to
be credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired
financial assets is calculated based
on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance)
of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets interest income
is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when the Group has no reasonable
expectations of recovering the relevant
financial asset in its entirety or a
portion thereof. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. The Group usually
writes off when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when
the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade
and other receivables and trade related
amounts due from a related company,
when the amounts are over one year past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice when appropriate. Any
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD) 4. FESTBER (@)
()  Financial Instruments (CONTD) f ERIA®
(iij)  Financial liabilities (i) Z2HEE
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, AEBRTIERBEELEL
depending on the purpose for which ENfERAaEsE - EA
the liabilities were incurred. Financial FEFAEZNEHEEY
liabilities at fair value through profit or SN FEE MK
loss are initially measured at fair value Al = S = VR b /N
and financial liabilities at amortised costs FEBAMES B EIEK
are initially measured at fair value, net of EtE -
directly attributable costs incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through B FEGA B E
profit or loss =3
Financial liabilities at fair value through BEAFEFABENESHE
profit or loss include financial liabilities EREFIFEECRAER
held for trading and financial liabilities R F R ERIEAT
designated upon initial recognition as at Bt AEzEmERE -
fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as i< Bt B &S 1E A5 E
held for trading if they are acquired WHE - BlesBRIFER
for the purpose of sale in the near B o HTETR(BEELHRA
term. Derivatives, including separated ATETR) S EARIEE
embedded derivatives, are also B BRIEZSETANETA
classified as held for trading unless they BREAHTE - HIFEFAE
are designated as effective hedging B EREEESTEERA
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities FER o
held for trading are recognised in profit or
loss.
Where a contract contains one or more e s BN ERA
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid APTETE - AIBMREE S
contract may be designated as a financial LRI TE BRI A AR AR
liability at fair value through profit or loss, @A RE WA
except where the embedded derivative PTET AN EKNIEESRIRE
does not significantly modify the cash mE S ARSI AR
flows or it is clear that separation of the PTHETEBIBRSN o
embedded derivative is prohibited.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)
(f) Financial Instruments (CONTD)

(iii)

Financial liabilities (CONTD)

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (CONTD)

Financial liabilities may be designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss if the following criteria
are met: (i) the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the liabilities or recognising
gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (i) the liabilities are part of a group
of financial liabilities which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy;
or (iii) the financial liability contains an
embedded derivative that would need to
be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise, except
for the gains and losses arising from
the Group’s own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to
the statement of profit or loss. The net
fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include
any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD) 4. FESBER @)
1) Financial Instruments (CONTD) f) E@MIAEE

(iii)  Financial liabilities (CONTD) (i) ZHEEE)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR A SRR 2 BB &
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEAATIRNERAE
including trade and other payables, bank BEESNEMERRIE -
borrowings, amounts due to directors, SRITIER - ENESHIE -
loan from a shareholder and lease liability RKE—BREHNEREAE
issued by the Group are subsequently ExToHERE  AER
measured at amortised cost, using the AERR R L E R ARG
effective interest method. The related B BANERAXERER
interest expense is recognised in profit or R o
loss.
Gains or losses are recognised in profit or EBERIEERIGEITHE
loss when the liabilities are derecognised B Wk BB RIB R AN
as well as through the amortisation R o
process.

(iv)  Effective interest method (iv) ERBFAFE*%:
The effective interest method is a method ERNEEDGESREE
of calculating the amortised cost of a 3 ® Rl B &2 B SRR R
financial asset or financial liability and B B R o B A B A A S A
of allocating interest income or interest BRXZHE  BEMET)
expense over the relevant period. The neEmEES B EEFFH
effective interest rate is the rate that sk (e A ) Be B B R 4T
exactly discounts estimated future WALET AR 2 RS WA LT
cash receipts or payments through the RZHE -
expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

(v)  Equity instruments v) REIA
Equity instruments issued by the RARFBEITZRATRR
Company are recorded at the proceeds Fr 15 8 P15 5K I88 B #2 3%
received, net of direct issue costs. TR B -

(vi)  Derecognition (vi) AR
The Group derecognises a financial asset EsmEERM o RKRS
when the contractual rights to the future e 2B KN EEER
cash flows in relation to the financial NECREEWEEME R
asset expire or when the financial asset REBBUBEmEERE5R
has been transferred and the transfer ZE R AER] - BIAREE
meets the criteria for derecognition in GRILERZSREE °
accordance with HKFRS 9.
Financial liabilities are derecognised when TRBERBEBEEOZEE
the obligation specified in the relevant AR - BUHSR B
contract is discharged, cancelled or BRI HERR ©
expires.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

(9)

(h)

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost,
and subsequently at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and
the laws that apply to the contract, control of
the goods or service may be transferred over
time or at a point in time. Control of the goods
or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date.
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4.

124

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

(h)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Revenue recognition (CONTD)

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control
of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the customer a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amounts receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a) Sales of food and beverages

Revenue from sales of food and
beverages is recognised at a point in
time when the customer takes possession
of and accepts the products. There
is generally only one performance
obligation. Payment of the transaction
price is due immediately when the food
and beverages are transferred to the
customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)
(h) Revenue recognition (CONTD)

(a

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Sales of food and beverages (CONTD)
The prepayment from the customers
in respect of the membership scheme
operated by the Group, which are
considered to be unearned at the
reporting date are shown as contract
liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Contract liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position until the credit
balances are consumed.

Revenue from services

Revenue from services (including tips,
entrance fees and cloakroom fees) is
recognised over time as the customer.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income is recognised at
point in time when the promotion events
have been held; the services have been
rendered, and it is probable that the
sponsorship income will be granted and
the amount can be measured reliably.

Entertainment income

Entertainment income is recognised over-
time when services transferred to the
customers. Payment of the transaction
price is due immediately when services
are provided to customers.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective
interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD) 4. FESHBE®
(h)  Revenue recognition (CONTD) (h) =R
()  Government grants ()  BF#HE

126

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Government grants are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the
Group’s obligation to transfer services
to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the
costs incurred to fulfil a contract when
those costs meet all of the following
criteria:

(a) the costs relate directly to a
contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can
specifically identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance
resources of the entity that will be
used in satisfying (or in continuing
to satisfy) performance obligations
in the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

(h)

)

Revenue recognition (CONTD)

(" Government grants (CONTD)
Contract costs (CONTD)
The asset recognised is subsequently
amortised to profit or loss on a systematic
basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to
which the cost relate. The asset is subject
to impairment review.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax
and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding
amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits,
deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised based on tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.
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4.

128

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

(i)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Income taxes (CONTD)

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax
amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through
sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income in which case the
taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or when they relate to items recognised
directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.
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e VI RR M
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

1)}

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by Group’s entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it/they operate(s)
(the “functional currency”) are recorded at
the rates ruling when the transactions occur.
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

()

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Foreign currency (CONTD)

On consolidation, income and expense items
of foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case,
the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All assets
and liabilities of foreign operations are translated
at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve (attributed to minority interests as
appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in
profit or loss of group entities' separate financial
statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net
investment in the foreign operation concerned
are reclassified to other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve relating to that operation up to
the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or
loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation on or after
1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in the foreign exchange reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)
Employee benefits

(k)

U]

(@)

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are
employee benefits (other than termination
benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in
which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when the services
are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following
assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

property, plant and equipment;
right-of-use assets; and

investment in subsidiaries
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

U]

(m)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets) (CONTD)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under the HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
to the extent that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under
that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset or cash generating unit (see Note 4(c)),
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or cash generating
unit.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the
acquisition, construction or production of any
qualifying asset which require a substantial
period of time to be ready for their intended use
or sales, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets.

Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on those assets is deducted from borrowing
cost capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

(n)

(o)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, which it is probable will result
in an outflow of economic benefits that can be
reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of
which will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

4. FESHBE®

(n)

(o)
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4.

134

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)
(o) Related parties (CONTD)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(il

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel
services to the group or to the
group’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

(o)

(9]

(@)

Related parties (CONTD)

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at
bank and in hand, and short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decision
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors
are determined following the Group’s major
product and service lines.

The measurement policies the Group use for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except interest income,
unallocated finance costs, and unallocated
corporate expenses, which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment, are not included in arriving at
the operating results of the operating segment.

4. FESHBE®

(o)
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 5. BEAESMHERATTFTERERZENEE
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY RR
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, fERAARE IE’]Aﬂ'EZMH—ir EEAM e
the Directors are required to make judgments, estimates BHMRKRESESHNEENBEREE
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets TEL HI T - & ;.‘I'&{E” oo ZEAHET R IEE
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other R TDIRB BT &R RERE BEENHEM
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are EZ=1E - ERERATEMEZ S M TR o
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from
these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed & lAﬁ%%Bﬁ;Zi‘;m st REEEBRK -
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates EEHEFTAUERT BRI AET HAR (W18 5T &
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is T B AR SMEFT KR R BARE (B ET
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the T B BNEA SRR EARE ) HE R o
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
(@) Critical judgements in applying accounting (a) FERETTBURRFTERRR M E
policy
()  Determining the lease term of contracts () EBTHAHZEERRALE
with renewal and termination options — BENEH ZH—F &8
Group as lessee RN
The Group determines the lease term as AEBEFTHBAMEE LT
the non-cancellable term of the lease, A JEEE G BB R FE IR AR T
together with any periods covered by RBEEMMRE 2 I EARE (fi
an option to extend the lease if it is AISIRMEEITE) S isiRERE
reasonably certain to be exercised, or any B2 1HE E FT R B 2 AT fA] R
periods covered by an option to terminate (& BHER T EITE)
the lease if it is reasonably certain not to
be exercised.
The Group has the option, under some RETHET » REHTE
of its leases, to lease the assets for %Tﬁ%ﬁﬁl\ﬁﬂﬁﬁfﬂ,\éﬁF $
additional terms. The Group applies ] & 58 R )l DA ST A 2
judgement in evaluating whether it /\Iiﬁﬁﬁ/ﬂﬁéi;e %ﬁé °
is reasonably certain to exercise the mims< HELEMEE
option to renew. That is, it considers all EREFRAFEREEITE
relevant factors that create an economic BEAE 2 AEEE X o IREA
incentive for it to exercise the renewal HEE - MHIRBEAEE
option. After the commencement date, THlC EREMHNIB /Rﬁm
the Group reassesses the lease term if (PlanZEFE R rEH & =2
there is a significant event or change in 2 /\ﬂﬁ(jﬂ_ﬁﬁ)ﬁﬁﬁg
circumstances that are beyond its control ZEEN  REEGEHTM
and affects its ability to exercise (or not THEH -
to exercise) the option to renew (e.g. a
change in business strategy)
136 BCI Group Holdings Limited SMEEERELT
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONT'D)
The key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere
in these consolidated financial statements, other
key sources of uncertainty at the end of each
reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

(b)

(@)

(i)

Impairment loss for trade and other
receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses of
trade and other receivables resulting from
the inability of the customers and other
debtors to make the required payments in
accordance with accounting policy stated
in Note 4(f)(ii). The Group bases the
estimates on the ageing of the receivable
balances, debtors’ creditworthiness
and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of the customers and
debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-
offs would be higher than estimated.

Impairment of financial assets
measured at amortised cost
Management estimates the amount of loss
allowance for ECLs on financial assets
that are measured at amortised cost
based on the credit risk of the respective
financial asset. The loss allowance amount
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows after
taking into consideration of expected
future credit loss of the respective financial
asset. The assessment of the credit risk of
the respective financial asset involves a
high degree of estimation and uncertainty
about future economic conditions which
have an adverse effect on debtors’
business, debtors’ creditworthiness,
the payment delinquency or default in
interest or principal payments. When the
actual future cash flows are different from
expected, a material impairment loss or a
material reversal of impairment loss may
arise, accordingly
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5.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 5., EASHHERMGAHTRERENTE
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY FRIR ()
(CONT'D)
(b)  The key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) B TREERZNEZFRRE
(CONTD)
(iii)  Impairment loss for non-financial (iii) FEHEEHEEE

138

assets

The Group assesses at the end of the
reporting period whether non-financial
assets suffered any impairment in
accordance with accounting policy stated
in Note 4(l). The non-financial assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds its recoverable amount.

AEENHRE HRIBIEN
4) FrE AT BUR LA IES Bl
BESGHBEAMAE- - &
BEEHRIBFAE ﬂE/T\é{F
E’UEEE@@&ETM&@&%E
B ASEgEMNIECHE
EEGHRBE - BEAK
B REABTARRERE
MERBEEMARE - ZE

The determination of recoverable amount e BN EHEERT
requires an estimation of future cash flows [EFIDEVN-Z RIS
and the selection of appropriate discount RAHEERBINREER

rates. Changes in these estimates could
have a significant impact on the carrying
value of the assets and could result in
additional impairment charge or reversal
of impairment in future periods, where
applicable.

Determining whether an item of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets is impaired requires an estimate
of the recoverable amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs, which is the higher of the value
in use or fair value less costs of disposal.
The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected or change in

SR ERE (2EA) -

BEWE BEERBAR
FEREEERBRGRER
B EEMBHEBRSE
A BRIz AU Bl & 78 (7R ME
BEIAFERLEREZ
BmE) HEEREES
EAREEMAFEHERSE
EBENEEZAKREEZRE
BEFTHEERUAFERE -
HMERARKREERED N
Hi - OB EH T ARKR
EREZEERBEREL
A EELEBARERAE
BREAME - BEERBAR

facts and circumstances which results FRAEEECReELEN
in the downward revision of future cash A E R E 2 FED R
flows, a material impairment loss may ERAMIEE17 5218 °

arise. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation for the cash-generating units in
respect of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are set out in note
17 and 18, respectively.

BCI Group Holdings Limited SEF&EEEARATF
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONT'D)

(b)  The key sources of estimation uncertainty
(CONTD)
(iii)  Impairment loss for non-financial

(iv)

assets (CONTD)

The impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets
during the year ended 31 May 2020 was
HK$2,090,000 (2019: HK$2,379,000) and
HK$8,555,000 (2019:HK$ Nil) respectively.
As at 31 May 2020, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets was HK$6,690,000(2019:
HK$12,933,000) and HK$5,293,000(2019:
HK$Nil) respectively.

Provision for reinstatement costs
Provision for reinstatement cost is
estimated at the inception of leasing
property with reinstatement clause and
reassessed at the end of each reporting
period with reference to the latest
available quotation from independent
contractors. Estimation based on current
market information may vary over time and
could differ from the actual reinstatement
cost upon closures or relocation of
existing premises occupied by the Group.
As at 31 May 2020, the carrying amounts
of provision for reinstatement cost are
approximately HK$1,630,000 (2019:
HK$1,630,000)

EXEHER AT IEERENTE
R (40)

(b) HHTEEERENEERRE
(i) FEHEEREESE)
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 5. BEAESMHERATTFTERERZENEE
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY HRIR(4)
(CONT'D)
(b)  The key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HHTEEERENEERRE
(CONT'D)
(v)  Useful lives and residual values of V) YE BERREHTEH

140

(vi)

property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful life and residual
value of an item of property, plant and
equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from
changes or improvement in production, or
from a change in market demand for the
products or service output of the asset,
expected usage of the asset, expected
physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or
similar limits on the use of the asset.
The estimation of the useful life of the
asset is based on the experience of the
Group with similar assets that are used
in similar way. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives
are different to those previously estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included
in the Group’s financial statements require
measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair
value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s
financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities utilises market observable inputs
and data as far as possible. Inputs used
in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based
on how observable the inputs used in the
valuation technique utilised are (the “fair
value hierarchy”).

BCI Group Holdings Limited SEF&EEEARATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONT'D)

(b)  The key sources of estimation uncertainty
(CONTD)
(vi)  Fair value measurement (CONTD)

(vii)

° Level 1: Quoted prices in active
markets for identical items
(unadjusted);

° Level 2: Observable direct or
indirect inputs other than Level 1
inputs;

° Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e.

not derived from market data).

The classification of an item into the
above levels is based on the lowest level
of the inputs used that has a significant
effect on the fair value measurement of
the item. Transfers of items between levels
are recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (Note 22)
at fair value. For more detailed information
in relation to the fair value measurement,
please refer to the applicable notes.

Going concern basis

The assessment of the going concern
assumptions involves making judgements
by the Directors, at a particular point
of time, about the future outcome of
events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain. The Directors consider that the
Group has the ability to continue as going
concern and the major conditions that
may cast doubt about the going concern
assumptions are set out in note 3(c).
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142

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker is defined as
executive directors of the Company. The Group has
identified its operating segment based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the Company’s
executive directors for their decisions about resources
allocation and review of performance.

The Group has two reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The Group has identified two
reportable segments:

° The operation of clubbing, entertainment and
catering business

° Securities investment

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers and other sources is as follows:

2 EBE R
TBLERRECEER/ARANNITE
E - AEERBAARFMNTEETERNZ
HANEIR D BORK Mg st KB/ RS
BERETEEN -

AEEEBMER 2R EF - HRNEXH
PTHR M B0 EE fm Ko AR 7% DA K% P 75 O 3R 75 SR i
A= WRFENETIARAERE - AEED
BRI E R 288D

. REGRT - RERERER

. EHFIRE

REERPRIN A G REMIRER S
DT -

2020 2019
20204F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue from contracts with EEBMEREERE1SFWEE
customer within the scope of T ' FEEBEFSHMKE :
HKFRS 15:
Operation of clubbing, e AT - IR R ERRET
entertainment and catering
business 50,397 81,889
Revenue from other sources:  REEARERIUA :
Securities investment BHIEE 249 626
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTD) 6. DEE R (E)
Timing of revenue recognised under HKFRS 15: RIBE BB E R F 155 2 R M=
BFfAE
Operation Operation
of clubbing, of clubbing,

entertainment and entertainment and
catering business  catering business

KA AT
RGN BERETS IRELT BERETS
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At point in time A2 44,317 73,938
Over time g s ] 6,080 7,951
50,397 81,889

2020 Annual Report F#§ 143



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR MR

31 MAY 2020 2020F5H831H

6.
(@)

144

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTD) 6. DEER (@)
Segment information about reportable segments (a) FEBEUEFIBHIBER
Operation
of clubbing,
entertainment
and catering Securities
business investment Total
e
IRERBREY BERE et
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
For the year ended 31 May 2020 & Z202055H31H
IEEE
Revenue from external customers INERER P U 50,397 249 50,646
Reportable segment loss Al 2| o EE (32,177) (764) (32,941)
Other income and gains E AU A R ezs 1,439 226 1,665
Expense related to short-term lease %8 EiFA & #ERART X (777) — (777)
Employee benefits expenses EERAMAX (16,939) — (16,939)
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ ~ &= K&
equipment E (3,916) — (3,916)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FFAEEERE (17,537) — (17,537)
Fair value change on financial AT ER AERR
assets at fair value through profit TREEANTEE
or loss =] — (15) (15)
Impairment loss on property, plant ~ ¥1% ~ = &R &R
and equipment EEE (2,090) — (2,090)
Impairment loss on right-of-use
assets FREEEREBSE (8,555) — (8,555)
Written off of trade and other i 3H 8 2 2 B e
receivables I8 (2,988) — (2,988)
Written off of amount due from a 88 PR U RS N AR
related company | (172) — (172)
Loss allowance on trade and other & 5 & H b FEUS B
receivables R 684 2 686
Other expenses HEMFAx (13,107) (299) (13,406)
Additions of non-current assets NEIEREEE (1,089) — (1,089)
Finance costs & AN (1,100) (927) (2,027)
As at 31 May 2020 2020%5H31H
Reportable segment assets A2WmHEEE 25,149 18,721 43,870
Reportable segment liabilities AEmoHasE (36,229) (31,255) (67,484)
BCI Group Holdings Limited SMEEERELT
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTD)
Segment information about reportable segments

(CONT'D)

6.

2 RPE R ()

(a) FRUZHESBHIBER (#)

Operation
of clubbing,

entertainment

and catering Securities
business investment Total
REEFT
MR BRER BERE st
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
T FET FET
For the year ended 31 May 2019 & Z201945H31H
IEFEE
Revenue from external customers NS 81,889 626 82,515
Reportable segment (loss)/profit AI2HmoE(EE),
ikl (22,777) 334 (22,443)
Other income EHAauA 445 282 727
Total minimum lease payments for LIRS AT
leases previously classifies as A7 DR E
operating lease under HKAS 17 EHEE N &IEM
B (26,705) — (26,705)
Employee benefits expenses EERAMAX (23,180) — (23,180)
Depreciation of property, plantand ¥ - BiE K&
equipment B (3,942) — (3,942)
Fair value change on financial AT ERT ABRA
assets at fair value through profit CREEATEE
or loss &) — 62 62
Impairment loss on goodwill R EEE (2,209) — (2,209)
Impairment loss on property, plant ~ ¥1% ~ = &R &R
and equipment EE1E (2,379) — (2,379)
Written off of trade and other 3 5 5 N B fth e Y
receivables I8 (1,243) — (1,243)
Loss allowance on trade and other & 5 K& H b FEUS B
receivables E R (650) 2) (652)
Other expenses HibAx (33,467) (56) (33,523)
Additions of non-current assets NEIEREEE (13,479) — (13,479)
Finance costs BhE KA — (578) (578)
As at 31 May 2019 A2019F5H31H
Reportable segment assets Al 2|y EE 26,852 29,821 56,673
Reportable segment liabilities AEmoHaE (19,886) (26,269) (46,155)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTD) 6. DEBER (E)
(b)  Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit (b) TEFAITWEBR EERE
or loss, assets and liabilities BEER
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Loss before income tax credit MRFTBBIERAIEE
Reportable segment loss Al 25 & EE (32,941) (22,443)
Other income and gains E AN Wz 196 131
Loss allowance on trade and other
receivables 5 REM RN IEE B (1,162) (210)
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBERSE (2,259) (4,889)
Finance costs BRE A (458) (295)
Loss before income tax credit BrETIS R IR S BB 18 (36,624) (27,706)
2020 2019
2020F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FET
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AIZ2WMNFEE 43,870 56,673
Unallocated corporate assets RO FEEE 3,256 14,912
Consolidated total assets REBEE 47,126 71,585
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTD) 6. DEER (@)
(b)  Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit (b) TEFAHWKE - BR EERE
or loss, assets and liabilities (CONTD) BEER@E)
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Liabilities aE
Reportable segment liabilities A2{oEask (67,484) (46,155)
Current tax liabilities BEAfR B A fE — (178)
Unallocated corporate liabilities AP EAR (2,099) (11,220)
Consolidated total liabilities mERaE (69,583) (57,548)

BEEERTASENAELAE
7B MBIARSEMEZLSME -

Management determines the Group is domiciled in
Hong Kong, which is the location where the Group
principally operates. All revenue of the Group for the REERRE AR A WK
reporting period was derived in Hong Kong. All its non- A& MEMBIERBEEINL
current assets are located in Hong Kong. REB o

AN - IR ERISATEME] S - R
SENMEREFPHUNES - &
HE-FFPETR MM EEEASE
B AI10% s IA F o

In addition, the customers of the Group, based on the
locations at which the services were provided, are all
located in Hong Kong. No revenue from transactions
with a single customer amounts to 10% or more of the
Group’s revenue.
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7. REVENUE 7. &
Revenue represents the amount received or receivable a5 358 B on K8k B W ek FE IGRIE
from the sales of food and beverages, entrance fees, ABE - BRI - IREUTA K EH A -

sponsorship income, entertainment income and others.

Revenue from the Group’s principal activities during the REERMERAANFEEZBREOT :
reporting period is as follows:

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue from: AT IE B #YHES
Clubs and entertainment operation & Fff &2 124448
Sales of food and beverage BEmMkEimEs 36,311 57,357
Entrance fees A58 905 2,303
Entertainment income IREEUT A 4,520 4,510
Sponsorship income B 1,084 2,181
Others Hi 1,330 1,127
44,150 67,478
Restaurants operation BREEE
Sales of food and beverage B kfRmigE 6,221 14,400
Others Hi 26 11
6,247 14,411
Total revenue B 50,397 81,889
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7. REVENUE (CONTD) 7. s (@)
The following table provides information about trade THRIBEHEEFHEEZRKFEBEREFPEHE
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with BHEE} o
customers.
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Trade receivables (Note 19) B S EWGRIA(MFE19) 1,921 2,747
Contract liabilities (Note 27) aRaE(ME27) 582 2,088
Contract liabilities decreased by HK$2,088,000 (2019: FRAEXNEBERI 2,088,000 7T (2019
3,232,000) as result of redemption of the advance 1 3,232,000/87T) * TTHNEERFH
consideration received from the customers for sales of ERMERRERRRREKABERE
beverage and entertainment income and recognised to WZS ©
revenue during the year.
8. FINANCE INCOME 8. BE WA
2020 2019
20204F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Interest received from financial BUIE A BT AEZES
assets at fair value through profit £ EEEFI &
or loss 249 626
9. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 9. HitARWKz=
2020 2019
202045 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank interest income ERITHBUA 423 419
Government grants (note) BT B (B3E) 640 —
Charity subsidy REEEAL 240 —
Others Hin 558 439
1,861 858
Note: PREE -
The government grants represents subsidies of HK$640,000 under B EBEE ST RIBERMEREBETE ARER
the Food Licence Holders Subsidy Scheme launched by the Hong AR E/ N\ RREBERLLBREMBHHBARIET
Kong Government for the five Group’s subsidiaries, which holding light F4 AL640,00058 7T ©

refreshment restaurant license and general restaurants license.

2020 Annual Report F#§ 149



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR MR

31 MAY 2020 2020F5H831H

10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX CREDIT 10.
Loss before income tax credit is arrived at after

BRETSBIERATESE

BRETIS T R AT IR 0SB (%) A

150

charging/(crediting): TIER&EFH -
2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FET
Changes in inventories RERAINEECE
recognised as expense
— Clubs and entertainment ~ — & RIRELLE
operation 8,512 13,868
— Restaurants operation — BpEEE 1,694 3,871
10,206 17,739
Auditors’ remuneration Z AN & 479 739
Depreciation of property, plant  #1% - E LR ETE
and equipment 17 3,916 3,942
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEENE
assets 18 17,537 —
Gain relating to the lease MELR FWEE
termination 18 (130) —
Written off of property, plant  #fii5#9% - BE M &E
and equipment 17 789 1,268
Loss on disposal of property,  HEWE - WEMRES
plant and equipment B 17 128 —
Written off of trade and other il $5'& 5 & Etb fE U FRE
receivables 2,988 1,243
Written off of amount due from  Jifi# & Uk BE B A B 5118
a related company 172 —
Total minimum lease payments & ATAR IR BB ST 2R S
for leases previously 17RO ERGEHE
classified as operating HENSEEENR
leases under HKAS17 (note)  #B(Hi3E) — 26,705
Expense related to short term %2 HATA &R
lease 777 —
Staff costs (including BT (BIEESH)
directors’ remuneration (BFEE11)
(note 11))
— Wages, salaries and other — T& » & MHEMEF]
benefits 16,299 22,296
— Contribution to defined — REHFURIKET B
contribution pension plans 640 884
16,939 23,180
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31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTD)

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the cumulative effect
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 June 2019 to
recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. After initial recognition of
right-of-use assets at 1 June 2019, the Group as the lessee is required
to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the
previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this approach,
the comparative information has not been restated. See note 2(a).

10.

BRETEHRIERAEER (5)
UG

R2019F6 A1H - AEBEREBEARFTHEERE
ARRYESRE XERBBMEREEN165 - UHER
SRR BRI EAE1ITRAEACEHEEETHE
REEREERE - R2019F6 A1AVIAERERES
Bk AEB(EREEAN)ERREREEENE - M
RN NIRE R EEERACEEER TEEN
AERXBUR - BIFZE - WEERIAREG| o R
=$2(a)
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 11. EEFHRABRESFEA L
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(a) Directors’ remuneration (@) E=FHm
The remunerations of the directors of the RAREEFHMEHSAT -

Company are set out below:

Contribution
Salaries to defined
and other contribution

benefits pension
Fees (note a) plans Total
FeRHEM REHFCGRIK
we w\A(KMsEa) B B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET
Year ended 31 May #HZE2020%5H31H
2020 IEFE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester R#4BH 54 ([ R4
(“Kester Ng”) Al 82 35 4 121
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen 2B A+ 476 — 16 492
Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray ~ R#FZLA 307 26 14 347
Non-executive director — FEHiTEE
Mr. Kan Sze Man EREE 104 — — 104
Independent non- HUIHHITEE
executive directors
Mr. Wong Sui Chi Ebior e 104 — — 104
Mr. Li Lap Sun BT 104 — — 104
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy BRI E L4 104 — — 104
1,281 61 34 1,376
Year ended 31 May HZE2019%5H31H
2019 IEFE
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester R#4BH 54 ([ R4
(“Kester Ng”) Al 256 — 11 267
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen 2B A+ 554 — 18 572
Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray ~ RA#GE5E4 263 28 11 302
Non-executive director — F#7TEE
Mr. Kan Sze Man EREE 120 — — 120
Independent non- HUIHHITEE
executive directors
Mr. Wong Sui Chi mIm T 120 — — 120
Mr. Li Lap Sun AV ib 120 — — 120
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy {HBIE L4 120 — — 120
1,553 28 40 1,621
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11.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONTD)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ remuneration (CONT'D)
Note:

(a) Being salaries and other benefits paid or payable in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest-paid individuals of the Group
included one (2019: nil) director whose
emoluments are included above for the year
ended 31 May 2020.

The analysis of the emoluments of the remaining

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

ESFMRERRSHFMA L@
(@ ERHFM@
B -

(b)

(a) EHEBAARNENBLARERE
N R FE R EMmER]

TEBRSHMAL
KEFHZE2020F5A318 IEFE
MNAZERTMATBIE14(2019
F - EFHEIR EXHES -

BT 454 (20195 5B )&= EFBA

four (2019: five) highest-paid individuals were as THE BTN ¢
below:
2020 2019
202045 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and allowances e MoEEh 1,787 2,209
Contribution to defined FEHRFRIRETEIH IR
contribution pension plans 64 88
1,851 2,297

The remuneration fell within the following band:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000% 7T

BRAALHZFMNFIATHEE :

2020 2019
20205 20194
4 5

During the years ended 31 May 2020 and 2019,
no directors or any of the highest paid individuals
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors or any of the highest paid individuals
of the Group as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

B E20204 22019465 A31H 14
E B2 REAZERSHMAL
BERZEXBEREETABE - K
E@EBERNAEBERTRITMEZE
EEFA LTS - tEAKS
18 A0 A SR A0 2N 52 [ B A HE R
B AEE o
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 11. EEFMRERRESFMA L@
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONTD)
(¢) The emoluments paid or payable to members (c) #EZE2020FK%2019F5HA31HLF
of senior management during the years B eNfENESREEBREN
ended 31 May 2020 and 2019 were within the MENFUTEHR :

following band:

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2

12. OTHER EXPENSES 12. HMEX

2020 2019

2020F 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Professional fee BEEH 1,608 4,352

Security expenses REFX 1,303 2,700

Cleaning expenses BRE 1,685 2,456

Entertainment expenses IREARE 1,433 1,144

Repair & maintenance HIERRE 852 1,555

Bank charges RITEA 972 1,462
Written off of property, plantand  #i#4¥% - BiRE K&

equipment 789 1,268

Auditors’ remuneration 2% S5 S 479 739

Others EAth 6,544 5,087

15,665 20,763
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

FINANCE COSTS 13. ®ERAK
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FEr
Interest on bank borrowings, BHEIPRITERFE (FH3E28)
secured (note 28) 1,046 873
Interest on loan from a shareholder  B&ER & F 2 (fzE29)
(note 29) 339 —
Interest on lease liabilities (note 18) FAEB&EH A (HFE18) 1,100 —
2,485 873
INCOME TAX CREDIT 14. FE58iER

The Group is subject to income tax on profits arising in
or derived from Hong Kong, being its principal place
of business. The income tax credit in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

AREBEARNETBREXMHBELELX
REBBHENFRAER - FEEHEK
HmRARFEHIERIE

2020 2019
202045 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FET
Current income tax — Hong Kong  BIHAFREH — BHAENGH
Profits Tax
— tax for the year — FARIE — 4
— over-provision in respect of prior — BT EBEERHE
years (130) (173)
(130) (169)
Income tax credit FiSFi R (130) (169)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Group is not subject to any taxation under
the jurisdictions of the Cayman Islands. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits.

RIEREFENZERLMAM - AEEHBA
RASEERVAERBMEMNRE - B
MG I LG 5T R BE 712 16.5% HI B

o
IHHE -
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14. INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTD)

14.

FRrieBiE % ()

BEER XA EERRERAAERERRE
BOMSEHELRRERRERAENME

A reconciliation of the income tax credit applicable to
loss before income tax credit at the statutory tax rate

15.

156

to the income tax credit at the effective tax rate is as IR R EIRINT -
follows:
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss before income tax credit FrET1S I 0 B BT 18 (36,624) (27,706)
Tax at the statutory rate of 16.5% HEFERHE16.5% (20194 -
(2019: 16.5%) 16.5% ) st ERIFE (6,043) (4,571)
Tax effect of non-deductible AN AR 2
expenses 660 1,633
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBIN SRS 2 (216) -
Tax effect of temporary differences  RIERE M Z BN ST E
not recognised 2,302 —
Tax effect of tax losses not RERRIABENTRIER
recognised 3,355 105
Over-provision in respect of prior BT FE B
years (130) (173)
Utilisation of tax losses TiIEk 18 2 B (58) 2,837
Income tax credit Sl e (130) (169)

The Group has accumulated tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of approximately HK$57,986,000 as at the year
ended 31 May 2020 (2019: HK$38,004,000). Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of this
loss as it is not probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. The tax loss can be carried forward
in Hong Kong indefinitely. In the opinion of the directors
of the Group, there are no other deferred tax asset which
have a significant impact to the Group.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the years ended
31 May 2020 and 2019, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.
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15.

HE2020F5A318LFE - A&EEHEAR
R EBTIAREIE#957,986,000/ 7T (2019
F : 38,004,000/ 70) - AR E B SIE
R F B AR 22k Z o ELEFR B E
EBRLEBEBRNEEHIEEAET TE
R RMEBEINESERSESE - AEE
EERA TEHEHMEEHEEEHASE
EELEATE -

BRE

RABREZE2020%F K2019F5A318 1
FEBERE LRI RIRMNSERRN
BEE - T B R4 H AR DA SR IR s 3 R 5
fAIRE -
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31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

LOSSES PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Losses attributable to owners of the  ZRARIES AFE(LEE

Company

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose
of calculating basic losses per
share (in thousands)

The number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
calculating basic losses per share has been determined
on the assumption that loss attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$35,704,000 (2019:
HK$26,780,000) and on the basis of the weighted
average number of 800,000,000 (2019: 800,000,000)
ordinary shares.

The Company did not have any potential dilutive
shares for the years ended 31 May 2020 and 2019.
Accordingly, the diluted loss per share are the same as
the basic losses per share for the years ended 31 May
2020 and 2019 respectively.

RN ESRERERNER
P B (T A%)

RNFEEAELSRER
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(35,704) (26,780)
800,000 800,000

ATEEREAAEENLTRREE NRE
NEIHEA AL EEL35,704,0008 T
(20194 : 26,780,000 7T ) RER L@
A% hn#E S ¥5#800,000,000/% ( 20194 :
800,000,0000% ) & E °

B ZE2020%F K201965A31H LFE -
AARWESANAEHEENORD -
It 2 RIEZE20204F 2019454311 1E
FEMNSRESEHEEGRENEEAR -
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y¥ - BERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Total
HAE - #EB
HEWERE REE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Cost: R :
At 1 June 2018 R2018F6 A1H 15,451 8,807 24,258
Additions NE 10,435 3,122 13,557
Written-off s (1,212) (1,268) (2,480)
At 31 May 2019 MR2019F5H31H 24,674 10,661 35,335
Impact on initial application of ¥ #¥)#ERAE BB SRS
HKFRS 16 AERIE16EM R E (1,630) — (1,630)
At 1 June 2019 (restated) 20196 A1H (KL EFI) 23,044 10,661 33,705
Additions NE 870 219 1,089
Disposals RE — (242) (242)
Written-off s (1,006) (862) (1,868)
At 31 May 2020 #20205831H 22,908 9,776 32,684
Accumulated depreciation: R E :
At 1 June 2018 R2018F6 A1H 10,834 6,405 17,239
Charge for the year FRYTH 2,743 1,199 3,942
Written-off HsE (461) (697) (1,158)
Impairment loss BEEE 1,796 583 2,379
At 31 May 2019 72019454318 14,912 7,490 22,402
Impact on initial adoption of ¥ ¥ fE A E B RS
HKFRS 16 HRIFE16RHITE (1,241) — (1,241)
At 1 June 2019 (restated) 2019F6 A1H (K&E5) 13,671 7,490 21,161
Charge for the year FRLH 2,839 1,077 3,916
Disposals RE — (94) (94)
Written-off HsE (314) (765) (1,079)
Impairment loss BIEREE 1,567 523 2,090
At 31 May 2020 7202045 F31A 17,763 8,231 25,994
Carrying amount: FRE(E :
At 31 May 2020 2020 5H31H 5,145 1,545 6,690
At 31 May 2019 2019F5H31H 9,762 3,171 12,933
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTD)
As at 31 May 2019, the Group’s property, leasehold
improvement included reinstatement provision with
carrying amount of approximately HK$389,000. Upon
adoption of HKFRS 16, reinstatement provision with net
carrying amount of HK$389,000 as at 1 June 2020 are
reclassified as right-of-use assets (Note 2(a)(i))

Impairment assessment for property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Due to the decline in financial performance of the
clubbing, entertainment and catering business during
the year, the management of the Group concluded
there was indication for impairment and conducted
impairment assessment on recoverable amounts of
certain premises assets of the clubbing, entertainment
and catering business segment which represented
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets with carrying amounts of HK$6,690,000 and
HK$5,293,000 respectively. The Group regards each
individual premise as a separately identifiable cash-
generating unit. The Group estimates the recoverable
amount of each several premises to which the asset
belongs when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually.

The recoverable amount of each premises have been
determined based on a value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management of the
Group covering a five-year period. Discount rate used
for the value in use calculation is 12.8% with reference
to the valuation carried out by an independent qualified
professional valuer. Other key assumptions for the
value in use calculations related to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include gross budgeted
sales with a growth rate for types of revenue ranging
0-69% and gross margin with a zero growth rate.
Such estimation was based on the management’s
expectations for the market development as of 31 May
2020.

17.

M-  BMERRE®E

720195 A31H » AEEYE - HEY
EHREIEREEY 5389,000/8 THIEE
BE - B BY R EERFE 16981 -
7202046 A 1 B BRE & )¥ 58 £ 389,000/
TR EREEN DB AT RREEE (M
2(a)(i))

NE - BERREUAREREEENRE
R
HRFREH - RENEREBHHOMBR
BTH®  AEEEEREERRFERED
R UG  RENEREXBDINE
TYREENAIRE S FETRIER S -
“EFREBERMED R /6,690,0008 7T
525,293,000/ TTR M - BB M akths B P
EREE - AREBESEIMERSES
ABEARESELEN - BEEERMGEA
WE SR - ARBEGBFEEMBOSE
TYERAOAWROSEE -

EMENTARERERBEEREEE
E e At EAEANRSRERRHER
LK%IEEEﬁﬂtt/%iﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ']ﬁﬂkﬁ% o
EREEFEEMRABNMRER12.8%
T2 EBIABERBEXMGEMETOR
B -EREBEFEZNEMEIEZREIR
iﬁué}um)\/uuﬁﬁﬁ it AR ERESRK
ANIEBRERZ0-69% WIRE HHE LN TIE
REHEMNE - ARG HREBEEEEY
B E202055 A31HM M ERNERE
& o
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17.

160

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTD)
Impairment assessment for property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (CONTD)

Based on the result of the assessment, management of
the Group determined that the recoverable amounts of
several premises are lower than the carrying amounts.
The impairment amount has been allocated to each
category of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets such that the carrying amount of each
category of asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less cost of disposal, its value in use and zero.
Based on the value in use calculation and the allocation,
impairment losses have been recognised against the
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of HK$2,090,000 and HK$8,555,000,
respectively.

As at 31 May 2019, the management conducted an
impairment assessment on recoverable amount of
Legend Vision CGU which has been determined from
value in use calculation based on cash flow projections
from formally approved budgets covering a eight-year
period. The recoverable amount of the Legend Vision
CGU was lower than the carrying amount of the unit. An
impairment loss of approximately HK$2,379,000 was
recognised in profit or loss to write the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment relating to Legend
Vision CGU to its recoverable amount of approximately
HK$3,840,000 for the year ended 31 May 2019.
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17.

M- MERSZEGE®)

ME - - RERREUREAEEENRE
RAr1E))

BREFTHER  AEEEREETETY
2o BB ENEEE - RELED
DEESEWE - BE K& R FER#E
BE WMESBEENERETERIE
ERTFERLERA  HERAEERS
—EMEzERE BEFEABEFER
DEL - ERWE - BE MR R FE R
BED BRI EEE2,090,0008 T &
8,555,000/ 7T °

M2019F 58310 - EEEHIMIEN RS
EEBANIINESREET T RETRE -
ZAE IR E AEETE (RBEXSE
FRE N \FEEMNReREEAET -
IR ¢ EEBMMA B S FEERE
NEES3  RESHFERBUERBEBY
2,379,000/ 7T LA B BB IR ¢ E A
BRYE BEEARENEREDISESA
E#HZE201945 31 B It FER AT IREI & 58
93,840,000/ 7T
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18. LEASES

(a)

Right-of-use assets

HKFRS 16 was adopted on 1 June 2019 without
restatement of comparative figures. For an
explanation of the transitional requirements that
were applied as at 1 June 2019. The accounting
policies applied subsequent to the date of initial
application, 1 June 2019, as disclosed in note
2(a).

As at 31 May 2020, the Group leases five
buildings in the districts from which it operates. In
some districts, it is customary for lease contracts
to provide for payments to increase each year to
reflect the inflation and the market rental. In some
districts buildings leases, the periodic rent is
fixed over the lease term. The leases have initial
period of non-cancellable leases between 1 and
3 years as at 31 May 2020.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use
assets and the movements during the year are as
follows:

18. HE

(a)

FRAEEE

BB HREERIE 1657 5°2019F
CATHRMNMEBEEILLEHT - I
2019F 6 A1 HEABEEZ KA
AR e ¥R FEREHER(2019F6 A1)
1% FTIE B2 FHBUR M FE2(a) HE -

R2020F5831H » AEEAEHLK
BRI ERREEY) - NG
Fie  HEARBERTETFE
MNFARMBERREMIZEHAE
® e RETHROELEDEEF -
THESEAERNET - 12020
F5A31H - ZHAEMYIAT A BE
FAEHA1E34F -

FRAREEREEEZEALE
REHWT :

Leased buildings

HEZEE

HK$'000

FET

At 1 June 2019 20196 A1H 33,589
Depreciation e (17,537)
Lease modification HEBH (1,326)
Lease termination MERIE (878)
Impairment VERIE] (8,555)
At 31 May 2020 7202055 H31H 5,293

Detail of impairment assessment are set out in
Note 17.

IRERER AR BN EE7 -
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18. LEASES (CONTD) 18. MHE&EW®)
(b) Lease liabilities (b)y HEAE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the FAHEERECRESBERESHN
movements during the year are as follows: I
2020
202045
HK$°000
FETT
Carrying amount at 1 June K6 H1B 2 EREE 35,924
Lease termination MRERIE (1,008)
Interest recognised during the year FAERFE 1,100
Lease modification HEER (1,326)
Payments (B (19,120)
Carrying amount at 31 May M5 A31H Z BREE 15,570
Future lease payments are due as follows: KRIKERBLI BB RAOT -
Minimum lease
payments Interest Present value
EREHAERNK FIE RE
31 May 2020 31 May 2020 31 May 2020
2020F5H31H 202045H31H 20204%5H31H
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET F#ETT FETT
Not later than one year TEE—F 15,841 (271) 15,570
Later than one year and ~ —& A H{BRBIBRF
not later than two years — — —
15,841 (271) 15,570
Minimum lease
payments Interest  Present value
EHRERK A RE
1 June 2019 1 June 2019 1 June 2019
20196 H1H 20196 H1H 2019%F6H1H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(H17E) (H17) (K1)
Not later than one year TR —F 20,628 (1,124) 19,504
Later than one year and ~ —% A HENBBMRE
not later than two years 16,698 (278) 16,420
37,326 (1,402) 35,924
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31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

18. LEASES (CONTD)

(b)

(c)

18. HME&E®H)

Lease liabilities (CONTD) (b) HEEE®
The Group discounts the lease liabilities at the EHZE2020F5A31HILFE - A&
incremental borrowing rates ranging from 4.56% E AN F4.56% £4.66% ML E G
to 4.66% for the year ended 31 May 2020. HAMEHHEBEETITR ©
The present value of future lease payments are RRMEMNRIRESTE
analysed as:
31 May 2020 1 June 2019
202055A31H 201956 A1H
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAETT FHET
(Note)
Mzt
Current liabilities mBEIE 15,570 19,504
Non-current liabilities EREEE — 16,420
15,570 35,924
Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the [ REBBYVIZRAREYELEREEY
cumulative effect approach and adjusted the opening BmEERE 165 - WH2019F6A1H
balances at 1 June 2019 to recognise lease liabilities REESE - UERLENREE S ST
relating to leases which were previously classified A7 R BERKEHENHEREH
as operating leases under HKAS 17. These liabilities EBE ZSABECHELNREAREM
have been aggregated with the brought forward EMEEAEMREAT - R201945A31
balances relating to leases previously classified as HELEELIARES - BRABEFBER
finance leases. Comparative information as at 31 May I EZEE
2019 has not been restated. See note 2(a) for further
details about transition.
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in (c) REZPEINEEESSEN

relation to leases are as follows: T
2020
20204
HK$’000
FET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (£ AR EETES 17,537
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBEMNERAX 1,100
Gain relating to the lease termination BRARERIENE (130)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FERAEEEREEE 8,555
Expense relating to short-term lease MEEERY 777
27,839
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. EBZRHMEWRE
2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 EUGRIA (a) 1,921 2,747
Other receivables HAbFEUGRIAR (b) 2,183 4,188
Prepayments TES IR 823 1,506
Deposits s 6,222 6,716
11,149 15,157
Less: Prepayments for BRI - R AR
acquisition of property, SN2
plant and equipment — (330)
Non-current portion of H At JE U GRIB FEBN A ET
other receivables 7 — (6,061)
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H {th fE Ug 208 11,149 8,766
Notes: &L -
(a) Trade receivables (a) B 5 EWEIE

164

Majority of the Group’s revenue is attributable to sales of food
and beverages via cash and credit card. There was no credit
term granted to the customers.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables at the end
of the reporting period, net of impairment, based on invoice
date is as follows:

REEARHA Wa IR EARE REBRZ
MRMERMEE - AEETERZFRHE

AEER IR E AR E Z IR R RE)

ENER B HBHREK D

BCI Group Holdings Limited

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET TFET

0-30 days 0%30H 728 1,306
31-60 days 31Z260H 36 370
61-90 days 61%290H 33 267
91-180 days 91£180H 1,124 515
181-365 days 181%£365H — 289
1,921 2,747

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
receivables for evidence of impairment on both an individual
and collective basis. Impairment losses in respect of trade
receivables are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly.

BrEEERLR

REEER - ANEEE R 5B 88 8 AR
B NHEEATHRBEIR - B5BUKIA
FURER IRIA B BRI - A SR E(E X
FIATARREWE - AIREBBREENE S &

WORIE M8
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31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTD)

Notes: (CONTD)

(b)

Other receivables

Included in the amount, balance of approximately
HK$3,000,000 (2019: HK$3,533,000) was loans receivable
which was secured by the assets of the borrower, interest-free
within the first three years from the drawn down date and had
no fixed terms of repayment.

Impairment losses in respect of trade and other receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amounts is remote, in which
case the impairment losses are written off against trade
receivables directly. Based on this assessment, the movements
in impairment of loans and accounts receivables are as follows:

19. EZRHEMEBWREE)

MieE - (@

(b)

H fth EURE
A EIASF £ 493,000,000 7L (2019
F + 3,533,000/ 7T ) ) FE M E AR AR E
EFERF iR ASREita=5%28  BE&
[Eilabee 8-

B 5 K EAD WA 2 R EEE T fE R AR
8515 - BRIEAKRBEMNABRBT KT
B - AR ESIEEENE SRR - R
BRI - REKERREROREZE N
T

2020 2019

2020F 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Balance at 1 June HeA1B /LR 862 —
Loss allowance in trade and other EHRE P R EMERFIEEBRE

receivables recognised (note 41(b)) (FfF5E41(b)) 476 862

Balance at 31 May A5 A31HH &R 1,338 862

The resulting potential deferred tax assets amounting to
HK$221,000 (2019: HK$142,000) have not been recognised in
respect of the above items due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The tax losses are subject to the review of Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Department and may be carried forward
indefinitely.

B A AR RO F SRR A TR R - MR Bt Bl IE
B HRAE £ RBIRIER & E221,0008 7T
(20194F : 142,000 7T) * AT IHEIEER
ERRISBHRE - WA ER A
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20. GOODWILL 20. EHE
HK$'000
TFET
At 1 June 2018 R2018F6 A1H 2,209
Impairment of goodwill ERE (2,209)
At 31 May 2019 2019 5H31H —
Impairment of goodwill EERE —
At 31 May 2020 7202055 H31H —
2020 2019
20205 20194F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Accumulated impairment loss ZEtRBEBE
At 1 June #6A1H (2,209) -
Impairment loss recognised in the 4 NIEZREEE
year _ (2,209)
At 31 May M5H318 (2,209) (2,209)
On 1 November 2015, the Group acquired 100% of M2015F 11 A1R - REBEWEIFIEKB
the equity interests of Legend Vision Limited and its PR A A R H B A A (LA T AT #IE A &
subsidiary (hereinafter collectively referred as “Legend B )2t o FEEE EEREEL
Vision Group”). The principal activity of Legend Vision EEMER -  WHEEEERRELELR
Group is the operation of clubbing business in Hong KBHIBETANEBNSITER - WEEA
Kong. The acquisition was made with the objective to mE - BEESEZRSEASM - A1
achieve economies of scale and strategically expand JIERK = [ -
the clubbing business of the Group. The acquisition
resulted in the goodwill and it is solely allocated to the
CGU, namely the Legend Vision Group.
During the year ended 31 May 2019, impairment loss BUZE2019F5 A31A IEFE - W RFTIERIR
on goodwill and property, plant and equipment of CTELABMNEE  WE - BELEEN
approximately HK$2,209,000 and HK$2,379,000 were BEE 1B 5 B11492,209,00078 7T % 2,379,000

recognised respectively, relating to Legend Vision CGU. BILE TR °
The goodwill was fully impaired.
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20. GOODWILL (CONTD) 20. BWE®)
The recoverable amount of the goodwill as at 31 May M201945 A31 B RS BATUk Bl & FEIR IR IE
2019 has been determined from value in use calculation _Ué?tt/ﬁ/\iﬁﬁfﬁ EENRERETEAG
based on cash flow projections from formally approved HEMFRAEEET  BR/N\FTHENEAS
budgets covering a eight-years period. Cash flow um%ﬁzﬁ.‘ﬁ?S%ﬁ# o

beyond eight-years period are extrapolated using a
growth rate of 5%.

2019

2019%F
Discount rate REIR R 14.2%
Operating margin * vl 0.0%-8.5%
Growth rate within the eight-years period N\EF R X 3.0%-5.0%

defined as profit before income tax expense divided by * RE ARSI S BN TR A ES
revenue

The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific FrREBE R AR R R EEEE
risks relating to the relevant CGU. The operating margin SELENABNETRE o &% F)HEX
and growth rate within eight-year period have been MDA FHARSE RS BEAUAL TS
based on management expectation and the result of the TR R IB R BRETF o
market research and prediction.
The directors of the Company have considered the ViIN/N T%%E%)@ﬁﬁﬁiﬁfﬁj*ﬂ(ﬁgiﬁ‘i‘
impact of the possible changes in the key assumptions (REATER RIE R R ) AAEE E L
(discount rate, operating margin and growth rate) %i&%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%i%uﬁ%ﬁﬁz_ﬂi
used, and conducted sensitivity analysis on the CGU’s BEN LS RE - NATEERL
carrying value for impairment testing during the _MQ@j’:%ﬁﬁﬁﬁw‘éiKTE”*“EI’JEH/\E%T
reporting period. In the opinion of the directors of the sEE e EMIE S EA BN ERIER
Company, any reasonably possible changes in the key HE AT E4%E o
assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based
would not cause the CGU'’s carrying amount to exceed
its recoverable amount.
Based on management’s assessment and by reference RIS IR E R T R &R E BT TE AT
to the calculation performed by an independent woh R TG IR A BT E A
appraisal firm, Norton Appraisals Holdings Limited, the BIEFEREBENBRSELESMER
Group recognised impairment loss of HK$4,588,000 for BHZE2019F5 A3 A ILFEMNRERER
the year ended 31 May 2019 under the Legend Vision 4,588,000 7T A EHEIBEELSENEH
Group’s cash-generating unit as the carrying amounts of MZEEEFETNERABEESANERS
those assets related to the cash-generating unit exceed HRMOKRE 4S5 AR BRESELBHY
their respective recoverable amounts at the end of each EEEDEREEWESEE - B stEa
reporting period. As the carrying amount of the cash U [B] 4 %8 B BT A3 R 38 IR (L (] R F) & Eh 8

generating unit have been reduced to their recoverable B A B REEIE -
amount, any adverse change in the assumptions used

in the calculation of recoverable amount would result in

future impairment loss.
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20.

21.

22.

168

GOODWILL (CONTD) 20. BE®)
The Directors considered that the goodwill and property, E=ZRBFTIEKEEEENHERYZE
plant and equipment attributable to the Legend Vision BEREEDERE  ARGMEBKKE
Group were impaired as revenue from the clubbing REZE2019F5 A A LEFEABB TG » =
business had a substantial decline during the year ERRAFEMSREFLNERNETEZRP
ended 31 May 2019 mainly resulted from the decrease W o FARTARKHE RIS IREEARFEH
in key customer due to keen market competition ERER EEZRREEDE - BERRK
during the current year. It is expected that future sales HELRE  ARAKREECAMERS
performance will follow the actual situation in the e TR FE TR ZE o
current year. The Directors considered that the relevant
property, plant and equipment were impaired as the
anticipated cash flows to be generated from the future
use of the asset would be uncertain.
INVENTORIES 21. 7FE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beverage R im 522 694
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIRVALUE THROUGH 22. BRAFEABRZNESREE
PROFIT OR LOSS
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TH#T
Debt securities held for trading BEEEMNEBES
— Listed debt securities — L EBES — 12,991

The above debt investments were, upon initial
recognition, designated by the Group as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. As at 31 May 2019,
all of these, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss were pledged to secure the Group’s short term
bank borrowing (Note 28).
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FPREBRER VT BRSE RN EEIET
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24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

AMOUNT DUE (TO)/FROM A RELATED
COMPANY

23.

(FEfY), FEWR B 1N R 7RI

Maximum outstanding
balance during the year

ended 31 May As at 31 May
BE5A3MBLLEERELE
RERER M5H831H
Notes 2020 2019 2020 2019
Bt 20204 20194 20204 20194
Model Genesis RIS AMBIRE (i) & (ii)
International BERAB(ERS () &)
Management Limited 523 K |
(“Model Genesis”) 263 310 (136) 26
Notes: MisE

The amount due was non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-

(i)
free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

(i) CSI Properties Limited, being one of the ultimate shareholders

of the Company, held beneficial interests in the related

company.

(iii) During the year ended 31 May 2020, a written off of amount

due from Model Genesis of HK$172,000 was recognised in the

(@

ol NS RN t £

HZE2020F5A31ALFE - EUERZIHK
HEYFRIE172,00078 70 2 M 8E B A AR A 2 E IR

(iii)

consolidated statement of comprehensive income. WRPIER ©

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24, BHERBELSZEEY
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Cash and cash balances Re MRS EH 5,930 9,624
Time deposits TE BT 494 10,687
Cash and cash equivalents BENBEEEY 6,424 20,311

Cash and cash equivalents represented cash at banks
and in hand. Cash at banks earns interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term
time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and time deposits are deposited with credit
worthy banks with no recent history of default.

RekReEFEYRERTLTFERRAS - R
TREBEARTERMNEAENFEF
KRMEBFE - EHRERFHA—BAE=F
AHRAE  BFAEEHAEREHER
MiE - WIRE 8 7R B B 75 50 & BRER
B - |RITEBRRERFREFRNEER
bf BT HRI0 B MO RCERAERTT o
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31 MAY 2020 2020F5H831H

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTD) 24, BHERBREZEEN@®
Bank balances, included in cash and cash equivalents IRITER (BT AREBRe NIREEE
of the Group, are denominated in the following foreign YD) A T INEEEHE -
currencies.
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
—UsD — X 1,674 7,267
25. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 25. ERHIRITHER

RRFBITFRIER—RMBARFE

Restricted bank deposits represented cash at bank held T E i IF
FHRRIRITHIRE - KIVITERIEER (B

by a subsidiary secured for bank borrowing (Note 28).

5528) o
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. HZRHAMEMKE
2020 2019
2020 20194
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
gz FAET F#T
Trade payables = AN (i 1,968 3,106
Accruals and other payables JE=T2 i K £ b fE (< 208 (i) 19,875 15,422
Total BET 21,843 18,528
Less: Current portion R BIEREL 7 (21,843) (16,463)
Non-current portion JEBNERER 5 — 2,065
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTD) 26. EBEZRHEMENSRE®

Notes: 5T -

(i) An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables (i) REBERMERRNE ZEMN IR
at the end of the reporting period based on ERBEZAMBRERSITOT
invoice date is as follows:

2020 2019

20205 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

0-30 days 0% 30H 800 1,550
31-60 days 31260H 205 1,444
Over 60 days @60 H 963 112
1,968 3,106

(i) Accruals and other payables accrued renovation (iy [EESBRRAEMENRIBBIEES
expenses and accrued salaries. BEBRANMENETZ -

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. BHEE

31 May 2020 31 May 2019

20205H31H 2019F5H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Contract liabilities arising from: UNBBEEANENARE 582 2,088

Billing in advance of performance JB#J&0T8 % 5 H (MT3Ei)
(Note i)

Note: B 5T

U]

Contract liabilities represent the receipts in advance from
customers in respect of the club membership schemes
operated by the Group. The Group operates the membership
scheme where customers accumulate points for purchase
made which entitle them to discounts on future purchased and
the credits is valid within 3 months after the date of initial sale
of membership scheme.

(i) BRABERARBEMELN GG SR
LEAFEPYWEKFIR - AEEEZGHETE
EFIEBEYMRIES - AIERRBYI
i B RSETEVIREER=EARN
B
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27.

28.

172

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTD) 27. EREEwW
Movements in contract liabilities: aHaEEE -
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Balance as at 1 June 6 A1HR 2,088 3,232
Decrease in contract liabilities as & #) & & FE F AR H IR
a result of recognising revenue ]
during the year (2,088) (3,232)
Increase in contract liabilities as EHEaERFATEL ST HRAL
a result of billing in advance =Rl
revenue during the year 582 2,088
Balance as at 31 May M5 A31 B 582 2,088
o
BANK BORROWINGS 28.  RATR
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current BIHA
Bank loan due for repayment within B —FREENBITER
one year (Note(a)&(b)) (M55 (a) K2 (b)) 17,035 31,091
Notes: PEE

(a) The bank borrowing of HK$17,035,000 for the
year ended 31 May 2020 was secured by a
restricted bank deposit placed by the Company
and a subsidiary in the bank. The bank borrowing
of HK$21,196,000 for the year ended 31 May
2019 was secured by debt securities measured
at fair value through profit or loss placed by the
Company and a subsidiary in the bank. Interest
is charged at 1.07% per annum for the year
ended 31 May 2020 (2019: Hong Kong Inter-
bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”")+2.5% per annum).

(b)  The bank borrowing of HK$9,895,000, bore
interest at the rate of HIBOR + 2.25% per annum
for the year ended 31 May 2019. It was fully
settled during the year ended 31 May 2020.
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HZE2020F5A31 B ILFEEMRTT
& 317,035,000 7T Jh AR A &) I
—EH B R BT RRIRITHZ R
IRITHERIEHRIF - H{E201945A
31 IEFEMIRTTIEFR21,196,000
BITAARR R R — M B A &7
RIBRITIEAFEFABENES
AR - FEEHEE2020F
S5A3TAIEFEFFE107% T HE
(2019%F : FBRITAERE([ BB
BITREEFRE D IFEE25EHE) ©

HZE2019F5A31B ILFE » 817
f&7X9,895,000/8 TLIZ BB IRTTRIZ
FEMFEB2.25FB5 - ZR1TE
HAREE202065A31H I FEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

BANK BORROWINGS (CONTD)

Notes: (CONTD)

(c) As at 31 May 2020, the restricted bank deposits
of HK$17,038,000 (2019: HK$9,473,000)
was security of bank borrowing, placed by a
subsidiary in the bank.

The above banking facilities of the loans are subject
to the fulfilment of covenants relating to minimum
requirement of pledged debt securities and restricted
bank deposits and compliance of the bank’s
administrative requirements, as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions in Hong
Kong. If the Company and a subsidiary were to breach
the covenants, the drawn down facility would become
repayable on demand.

At 31 May 2020, the bank borrowings were scheduled
to repay within one year or on demand.

The Group regularly monitors the compliance with these
covenants and the scheduled repayments of the loans
and does not consider it probable that the bank will
exercise its discretion to demand repayment for so long
as the subsidiary continues to meet these requirements.
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in Note 41(c). As at 31 May 2020, none
of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had
been breached.

RITER @

MEE ()

() M202045A31H - FRHIIET
1#317,038,0005 7T (20194 :
9,473,000/ 7T ) Ty A —FE KT B R~ 7
TR ERI TRV SR T SRIEHE IR ©

FRAERNRITREASFABCEARER
EHFEZRHBITERNKEERLLET
RITITHAENRBERR T AEE - %
FRHEFANBECSREBIILNEE
R o MARB MMBARERRS - A
ERRMEEHAREREER -

202058318 » RITIERTEEN —FK
FIREKEE -

ANEBETHERELBETRELHMRHE
BEZNER  YRAERBHBAREE
BFZERTE BT AKAIRESTHFEED
BRERER BHAEERDESRER
EIRRE — B ERMIFE41(c) - 722020
F5A31H - AEFEBEEREFHEIZIG
BRI -
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29.

174

LOAN FROM A SHAREHOLDER

KB —BBEROER

Loan from a shareholder

29.

KE-BRRHER

2020 2019
202045 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
13,878 5,000

The loan amount of HK$5,000,000 borrowed during the
year ended 31 May 2019 was early repaid during the
year ended 31 May 2020.

During the year ended 31 May 2019, the Company
obtained a loan facility from a shareholder, Mr Kester
Ng for an amount of HK$20,000,000. The loans are
unsecured, bear interest at 4.48% per annum. (note
3(c)

During the year ended 31 May 2020, the Company
obtained from Mr. Kester Ng a supplemental letter that
extends the loan facility for an amount of HK$5,000,000,
giving a total loan facility of HK$25,000,000.

Total current and non-current loan from a corporate
shareholder was scheduled to repay as follows:

HE201955 A31H ILFEHBEANER
% %85,000,0008 0B R EL 2202045 A 31
AL FEIRATEE -

HE2019F5A31HIEFE » AAAIEEK
B—BRR(REALE)NERBELEE
/20,000,000 7T - ZEERAEEA -
REFRA.48% 512 o (BIFE3(c))

HE2019F5A31HIEFE AR A#E
SRERBELENBTHYG  NEE
G E R E £ 5 A5,0000008TE
25,000,000 7T ©

KE— B RERRBANE R EAN A E KT
RIS AEE ¢

2020 2019

2020 20194

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

On demand or within one year JEE Sk —F N — —
More than one year, but not BB —F - B TEAMRE

exceeding two years 13,878 5,000
More than two years, but not BBMRF - BTERRT

exceeding five years — —

After five years hFiE — —

Total current and non-current BIEA K2 SEBN B EB 17 #B R
portion 13,878 5,000
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30.

31.

32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 30. EFNESXE
The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest- ENESHIBEREER  £ERZERE
free and repayable on demand. & e
SHARE CAPITAL 31. BR
Number of shares Amount
R EE kX ]
HK$'000
FET
Authorised, ordinary shares of GIREEO.O BT E T L@k ¢
HK$0.01 each:
At 1 June 2018, 31 May 2019, R2018F6 A1H ~ 20194
1 June 2019 and 31 May 2020 58318 + 20196 A 1H X
20205 H31H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid, ordinary HRREEC.OVB T E 1T R
shares of HK$0.01 each: BEBAR
At 1 June 2018, 31 May 2019, M2018F6 18 + 2019F
1 June 2019 and 31 May 2020 5H31H  2019F6 A1H X
20205 H31H 800,000,000 8,000
RESERVES 2. W
Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are ARBENZEHEDFERNGE R LT
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in *
equity.
Movements on the Company’s reserves are as follows: ARANEHEBMT :
Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
IR E IRA &1 ZitEBE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 June 2019 20196 H1H 56,525 34 (21,849) 34,710
Loss and total FABEREER
comprehensive mAERR
income for the
year — — (41,608) (41,608)
At 31 May 2020 7202045 H31H 56,525 34 (63,457) (6,898)
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31 MAY 2020 2020F5H831H

32. RESERVES (CONTD) 32. f@#E®
Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
&3R8 &N =5 - st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFiET T TET TET
At 1 June 2018 R2018F6 A1H 56,525 34 (18,080) 38,479
Loss and total FA/BEREAER
comprehensive A
income for the
year — — (8,769) (3,769)
At 31 May 2019 201995 H31H 56,525 34 (21,849) 34,710
(@) Share premium (@ KRHE
Share premium represented the amount R0 m B REBRA S EB LA
subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal HSHE ©
value.
(b)  Capital reserve (b) BAREFEE
Capital reserve represents the difference RAFERE MR E R FEEMIK
between the fair value of consideration paid and B EARRAEZMNESE -
the carrying value of the subsidiaries acquired.
(¢)  Accumulated losses (c) RtEE

Accumulated losses represented the cumulative
net losses recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 33. FFERELS
Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of A/ City Silver JEIER R GEFAEBEAR
City silver, before intra-group eliminations, is presented ARSIl < A AR 25100
below:
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$000 HK$000
FET FHET
For the period ended 31 May BIZE5H31 0 LHME
Revenue Wz 1,328 2,623
Loss and total comprehensive EEk AN S AR
income (1,975) (1,893)
Loss allocated to NCI DEREIEERIE RS 2 BK 790 757
Dividends paid to NCI BN FIEERR R R 2 AR B — —
For the period ended 31 May BIZE5A31H LHME
Cash flows from operating activities & &EEFEHELRE (365) 1,371
Cash flows from investing activites & EBMSHEELRE 779 (1,376)
Cash flows from financing activities & EEFEHELRE (468) —
Net cash outflows W@ F5E (54) (5)
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$000 HK$000
FET FHET
At 31 May #5H31H
Current assets MENEE 17 167
Non-current assets FEMENEE — 1,484
Current liabilities REBBEE (6,438) (5,923)
Non-current liabilities FEmEAaE — (174)
Net liabilities BEFH (6,421) (4,446)
Accumulated non-controlling RETIEIRAR
interests (2,569) (1,779)
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34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34. EREE
At 31 May 2020, the Group had no significant capital M20205F5 A31H » ARKE I S KE A
commitments (2019: nil). PE(20194F « #£) ©

35. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 35. ERATBBRRE
FINANCIAL POSITION
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$000 HK$000
FETT FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—RENBARIMNEE — 34
— 34
Current assets REEE
Other receivables E b U FRIA 3,151 4,630
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUHTE A TIFIE — 39,191
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEFEEY 37 10,211
3,188 54,032
Current liabilities RBasE
Other payables Hib R FRIAE 2,086 1,386
Bank borrowing RITIERK — 9,895
Current tax liabilities BIEARRIE B & — 75
2,086 11,356
Net current assets REEEFHE 1,102 42 676
Net assets FEE 1,102 42,710
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 35. ERQARMBRRERE
FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTD)
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity T
Share capital &4 31 8,000 8,000
Reserves s 32 (6,898) 34,710
Total equity farEm 1,102 42,710
On behalf of the board of directors RERESZS
Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester Mr. Ng Shing Chun Ray
REBHELE RAEKEE
Director Director
Ea Ea
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36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. MEBEATIFE
The following are the details of the Group’s subsidiaries N BB A T 2020465 A31 B HyEEBE N
at 31 May 2020: AN
Country and date of Issued
incorporation/establishment and paid up Attributable equity Principal activities
Name and form of business structure share capital interest and place of operations
AL/ RIERR BEIR
£ AHEXBERY BRRA FEdE IR E IEXBREXBE
Direct Indirect
Ef B
BCI Group Holdings (BVI) The British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), US$10 100% —  Investment holding, Hong Kong
Limited 6 February 2013, limited liability
company
BCI Group Holdings (BVI) RERLES(RBRERES]) 2013F 0% 100% —  RERR BE
Limited 2A6H » BRAF
BCI Group Enterprises Limited  Hong Kong, 28 November 2012, limited HK$1 — 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
liability company
BCI Group Enterprises Limited ~ &% + 2012611 A28H * AR A AT - 100% #®EZER B
Group Best Investment The BVI, 26 April 2013, limited liability US$10,000 — 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
Holdings Limited company
Group Best Investment RERTEE  201354A2H - BRAE 10,0001 — 100% REER &%
Holdings Limited
Legend Vision Limited Hong Kong, 8 April 2015, limited liability HK$1 — 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
company
HIBXBR AT &% - 201554788 - BRAF BT - 100% HEZR FE
Bannock Holdings Limited The BVI, 4 February 2014, limited liability US$1 — 100%  Security investment, Hong Kong
company
Bannock Holdings Limited ~ XEBRZEE - 201452/48 - BRAH 1%t - 100% BHRE B4
Buzz Concepts Management ~ Hong Kong, 17 February 2014, limited HK$1 — 100%  Provision of public relations
(H.K.) Limited liability company services, Hong Kong
Buzz Concepts Management &% 2014528170 - BRAF 17T — 100%  RERBRE - B8
(HK.) Limited
Lively World Limited The BVI, 2 January 2015, limited liability US$1 — 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
company
Lively World Limited RBRZEE 201551728 BRAT 1% - 100%  HEER BF
Group Best Investment Hong Kong, 9 July 2004, limited liabilty ~ HK$100,000 — 100%  Operation of club, Hong Kong
Limited company
Bl EBRAT & 200457A9B - BRAA 100,000/ — 100% Sz FE
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36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTD) 36. MBARFE@®
The following are the details of the Group’s subsidiaries 7N = [E| [} BB A m) 202045 A 31 BB EEIS a0
at 31 May 2020: (CONT'D) ™8
Country and date of Issued
incorporation/establishment and paid up Attributable equity Principal activities
Name and form of business structure share capital interest and place of operations
AR/ RIERR BETR
2B AHERBERN BRRA FEfL B TEXBREXBY
Direct Indirect
ER 84
Grand Diamond Limited Hong Kong, 13 February 2008, limited ~ HK$2,030,750 — 100%  Operation of club, Hong Kong
liability company
EEARAT &% 200852A138 - BRAF 2,030,750 ¢ - 100% K=efH Bk
Litton Global Limited The BVI, 4 February 2014, limited liability US$1 — 100%  Trademark holding, Hong Kong

Litton Global Limited
Joint Ace Limited
Joint Ace Limited
Crown Grand Limited
Crown Grand Limited
City Silver Limited
City Silver Limited
Ace Gain Limited

Ace Gain Limited
Maximus (HK) Limited
Maximus (HK) Limited
Castle Team Limited

Castle Team Limited

company

HBRUEE 201452848 ARLA IES

Hong Kong, 18 March 2015, limited HK$1
liability company

A% 2015537188« BRAT i

Hong Kong, 20 November 2014, limited HK$1
liability company

B 2014511A208  BRAA i

Hong Kong, 12 October 2013, limited HK$625,003
liability company

&% 2013F10A128 - BRAR 625,008/

Hong Kong, 5 May 2016, limited liability HK$1
company

A% 201645050 - BRAT i

Hong Kong, 7 July 2017, limited liability HK$100
company

B 201757R7H - BRAF 10077

Hong Kong, 25 January 2018, limited HK$1
liability company

A% 2018517258 - BRAT i

— 100% FiSER - 5%
— 100%  Dormant
- 100% EEgg

— 100%  Qperation of entertainment and
club business, Hong Kong

— 100% ReRERemER &5

— 60%  Operation of restaurant, Hong
Kong
- 60% HEEE BE

— 100%  Operation of restaurant, Hong
Kong
- 100% HE2E FE

— 100%  Operation of entertainment
business, Hong Kong
- 100% BERELE BE

— 100%  Qperation of entertainment and
club business, Hong Kong

— 100% ReRERemER BE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR MR

31 MAY 2020 2020F5H831H

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Related party transactions

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
material transactions with related parties during
the year:

Related party identity
BT 510

Type of transactions
REER

Model Genesis

R4 SRR M mSEENREEER
Notes:
(i) The transactions were conducted at terms and

conditions mutually agreed between the relevant
parties. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that those related party transactions were
conducted in the normal ordinary course of business
of the Group.

(i) CSlI Properties Limited, being one of the ultimate
shareholders of the Company, held beneficial interests
in the related company.

(i) Mr. Kester Ng, being an executive director of the
Company, held beneficial interests in the related
company.

Compensation of key management personnel
Remuneration for key management personnel
of the Group, excluding amounts paid to the
directors of the Company as disclosed in Note
11(a), is as follows:

Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind

37.

Marketing and promotion fee

(b)

e RMREDREN

BHAER5

(a) BEBIRS
BRIV BREREMESTERS
AN - AREBPF R B 5 1T

TEARS :
Notes 2020 2019
b3 20204 20194
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(), (i) & (iii) 985 1,260
(), (i) & (iii) 985 1,260

MG

U] 225 Tyt A8 B 75 18 B 155 5 KO R S A6 1 i
7o AABEERAXERH IR S INAE
B ABEBETHET

(i) ARBFREBRZ —EARBEERA BN
ol VNS N nt fal

it

\

(iii) RARRTEERBELENBERARRE

Al -

TEEBEASHEM
AEENTEEEABHFM(TREME
11(a) IRENENARREZFIR)NT

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
850 375

BCI Group Holdings Limited
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39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN 38. EENRE  ZHHESHNNERER
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS
Except as disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated BERA B BREMEI7TATIEESEI - HE
financial statements, no contracts of significance to NARIMB AR LBEARGERRE
which the Company’s subsidiaries was a party and in EMEEERNEPEESBAEREFERXR
which a director of the Company or an entity connected A E KA K I 5 2 B gl 4t R B
with a director had a material interest, whether directly or RB R -
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the financial
year.
NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 39. HFEBREREBRWEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial REEETEENEBELHER
activities
The table below detail changes in the Group’s liabilities TREMANEERERSNELNBEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non- B(eiERekFRe®e)  @EITHA
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities EENBEARERECKLIRKEDR
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash ERENTEENGEERERERIER
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated MEETHASHEERENEE -
statement of cash flows from financing activities.
Total
liabilities
Loan from
Lease from a Bank financing
liabilities shareholder borrowings activities
RE—F RUESEED AT
HESEE RENER IRITER ELENEERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET
(Note 18) (Note 29) (Note 28)
(Hfzt18) (Hf7#29) (Hizt28)
As at 1 June 2019 A2019F681H 35,924 5,000 31,091 72,015
Changes from cash flows: RE&RBEE :
Proceeds from new loans MEREHIE — 13,776 247,575 261,351
Repayment of loans EIEER — (4,898)  (261,631) (266,529)
Repayment of principal BEHEEELrSHD
portion of lease liabilities (18,020) — — (18,020)
Interest paid BRFE (1,100) (339) (1,046) (2,485)
(19,120) 8,539 (15,102) (25,683)
Other changes: Hith g :
Termination of lease ME&RIE (1,008) — — (1,008)
Lease modification MEBH (1,326) — — (1,326)
Interest expense FEFZ 1,100 339 1,046 2,485
Total other changes Hih# s % (1,234) 339 1,046 151
As at 31 May 2020 #R2020565H31H 15,570 13,878 17,035 46,483
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39. NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 39. #SKERERERMTE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (CONTD)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial RETEFTEENABEHER®
activities (CONTD)
Total
liabilities
Loan from
Lease from a Bank financing
liabilities shareholder borrowings activities
RE—F RLEEEN AR
HEEE RENEXR IRITER EENEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(Note 18) (Note 29) (Note 28)
(B15£18) (Htat29) (Htit28)
At 1 June 2018 A2018%F6H1H — — 30,667 30,667
Changes from cash flows: BE&HRESE :
Proceeds from new loans MTESRFS A — 5,000 140,489 145,489
Repayment of loans BEER — — (140,065) (140,065)
Interest paid BEAFIE — — (50) (50)
5,000 374 5,374
Other changes: HAn g :
Interest expense FERE — — 50 50
Total other changes Hih B4 — — 50 50
As at 31 May 2019 A2019565H31H = 5,000 31,091 36,091
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. REFESHNEREERESHMAEGEHE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated FAaPBRRARZINNREERIA T R
statements of financial position relate to the following BERSHBAGEHENGH -
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities.
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets TREE
Fair value through profit or loss: BRATER AER:
Debt investments EBRE — 12,991
Measured at amortised cost: RHESEA AT E
Trade receivables, deposits and ~ Z 5 ERERIAE « HE M EA
other receivables R I8 10,326 13,651
Amount due from a related
company JiE W B ESE 1~ B 5RIE — 26
Cash and cash equivalents fﬁ%&iﬁ/\ﬁfﬁ% 6,424 20,311
Restricted bank deposits SR HIRITIF SR 17,038 9,473
33,788 56,452
Financial liabilities cRas
Measured at amortised cost: RESEA AT 2
Trade and other payables 2 5 R HEMER FIE 21,843 18,528
Bank Borrowings HRITHER 17,035 31,091
Loan from a shareholder KE—BRENER 13,878 5,000
Lease liabilities HEB®E 15,570 —
Amount due to a related
company & ﬁf‘%ﬂéﬁ/& 136 —
Amounts due to directors JERE SR 539 668
69,001 55,287
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41.

186

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s financial assets that derive directly from its
operations are trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from related companies and
cash and cash equivalents. Principal financial liabilities
of the Group include trade and other payables, and
amounts due to related parties. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group does not enter into or trade financial
instruments for speculative purposes.

(a)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Currency risk

The Group mainly operated in Hong Kong with
most of the transactions settled in Hong Kong
dollars and did not have significant exposure to
risk resulting from changes in foreign currency
exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss that are denominated in a currency other
than functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily United States dollars.

At 31 May 2020, one of the Group’s borrowing
are denominated in the functional currency of the
entity taking out the loan or, in the case of group
entitles whose functional currency is Hong Kong
dollars, in either Hong Kong dollars or United
States dollars. Given this, management does not
expect that there will be any significant currency
risk associated with the Group’s borrowings.

The Group’s financial risk management policy
seeks to ensure that adequate resources are
available to manage the above risks and to
create value for its shareholders.

BrEEERLR

41.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTD)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade and other receivables (note 19) and
listed debt investments (note 22). There are no
significant concentrations of credit exposure to
the Group. It is spread over a diversified portfolio
of customers.

Due to the unprecedented nature of the
COVID-19 pandemic, its effect on the Group’s
customers and their ability to meet their financial
obligations to the Group is difficult to predict. As
a result, the Group’s judgments and associated
estimates of expected credit losses may
ultimately prove, with the benefit of hindsight, to
be incorrect.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
trade receivables in connection with clubbing
business is limited because the counterparties
are major financial institutions in Hong Kong, for
which the Group considers to have low credit
risk.

In respect of trade receivables relating to the
provision of individual credit evaluations are
performed on the customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer's history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay and take into
account information specific to the customer.
Typically, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers, except for the deposits received
from the membership scheme (note 27).

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which mainly comprise of cash and
cash equivalents and other receivables, arises
from potential default of the counterparties,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments. Credit risk in
cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank
deposits are mitigated as cash is deposited in
the bank with high credit rating.

M. BERREER@

(b)

FERR
AEENEERRTIZRNEES
RE M REMFIR(KFE19) Rk L&
BIRE (5E22) - AEBEWESEKR
STWMEERR - EERRSNE
) E PR -

F B F T I R R 18 S A ) - B

HAKEEPHTERHEPET
HAKENYHETNEN ZFE
REUATEOR - HIt - AEEYBEHRE
EEEm A ARG SR A
BRAZ BRI RAY o

). 1 ¢ ¢
AEBEHNEERRIRE ZEAT
EBARNE S RUGE - BAY
FHRBERARULSHEE  ~A&H
RREERBRBIE -

PEEEEACEFEEENES
ﬁwaﬁﬁi'ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm
SHEESENERMETT - %57
ﬁ&é%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁmﬁ%ﬁ&%
8RUA N B BIEH S A9RE D - WA
RZEFPHBEER - BEME -
AEETTEERFPIGERS
e B2 R ELAY IR & B o (B 5E
27) °

AEEEMERMEE(FERERS
&ﬁéﬁﬁ%%&ﬁ@fﬁ%EMﬁ
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5 SHEENZETANE
ﬁfﬁ o EHE"EE%T_EEM:.A%Z&?T
BHERTT MRS RIRESEYIU
MZRERITFERAEERRS A
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTD) M. BIBERKREEE)
(b)  Credit risk (CONTD) (b) FERE®
The Group measures loss allowances for trade REEREYE ZRERNEIBRE
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, NHERBREFEBNEREES
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As B eETE - AR EEME
the Group’s historical credit loss experience does H o BmRAEERNBEEEREL
not indicate significantly different loss patterns BRUKRKBAIRAEFPIHFEEKR
for different customer segments, the loss TREERR - EREHRENE
allowance based on past due status is not further BRETERAEETRT S ER
distinguished between the Group’s different ZRHE—FED -

customer bases.

The following table provides information about TREHEAEEMESEERR X
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for B S EWHIENTEREEBHIENE
trade receivables: i
Gross

Expected carrying Loss

2020 loss rate amount allowance
20204 FHEER IREAE EIERE
(%) (HK$000) (HK$000)
(%) (F7T) (&)

Current (not past due)  BIHA(3E&ER) — — -
1-30 days past due #HI1Z30H 0.2 730 2
31-90 days past due #HI31Z90H 4.2 72 3
91-180 days past due #HI91Z=180H 22.2 1,445 321
181- 365 days past due  #H}181E365H — — —
2,247 326
Gross

Expected carrying Loss

2019 loss rate amount allowance
20194 TEHIE R % FrmiaE EiERE
(%) (HK$'000) (HK$000)
(%) (FE7T) (&)

Current (not past due) BNHA(FE@ER) — — —
1-30 days past due BHI1ZE30H 8.1 1,421 115
31-90 days past due BEA31E90H 228 825 188
91-180 days past due #HI91Z180H 35.9 804 289
181- 365 days past due  #HI1812365H 24.1 381 92
3,431 684
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTD)

(b)

Credit risk (CONT'D)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

The Group has adopted the general expected
credit loss model for material financial assets
in relation to the other receivables. A summary
of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s
expected credit loss model is as follows:

4. HHEERER@

(b)

FERR@E

BEMERRENBESFNERE
BEBET - ZFHERDKLARIN
2 R FAT Uk 5% JBE S 203 P I8 A ] R A8
RS RIS AN 52 B R W
FURTE M FHI M QB R B 2
RHZEE -

AEEC B E M B KRERE N E
REBMEERMN—RIEHEERE
B - IR AKREBEREEEED
BEBZET -

The basis for recognition of

Category Company definition of the category expected credit loss provision
=Yl DAY ERNES BREHEEHERBENESE
Performing Customers have a low risk of default and 12 month expected losses. Where the
a strong capacity to meet contractual expected lifetime of an assets is less
cash flows than 12 months, expected losses are
measured at its expected lifetime.
ES EPENRRBRREAGERNEEGNELR 12 ANTEMEE - HRRBFERE

B SR 128 2 R EE - TARHRAENTE

BT E -

Loans for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk; as significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if
interest and/or principal repayments
are 30 days past due

Underperforming Lifetime expected losses

2= EXMERRBEEEN  BRNER % 2HEHER
K& EFEIBBI0ORAETE RIEAE
PR ERE IR N

Non- performing Interest and/or principal repayments are  Lifetime expected losses

60 days past due

TR FLB R, ® E AR BE60R FHITA R R
Write- off Interest and/or principal repayments are  Asset is written off
180 days past due and there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery.
ki RS R/ SASETAMBHISOKRAY MHEE

EAIEAEITEE -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTD) M. BIBERKREEE)
(b)  Credit risk (CONTD) (b) FERE®

Other receivables include the amount due from FE YR IE B AE FE W BB A B SRIE

a related company and non-interest bearing loan IR EA AR FT 2R IEET ERINE K -

receivables at amortised cost.

The Group accounts for the above items’ credit REBEBREEABAEEBEHRE
risk by appropriately providing for expected EFHREE K LA B WEERERR
credit losses on a timely basis. In calculating ABR - STETEHEEBEXRK - K
the expected credit loss rates, the Group EEHSENEFPHNEL EIBXRE
considers historical loss rates for each category TEE - WHAIE M R BB EST
of customer, and adjusted for forward-looking FHE REEGEWER N EME
macroeconomic date. The Group provides for WERIEHE BB BT IR EENT ¢

credit losses against loans and other receivables
are as follows:

2020 20204
Estimated
Basis for gross Carrying
Expected recognition of carrying  amount (net Basis for
Company internal credit expected credit amount of impairment calculation of
credit rating loss rate loss provision at default provision) interest revenue
BHEE BRARBEEER HEHEN  REEGR
DERBEETR BEE BHENEE REAE RERE) FAEIERANEE
HK$000 HK$000
TET TET
Performing 0.97% 12 month expected losses 6,415 6,353  Gross carrying amount
i 097% 12 AMESER 6,415 6353 FREZE
Underperforming 31.65% Lifetime expected losses 3,002 2,052 Gross carrying amount
B 31.65% 2 HRHEE 3,002 2052 FREEE

Total other receivables
Hib el E 9417 8,405
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTD) M. PBEBREEE)
(b)  Credit risk (CONTD) (b) FERB®
2019 20194
Estimated
Basis for gross Carrying
Expected  recognition of carrying amount (net  Basis for
Company internal credit  expected credit amount  of impairment  calculation of
credit rating loss rate  loss provision at default provision) interest revenue
BHEE BREHEEER fhEtEn  EEEGR
RAINPEETR BRE AfpniE REAE RERE) FAENBRANRE
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Performing 0.24% 12 month expected losses 7,525 7,507  Gross carrying amount
i 0.24% 1@ AMESER 7,525 7507 BREZE
Underperforming 4.48%  Lifetime expected losses 3,683 3,423  Gross carrying amount
Bx 448% SHIEHER 3,583 3423 BRELE

Total other receivables

A ElIa s 11,108 10,930

No significant changes to estimation techniques RERE AR - hEr s RERR R
or assumptions were made during the reporting BREL -

period.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTD) 41. BERBEERE)
(b)  Credit risk (CONTD) (b) FERE®
The closing loss allowance for other receivables L fthy 8 LS R TE A R 5 48 485 1S Bk
reconciles to the opening loss allowance for that B RTEERENR  BEREA
provision, and the gross carrying amounts are as BT :
follows:
Under-
Performing performing Total
EE 22p=d et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T THET FHET

Gross carrying amount for 7202045831 HKEH
other receivables as at o FEUN R BR E 42 B
31 May 2020 6,415 3,002 9,417

Opening loss allowance  F201946 818 &9Hi%)

as at 1 June 2019 EERE 18 160 178
Loss allowance provided — EREHEHE B
for the year 44 790 834

Closing loss allowance as 7202045 A 31H &9 &
at 31 May 2020 RIEERE 62 950 1,012

Net carrying amount for 720205831 HEE
other receivables as at fh EU R IR BRI R 1E
31 May 2020 6,353 2,052 8,405
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTD) M. BEREBERE)
(b)  Credit risk (CONTD) (b) FERBE®
Under-
Performing performing Total
EE Bx et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T#ET THET T

Gross carrying amount for 7201945 A31HAE

other receivables as at fth FEUGR IR BR A 4R 1E

31 May 2019 7,525 3,583 11,108
Less: Expected credit B TEEREEEIA

losses:
Closing loss allowance 7201845 H31H I HA

as at 31 May 2018 REBRERES

(calculated under B EERIE9

HKFRS 9) SRETE) — — -
Impact of initial application #)fEBEEMERE

of HKFRS 9 HRESRE — — —

Adjusted opening balance 7201846 A 1H KA

as at 1 June 2018 FEEER AR — — —
Loss allowance provided — 4F AEHEH E1BRE 4
for the year 18 160 178

Closing loss allowance as 201945 A31H H#H]
at 31 May 2019 NEERE 18 160 178

Net carrying amount for 201965 A31HME

other receivables as at fth FEU R IR BR AL F B

31 May 2019 7,507 3,423 10,930
Listed debt investments L EERE
Investments are normally only in liquid securities WE—MRABRRERABLFRZ SN
quoted on a recognised stock exchange, except EFREZRBES - HERERHRRE
where entered into for long term strategic BEEMmMBAEERI - FRITESR
purposes. Transactions involving derivative TANRGHEAGSEENRDY
financial instruments are with counterparties of HFEARERAEEEFHEER
sound credit standing and with whom the Group HEOALTET  ERFEENSE
has a signed netting agreement. Given their high B4 STMBEE - EAEES
credit standing, management does not expect HREEITEME ©
any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.
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41.

194

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTD)

(c)

BCI Group Holdings Limited

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated
with its financial liabilities. The Group is exposed
to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade
payables, accruals and other payables, and
amounts due to related parties, and also in
respect of its cash flow management. The
Group’s objective is to maintain an appropriate
level of liquid assets to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major banks and financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
terms.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group during the year ended 31 May 2020 and
2019 and are considered to have been effective
in managing liquidity risks.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The maturity dates
for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rates at the end of the reporting period.

BrEEERLR

41.

SRR B (1)

(c)

RBETER

MEE SRS R AR B RGEETT
HemAaBEHERETHER - A&
EENBRGEEESRMNFA &
AHEAREAMEMNTIR - BRI
FTHRBENRBREEREEENRBE
TR AEEEEEFEE R
BEKYF - Umemi R EHNR

AEBHBRSTERERE [ MFA
HRHESHF R BREFFTHRER
CREMETIZRITESRMEBIE
HERHAFERERE - ke
HERBRBESHFR -

NEEAE E 20204 ;201945 A
SIHEFE—HEEBABDEIH
R URABERBREARDESR
BERTEITZER -

TRALAEESHBENFGRE
IR - TRIBES A EHRES
RBRERE (ENAREENRNR
FHHGRR - Kt ETESRAR
ME BB DERBEERAR - T
REENERASRESRE WAl
EREEFBHNE - ARMA S
HRERROFRGTE



41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTD)

(c)

(d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

M. BERREER@

Liquidity risk (CONTD) (c) REBEERRE®
Total More than
contractual Within one one year but
Carrying undiscounted Repayable  year or on less than
amount cash flow  on demand demand two years
BRRER —FRF BE—-F
BEE ReREBAE REXREE RERX BLREEF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 31 May 2020 202055 A31H
Trade and other payables &5l EthENFUE 21,843 21,843 — 21,843 —
Bank Borrowings BITIER 17,035 17,049 — 17,049 —
Loan from a shareholder ~ KE—&BREHER 13,878 15,024 — 677 14,347
Lease liabilities HERE 15,570 15,841 — 15,841 —
Amountdueto arelated  JEfEAB A RIFUE
company 136 136 — 136 —
Amounts due to directors ~ FENEEFUE 539 539 539 — —
69,001 70,432 539 55,546 14,347
At 31 May 2019 R201955A31H
Trade and other payables &5 R EMEM A 18,528 18,528 — 16,463 2,065
Bank Borrowings BITIER 31,091 31,001 — 31,001 —
Loan from a shareholder ~ RE—&BRRMER 5,000 5448 — 142 5,306
Amounts due to directors ~ FENEEFUE 668 668 668 — —
55,287 55,735 668 47,696 7,371
Interest rate risk (d) F=xEk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s bank deposits bear floating
interest rates. The Group has no cash flow or fair
value interest rate risk as there are no borrowings

which bear fixed or floating interest rates.

MEREES ke TARFENRR
& 8 T 5 ) = 2 B K B R AL
@ o AERBERRITERIZFBHNE
FHE o B ANER B AT B E 0¥
B XA ENER  BRALBRER

ENAHENEER
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42. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS 42.
The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value
hierarchy (Note 5):

AT AR
TREFIREDFESR(HES) BHRA
FAEFIE 2 BT A -

43.

196

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
14 $E24 FE3H st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET
As at 31 May 2019 M2019F5H31H
Financial assets of fair value BAFER ABEA
through profit or loss TRIBE
— Listed debts securities — FMEBES 12,991 — — 12,991

There have been no significant transfers between levels
1 and 2 in the reporting period.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objective when managing capital is
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and maximising the return to stakeholders.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group actively and regularly reviews the capital
structure and makes adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions. The Group
monitors its capital structure on the basis of debt to
equity ratio.

The debt to equity ratio at reporting date was as follows:

43.

R E AR - 1 R2R 2 MR ETT M
BREE -

EXRBRER
AEBEBEANTEANRRELAEER
HE B ERE N T RERSEAOR

REFIABREARE  AREHERE
ARRKNHORESHE  ABRRRESR
R BT EEE AR ER

AEEEGTEREHEARE  AREH
MANE B HEENRE - AEEREE
B RERAEARGE -

R¥E A ES R R T

2020 2019

2020%F 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Bank Borrowings IRITRER 17,035 31,091

Loan from a shareholder RE—BRENER 13,878 5,000

Lease liabilities HEEE 15,570 —

46,483 36,091

Total equity B (22,457) 14,037

Debt-to-equity ratio B X 1:(0.5) 1:0.4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

31 MAY 2020 202055H31H

SIGNIFICANT EVENT DURING THE YEAR

The outbreak of COVID-19 since early 2020 has resulted
in significant decrease in commercial activities in various
locations the Group operates and negatively affected
the Group’s business operations, particularly during the
months January to May 2020 for the year ended 31 May
2020.

The COVID-19 outbreak had led to the suspension the
operations of the Group’s clubbing, entertainment and
catering business due to lockdowns and restrictions
resulted from various anti-pandemic measures by
the Hong Kong government. The COVID-19 has also
brought additional uncertainties to the economic outlook
and resulted in a decrease in demand to the Group’s
clubbing and catering services.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements,
the Group has taken into account the increased risks
caused by COVID-19 on impairment of the Group’s
financial and non-financial assets when assessing
assets impairment mainly including trade and other
receivables, property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Placing

On 30 June 2020, the Company entered into a Placing
Agreement with Brilliant Norton Securities Company
Limited, the placing agent, to procure at least six
placees who are independent third parties to subscribe
up to 160,000,000 placing shares at the net issue
placing price of HK$0.1271 per placing share.

The completion of the Placing took place on 18 August
2020 after fulfiiment of the conditions precedent set
out in the Supplemental Placing Agreement by 21 July
2020. A total of 160,000,000 of the Placing Shares had
been successfully placed and issued under the general
mandate granted to the Directors by resolution of the
Shareholders passed at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 9 October 2019. The net proceeds
from the Placing, after deduction of the placing
commission and other related expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$20,334,000.

44.

45,

FARAEKREE

B 2020F FJ LA SRIEZH) COVID-19E B 5
REFELEMESHENEETHEET
B WHAEBMOEREBERTFZ
2. LHEHEHZE2020F5A318IEFE Y
2020F1 HESAME ARA ©

R B S BUR SRER A = R B & 48 e 5 By
AR E - COVID-19H) /@ D E R A&
BN  RENEBEEBNELE(Z o
COVID-19TM &4 B A = 2 BN e I 8
BEAEBENG M EERSHE KGN
PRI o

RREZEEAVBRRE - AKEHEE
BERFHEEIEBRRE S R HEMEUK
H % BEERBAREHEEEDN
BEMMER - COVID-193|BIAEE S 7 K&
FFEREERERBRIE N o

HREHRSBE

BRE

20206 A30H « A A HEEER
I# Brilliant Norton Securities Company
Limited %I ECE W5 - LWEEED 6%
TERTE L% =75 MR A A& id & ik
MO127T1BE TR FHITREERE RS
160,000,0003% Bl & A% 17 °

202047 521 H BIER M 7e BE & i Pk
FRAGE R - IRE BIBR2020F8 A 18H
SR o RIEF2019F 10 A9 81T AR
AREBEFTFAS EBBANRIERBZERT
BEENMEE BRMES RETEE
160,000,0008% E2 & i 17 o &R ELE M E
NMEMABRZR  BESEMESHREBF
FB#9 /520,334,000 7T, ©
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45.

46.

198

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (CONTD)
Third waves of COVID-19

In July 2020, Hong Kong has been hit by the third waves
of new, untraceable local COVID-19 cases, a series of
precautionary and social distancing measures has been
implemented starting from 15 July 2020. The limitations
are currently in place for the group gatherings, dining in
at the restaurant and further mandatory closure orders
including gyms, sports grounds and bars. Given that
COVID-19 arises a certain extent of adverse impact
against the current business operations of the Group
and the overall economic environment surrounded in
some operating segments particularly. The Group will
keep continuous attention on the latest development
of third waves of COVID-19, in order to assess and
react actively to its associated adverse impact on the
consolidated financial position and operating results of
the Group. Up to date when the consolidated financial
statements were approved and authorised for issue, the
estimation on the possible range of financial impact is
still in progress.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26
August 2020.
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202047 BEEZTEZFIHLE
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A summary of the results and of the liabilities of the Group for
the last five year financial years, as extracted from the audited

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFBBEESE

AT AAREER O AEY REENEERAER
2 IRBEAFRANKEZSAVFERRLE

consolidated financial statements in this annual report and the ~ I&E72 :
prospectus, is set out below:
RESULT ES |
Year ended 31 May
BZE5ANALEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
20204 20194 20184 20174 20164
FET TFET TFET TFET FET
Revenue Wz 50,397 81,889 85,343 96,164 88,870
Finance income BEWA 249 626 505 — —
Changes in inventories FEZEH (10,206)  (17,739) (17,610)  (19,117)  (18,172)
Other income and gains HAA R ies 1,861 858 377 73 557
Expense related to short term lease/ %238 ERRRI SRR
total minimum lease payments BEAETEAFETR
for leases previously classified as DERKEHEEZEEY
operating lease under HKAS17 REBEEMN TR (777)  (26,705)  (25,180)  (22,975)  (20,919)
Advertising and marketing expenses &% &5 &R (7,310)  (11,246)  (14,094)  (11,915)  (11,709)
Employee benefits expenses EERFMAL (16,939)  (23,180)  (27.244)  (18,311)  (13,068)
Fair value change on financial assets 1R A FEzT AEBRNEHE
at fair value through profit or Loss EXTEEE (15) 62 (446) — —
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% - = R REITE
equipment (3,916)  (3942)  (4672)  (4,253)  (4,199)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FAEEENE (17,537) — — — —
Listing expenses =il Fa — — —  (15532) —
Other expenses HifAx (15,665)  (20,763)  (20,639)  (13,064)  (10,953)
Impairment loss on goodwill BERESR — (2,209) — - -
Impairment loss on property, plant %1% - MR R & EHEEE
and equipment (2,090) (2,379) — — —
Impairment loss on right-of-use FEREEERERSR
assets (8,555) — — — —
Written off of trade and other WEHE 5 R E A EW IR
receivables (2,988) (1,243) — — —
Written off of amount due from a U FE U R B A R 3 IE
related company (172) — — — —
Loss allowance on trade and other 85 R E i e FIBEE
receivables e (476) (862) — — —
Finance costs BEKAE (2,485) (873) (285) — —
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETIEBIR S, (A% ) Al
credit/(expense) (E518) /&7 (36,624)  (27,706)  (23,945) (8,930) 10,407
Income tax credit/(expense) FristiEe,/ (F%) 130 169 (1,828) (847) (2,023)
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive R (E518) /&I &% 2 EUK
income for the year MAAEE (36,494)  (27,537)  (25,773) (9,777) 8,384
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hFMBHE

Year ended 31 May

BE5H31BLLFE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
20205 20194 20184 20174 20164
FET FET FET FErT FEr

(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive A~ A+ERER(EE),/
income for the year attributable to: % R 2 EK 4258 -

— Owners of the Company . YNCIEZ=DN (35,704)  (26,780)  (25,135) (9,513) 8,384
— Non-controlling interests — JEER S (790) (757) (638) (264) —

(36,494)  (27,537)  (25,773) (9,777) 8,384

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
Year ended 31 May
BZE5A31BLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
20204 20194 20184 20174 20164
FET FET FET FET FET

Total assets BEE 47,126 71,585 87,407 85,384 39,680
Total liabilities BAaE (69,583) (57,548)  (45,833)  (18,037)  (27,706)
Total (deficiency in assets)/equity BOAEBA) (22,457) 14,037 41,574 67,347 11,974
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